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MISSION f&6n

We are committed to creating value for
stakeholders by providing comprehensive
and innovative solutions that achieve high
quality results.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR
MFEARNSORE

MARCH 2017 MARCH 2017

Became one of the first batch Won two awards at the
organisation being awarded the Construction Industry Safety
15 years Plus Caring Company Award Scheme 2016/2017.
Logo by the Hong Kong Council of e

Social Service. : ERE‘EF‘Q Ed
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awmmram-seEm MARCH 2017
Occupational Health Award Forum and Award Presd

10-3-2017 3€E ® v B -~

Awarded “Prevention of Pneumoconiosis
Best Practices Award — Excellence
Award in the Occupational Safety and
Health Award 2016/17”.

M [BEEERALE2016/17 - B
BB M fm 2878 | S MRIRKHE -

APRIL 2017 MAY 2017

Renewed the status of yd * Won over 100 property and security REBRYFERIRE IESR
“Manpower Developer” in services awards from various regions.  FREEIEIE T (E1EIE o

the Manpower Developer
Award Scheme organised
by the Employees
Retraining Board.
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JUNE 2017 JULY 2017

Launched leasing and real estate
agency business and awarded of a
service contract for Golden Plaza,
a famous wedding theme shopping
mall located in Mongkok.

Awarded of alteration and addition
works contract of an indoor all-weather
swimming pool at Po Leung Kuk
Camoes Tan Siu Lin Primary School.
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JULY 2017

Beijing Team won the CCFA
Shopping Centre Golden Lily
Award, the Oscar award of the
industry.

1 R S 7 R R
84 [COFARMHR D&
A

SEPTEMBER 2017

Won two awards in “Quality
Management e Caring Buildings”
Property Management
Competition.

RERE - BET]MEREEL
BMALEIA -

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR
MERBORR

JULY 2017

Set up a new standing committee “S-Power”
for ESG and employee activities planning
and encouraged staff to maintain work life
balance and contribute to the community.

R [S-Power 8811 Z88  anstE W0LE
B OHeREARETEY SBHEITE |
THEMEE  WREEELS -

AUGUST 2017

Adopted a new Chinese name to

9‘—'— better align with the Group’s English
name and to enhance market
}% positioning.

EEE KT NEE - NE G
SYNERGIS | Zusanxzmprsnas
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OCTOBER 2017

Awarded of alteration and addition works
contract of Hing Man Shopping Centre
and interior decoration contract of a
hotel project in Tung Chung.
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SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF THE YEAR

REF RSB0

OCTOBER 2017

Won five awards in the Excellence in Facility
Management Award (EFMA) 2017 organised by the

NOVEMBER 2017

Hong Kong Institute of Facility Management.

REESRICERER [ SMRIEERE017) BE

BEH ©

Awarded of six overseas projects to provide property sales
agency services in Cambodia, Thailand and Malaysia.

AZNEEIAR - SRFE  FEMFRAEAAER
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NOVEMBER 2017

Awarded of two car park
management contracts by Link
Asset Management Limited
comprising 48 car parks and over
24,300 parking spaces located in
the New Territories.

AEEREEEEERARIMMD
NRFANEESEEAL A
HA8E{=EY « #8iE 24,300 1A
=Tyt

R R HE KBRS -

NOVEMBER 2017

Awarded of several contracts of the
Hong Kong International Airport,
including modification & reinstatement
service for shop units in Terminal 1,
North Satellite Concourse and Skypier,
enabling works for personal display
systems installation in Terminal 1 and
baggage reclaim hall and baggage
belt improvement work project.

EEEEERESNSIATIE &8
B—REENE LHERERK
AR EENS SR 5 UK BT T
2 R—RBREREEAMILE
BETRARRETIR - (TFRIAKA
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Synergis Holdings
Limited (the “Company” or “Synergis”), | hereby present to you the
annual performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the year, the Company adopted a new Chinese company
name “F LA B R A F)” and a new logo as part of re-branding
exercise to better align with its English name, to cope with the change
of new shareholder to Champ Key Holdings Limited (“Champ Key”)
and to enhance our positioning in the market for the Company’s

future development.

The property and facility management (the “PFM”) business
maintained a stable performance and manages over 86,000
residential units and 8.5 million square metres (“sgm”) of residential,
commercial and industrial facilities of nearly 300 PFM projects in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. With its expertise and extensive
experience to offer one-stop services to customers for nearly 40
years, the Group has been well recognised by the market. With rich

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

FR®RS

Chairman, Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho
By SC¥ e
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRRE

experience in car park management, we have been awarded two new
carpark management contracts with Link Asset Management Limited
to provide services for 48 car parks in the New Territories. In 2017,
the Group has launched its leasing and real estate agency business
which will become one of the Group’s key foci. Besides, the Group
determined to enhance the business model of its ancillary business
and reposition its strategy. The new brand “SynWave” is committed
to providing customers with professional laundry, cleaning, security
services, procurement and maintenance contracting.

Our interiors and special projects (the “ISP”) business remains the
engine and driving force for our growth. This business segment
contributed over two-thirds of the Group’s total revenue and recorded
an outstanding workload of approximately HK$1.4 billion as of year
ended 31 December 2017. Apart from renovation, fitting-out and
small scale construction businesses, being our core businesses in
Hong Kong, ISP has actively expanded its business in raw materials
procurement and online trading so as to ensure direct supply of high
quality raw material with support from the curtain wall factory in
Mainland China. Keen competition in the market and a continued rise
in operating costs have had some impacts on our financial results of
both segments. We would be eager to maintain and foster our core
businesses to continuously offer top-notch professional services to
customers. As we further our mission through the new changes and
diversified business scopes, we are committed to creating value for
stakeholders by providing comprehensive and innovative solutions
that achieve excellent results. In addition to its existing business in
Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China, the Group is eyeing to
expand its footprint to the South East Asia region.

The Group has suffered a loss of approximately HK$56 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017. It was mainly attributable to one-off
non-cash adjustments including an impairment loss on goodwill and
a write-off of Hsin Chong’s trademark. The impairment loss on
goodwill arising from the acquisition of ISP business from Hsin Chong
Group Holdings Limited (“Hsin Chong”) in late 2012 was HK$55
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, due to decrease in
new orders awarded for ISP business in 2017 and the increasingly
competitive business environment for ISP business. Besides, the
Group also took a write-off of Hsin Chong’s trademark that the Group
acquired along with ISP segment in late 2012 of approximately
HK$28.3 million (net of tax) during the year.

EREREEETEERARTRLMOMIZES
BIEEH - MR RI8EIFE SRR -
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REFERAX  FR RERE - KERRE
BH e

BMNEANEMHREHRIER ([ ER 0 Rk
HE NDEBDAERZSIZERE N - WEKSD
HAEREBEHBB=)2z - 2#%Kis BR
HZE2017F12 A1 ARESAERNIR &
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The recovery from Hsin Chong for the year ended 31 December 2017
was not satisfactory. Other than the repayment of approximately
HK$3.3 million plus interest on 30 October 2017 under the
supplemental agreement dated 17 August 2017 entered in between
Hsin Chong and the Company (“Supplemental Agreement”), the
Company has not received further repayment from Hsin Chong until
now. The Company is doing all endeavours to ensure the recovery of
the remaining amount of receivables of approximately HK$63.4 million
from Hsin Chong by the deadline of repayment period pursuant to the
Supplemental Agreement (i.e. 1 June 2018). We would like to share
more details of the Group’s performance, financial position and
operation of the Group for the year in the following section of
Management Discussion and Analysis.

To strengthen the Group’s financial capacity to support the new
significant projects and provide adequate buffer for its working capital
requirement, an aggregate of approximately 69.5 million placing
shares were issued and the placing was completed on 13 June 2017.
The Company received the net proceeds of approximately HK$73.9
million, representing a net issue price of HK$1.06 per placing share.

Taking into account the financial results, the Group’s available cash
reserves and working capital requirements, the Board resolved not to
declare final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: Nil).

We are grateful for the effort and continuous support which our
colleagues and business partners have put forth in driving the Group
towards sustainable development. Aligning our values of customer-
focus, integrity, teamwork, innovation and pursuit of excellence,
sustainability is a core focus of our business strategy. We are truly
hopeful that our combined efforts would create positive impacts in
Hong Kong. We would like to share more details for the reporting
period in our first standalone Environment, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) Report.

Stepping into 2018, Hong Kong property market is keeping an
expansion mode. Public gives great concern over housing stock
production and the speed up of the issue of housing completion. We
will expect that the property management business will expand
simultaneously. We will continue to expand our management portfolio
by capturing the continuing outsourcing activities implemented by
private residential owners, corporations and government institutions.
The management will also strive to identify new strategic growth
opportunities under the challenging market conditions. Besides, with
a track record of our ISP segment evidenced through the winning of

FAEERERAR —T—LFFW

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRHRE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRRE

several new contracts during the year, including building and electrical
and mechanical works for automation of arrival bags delivery at Hong
Kong International Airport, interior decoration for hotel guestrooms at
Tung Chung and reprovision of swimming pool at a primary school at
Mong Kok, etc. The strength and capability in managing large scale
projects, supported by our competent and professional teams, are
widely recognised. Our ISP business is well positioned for stable long
term growth.

In order to increase our profitability despite intensifying competition,
we consider cost control as important as expansion of the business
portfolio. We are reviewing the operating performance of both
business segments and would implement appropriate cost controls in
the forthcoming financial year.

We believe diversification of business scope and broadening revenue
source will bring more stable and recurrent return to the Company
and increase value to the shareholders of the Company. The Group is
cautiously optimistic towards the outlook of both businesses with
continuing challenge and uncertainties in 2018. We will continue to
actively manage a customer centric portfolio of high quality services
with a learning mindset. We are well positioned to deal with
challenges and capture the opportunities ahead in this changing
world.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my most sincere
gratitude to our Directors and dedicated team of staff for their
unwavering commitment and passion for the business over the past
years. | would also like to sincerely thank all our valued service
providers, business partners as well as our shareholders for their
continuous support. With the solid business base and the effort of all
our staff, the Group will endeavour to write a new chapter in the
future.

In 2017, we also saw changes in membership of the Board with the
departure of Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan, Mr. David Yu Hon To and Mr.
Wong Tsan Kwong. We shall bid farewell to Mr. Kan Fook Yee at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”). All four of them
provided valuable service and wise counsel to the Board in the past
nine years and | thank them warmly for their advice and support.

Kingston Chu Chun Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIEEBsm DIl

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW ¥t &
Change
2017 2016 R ED
Amount %
G| Bk
Revenue HK$’ million
Wz M T BT 2,083.3 2,433.5 (350.2) -14.4%
Gross profit HK$’ million
EA BB EBETT 166.8 185.2 (18.4) -9.9%
Gross profit margin
ESVAIES 8.0% 7.6% +0.4%
Operating profit before exceptional  HK$’ million
operating items
PRATIRAS ETH B BT &R 7 BEBEET 20.4 63.7 (43.3) -68.0%
Doubtful debts recovery HK$’ million
Y [a] 42 AR BEARET 19.8 - 19.8 -
Impairment of contracting work-in-  HK$' million
progress and receivables

Bl ) T2 & R GRORRUE BEBET (5.9) (91.8) 85.9 +93.6%
Operating profit/(loss) HKS$’ million
reEmm, (E8) BEHET 34.3 (28.1) 62.4 +222.1%
Impairment loss on goodwill HK$’ million
EEREE R BEBEET (55.0) - (55.0) -
Intangible asset write off HK$’ million
MismEEEE BEEET (33.9) (1.7) (32.2)  -1,894.1%
EBITDA HK$’ million
bRET - ITE REHEIAT BEEETT 50.5 (16.8) 67.3 +400.6%
Loss attributable to shareholders HK$’ million
IR R (L B 1 BEBEET (54.4) (39.5) (14.9) -37.7%
Basic losses per share HK cents
BRERERE PR (13.8) (11.7) 2.1) -17.9%

The Group reported consolidated revenue of approximately HK$2.1
billion for the year ended 31 December 2017, a decrease of 14.4%
over the year ended 31 December 2016. The management team had
focused on improving gross profit and was able to keep similar gross
profit margin as that of last year in spite of keen competition and
rising cost. The Group recorded an operating profit before exceptional
operating items of approximately HK$20.4 million after taking into
account operating expenses arising from tearing up business
segments and recruiting talents, poised to open a new page for the
Company. Unfortunately, the Group recorded a loss attributable to
shareholders of approximately HK$54.4 million including few
exceptional items as compared to the loss of approximately HK$39.5
million recorded last year.

HZE2017F 12 A31 HILFE » AEBESEE
A Y25 4978 1 2,100,000,000 7T * B E 2016
F12HAB1HIEFER D 14.4% © BERFHEFH
RURERAEF - EEERETRESEF - K
BEMERFREFAKE o KR AR AT
BREFT—BMEEZ D IREBDBRBEAS
MEENKEMEZE  NEBESREFKREE
IE B ATAC &% F 48 & & ) #97%8 # 20,400,000
TC o A BB RS R EEMBIBLEE
54,400,0007C - B BIELEREKRIER - A
F AlIER1S BB 4978 % 39,500,000 7T °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The loss attributable to shareholders was stated after charging a non-
cash impairment loss on goodwill of HK$55.0 million and a write off of
Hsin Chong's trademark of approximately HK$28.3 million (net of
tax), both of which were related to the acquisition of the ISP business
from Hsin Chong in late 2012. We have taken an impairment charge
on goodwill based on the management assessment especially the
change of revenue growth of ISP business due to the decrease in
terms of revenue and profits as a result of the poorer performance
this year than budgeted and fewer new orders awarded as compared
with last year. Furthermore, there is an increasing uncertainty over the
business growth in the continuously increasingly competitive business
environment of ISP business. Besides, the Company has written off
Hsin Chong’s trademark which no longer has any useful life or resell
value from the Group’s perspective, since Hsin Chong has ceased to
be the major shareholder of the Company towards the end of 2016
and subsequently a rebranding exercise was carried out in mid-2017
with new trademarks designed, selected and for trademark
registration applications made. Details of the impairment loss on
goodwill and write off of intangible asset are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements. Moreover, the Group has also
recognised the doubtful debt recovery of approximately HK$19.8
million, the majority of which being approximately HK$19.0 million
was from Hsin Chong. Being prudent after taking into account
repetitive deferred repayment schedule and the absence of the
announcements regarding any concrete cashflow enhancement
activities by Hsin Chong, an additional amount of approximately
HK$5.9 million on impairment of contracting work-in-progress and
receivables has been provided during the year. Losses per share was
13.8 HK cents (2016: losses per share was 11.7 HK cents).

Regarding the update on Hsin Chong’s repayment status, the
Company entered into a supplemental agreement on 17 August 2017
in addition to the settlement agreement dated 27 March 2017 with
Hsin Chong after arm’s length negotiation for the repayment of
remaining balance of receivables of approximately HK$66.7 million
plus interest by instalments, pursuant to which the deadline of the
repayment period had been deferred from 31 July 2017 to 1 June
2018. Other than the repayment of approximately HK$3.3 million plus
interest on 30 October 2017 under the Supplemental Agreement, the
Company had not received further repayment from Hsin Chong as at
the date of this report. The Company will continue to seek for
settlement of the remaining balance of receivables of approximately
HK$63.4 million plus interest under the Supplemental Agreement
within the agreed period and the net balance of receivables of
approximately HK$3.0 million plus interest during the year. The
Company is monitoring the situation closely and seeking legal advice
as to actions it may take to protect its right.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
Business Overview

On 1 August 2017, the Company has adopted a new Chinese name
“ SRR AR A 51”7 which signifies the Group’s establishment of a
new milestone, as the Chinese character “ & ” means new drives,
new team and new momentum while the Chinese character “#”
represents stepping forward and achieving success. The PFM arm
has also used “& #” to replace its previous Chinese name “¥T1 &
while “ISP” business has adopted a new English and Chinese name

of “ISP” and “ 518" respectively.
The Group’s PFM business remained stable in revenue and continued

to maintain its solid market position whilst ISP business continued to
be a significant contributor to the Group’s revenue.

Revenue W%

HK$ million
BEEBT 91.8

67.2

PFM — Hong Kong
MERERREE—FE

Interiors and Special Projects
=N EEH RS RIE E

X ORBRAIR
e ]

R2017F8 A1 H » AAFIEHEMFTH XELE
[FEIERAERAR] BERAEEBETIHE
B BAYPXFIZ]XZTHEY  FEK
kF®H - meXF[E] AIRERBZ AT
BRIKY - MERERBEEDIBIMER [ FHE]
REBEEEFRXEBHE] ERHEMHLEK
TH B EBE D RIRMFT RS [ISP] 218 R
AW -

REBNYMERREER EB RS HIFIRE
WHEBRIFBENTISHAL - ERRMIERK
HEEXBREE R A RBR RN EARIR -

Gross Profit & #l

HK$ million
BEEET

PFM — Mainland China
Y KGR I — R B A

Ancillary Business

LEEUES
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The operating results of PFM business and ISP business in the
following sections excluded the exceptional operating items being the
impairment of contracting work-in-progress of approximately HK$2.7
million and receivable of approximately HK$3.2 million both related to
Hsin Chong and its subsidiaries (collectively “Hsin Chong Group”)
during the year and the recovery of doubtful debts of approximately
HK$19.8 million previously impaired last year.

SR 5V am M DT

INTEEMERBBERES R ERNEM K
FRURTE B ETSME R EE - WIABIBREHREE
BEHNMREHEREWBAR (HEIFEE
B ) A/ EEd i TI244 12 700,000 7T
K% 8 WS R TE R (B 4978 #5 3,200,000 7T+ R Uk [E]
EFETIR 2 E R 408 % 19,800,000 7T °

Operating Profit/(Loss) before
exceptional operating items

Revenue (HK$’ million) (HK$’ million)
BRAGACETE B AT R ERR(BE)
s (BEEET) (BEBEHET)
2017 2016 Change 2017 2016 Change
PFM MEREBER
— Hong Kong — & 538.6 553.8 —2.7% 31.1 31.4 -1.0%
Ancillary Business FHBNEK 91.8 100.6 -8.7% 0.4 3.6 -88.9%
PFM Business MERREESEER
— Hong Kong -5
Sub-total NEE 630.4 654.4 -3.7% 31.5 35.0 -10.0%
PFM MERERER
— Mainland China — RER 67.2 62.1 8.2% (1.3) 0.6 -316.7%
PFM Business MERREEEEY
Sub-total NEE 697.6 716.5 -2.6% 30.2 35.6 -15.2%
ISP Business EREHRFHRBEEEE 13857  1,7170 -19.3% 5.7 44.2 -87.1%
Corporate Overheads {THEHR - - (15.5) (16.1) +3.7%
Total st 2,083.3 2,433.5 -14.4% 20.4 63.7 -68.0%

Property and Facility Management Business
Property and Facility Management

As at 31 December 2017, the Group managed 341 PFM service
contracts, with 35 contracts providing asset management, leasing,
consultancy and sales agency services. The scope of service covers
government departments, large scale public facilities, transportation
systems, airport cargo terminals, education institutions, hospitals,
industrial and commercial properties, public housing estates, private
housing, car parks, etc. During this year, the Group’s business has
become more diversified.

Y EINE Y A=FEE TS
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Hong Kong:

The Group has secured two 3-year new contracts with a total
contract sum of HK$143.6 million with Link Asset Management
Limited to provide management services for 48 Link Real Estate
Investment Trust’s car parks located in the New Territories and other
four major PFM contracts from two-year to three-year, with a total
contract sum of around HK$65.4 million. Major contracts include:

o Hong Kong Baptist University Staff Quarters;
o Centennial College Island South (Pokfulam) Campus;

. Station Assistant Services for various projects for MTR
Corporation; and

. The Carparks of residential under the Heya brand name at
Cheung Sha Wan

We were able to maintain a high retention rate for contract renewal
for the year. The high contract retention rate reflects that Synergis
quality services are well received by customers and contributes stable
revenues to the Group. The following key contracts were successfully
renewed with an increase in service fee and/or with expanded
scopes:

U Property Management Service Contracts: Property
Management Support Services for Link, King Shan Court, Sun
Hing Garden, Lung Mun Qasis, Tin Fu Court and Tin Ping
Estate;

. Housing Authority Contract of the Hong Kong Housing Authority
Headquarters Customer Service Centre;

o Facility Management Service Contracts of Cathay Pacific Cargo
Terminal, the Mid-Levels Escalator and Walkway System
Management Contract in Central from the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department, Hong Kong Jockey Club,
Riding Schools and Other Associated Properties; and

o Carpark Management Contract of the Housing Authority’s
Carparks

Although the revenue for this business segment has slightly
decreased by 2.7%, the management team was able to keep the
operating profit at approximately HK$31.1 million that was very similar
with that of last year. We are striving hard to expand our business
under keen competition together with exercising tighter cost control
to push for a higher profit margin.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Stepping into 2018, the Group expects to focus more on expanding
the facility management business as well. Apart from offering value-
added services such as consultancy services to our existing clients,
the team also expects to increase our market share by expanding our
service scope such as building consultancy and energy audit
services. Besides, the team will continue to explore new customers
including international schools or other institutions and develop
technical consultancy and supporting services to food & beverage
industry. With our stable market position in the property management
segment, we will continue to retain our current portfolio whilst
exploring opportunities in commercial premises especially in West
Kowloon.

During the year, the Group has launched its leasing and real estate
agency business in Hong Kong with the first project, Hong Kong’s
famous wedding theme shopping mall — Golden Plaza in Mong Kok.
The real estate agency business is one of the key development foci in
2018.

Mainland China:

The financial performance of this business segment was steady
compared to that reported last year. However, this segment suffered
an operating loss of HK$1.3 million compared to a profit of HK$0.6
million last year, mainly due to the increase in overheads in Southern
China as a result of expansion of our agency team. The Company has
secured several short term to three-year contracts mainly in Shanghai,
Beijing and Shenzhen with a total contract sum of HK$11.6 million.

The following key property management services contracts of the
residential/commercial projects:

. A new office building of Huawei with an underground carpark
covering a total construction area of 43,000 sgm in the Beijing
Huawei Centre;

. Shanghai Hongfa Garden consists of a luxury apartment tower
with a construction area of approximately 27,600 sgm and is
located at Changning District in Shanghai; and

. Shenyang Maternity and Child Health Hospital is located in
downtown area of Shenyang consisting of 25,000 sgm health
and care services centre.
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The following key agency services contracts of the residential/
commercial development projects:

U Fuyong Art Dock project is one of the key commercial projects
with a construction area of approximately 30,000 sgm at
Fuyong Pier in Shenzhen. We have been appointed as the
commercial consultant and sole leasing agent of this project;

. Located in Shenzhen Xixiang District, Xixiang Mall project
consists a commercial area of 20,000 sgm. We have been
appointed as the commercial consultant and sole leasing agent
of the project;

. East One and East Commercial Centre are the municipal
government’s key construction projects with a total area of
approximately 100,000 sgm, consisting a residential tower, two
apartment towers and two office towers in new central business
district of Phnom Penh in Cambodia. We have been appointed
as the sole sales agent in Southern China for this project;

. Yuyao Commercial Project is a commercial complex with a
construction area of approximately 31,000 sgm in Yuyao City.
We have been appointed as the commercial consultant and
sole leasing agent of this project;

o A luxury residential project, Royal Lee The Terminal Phuket —
Phase | is located at Sakhu Sub-district, Phuket of Thailand. We
have been appointed as the joint sole sales agent of the project;
and

o G Residence is a residential development consisting of 480
units of serviced apartments located at Mukim Plentong of
Johor in Malaysia. We have been appointed as the sales agent
of China Region for the project.

With different requirements of skillsets and job references in Northern
China and Southern/Eastern China, management has adopted
different development strategies for our developing businesses in
different regions. The management team in Northern China focuses
on developing the commercial consultancy and leasing services, while
the Southern/Eastern China team focuses on developing business in
property management and agency services. We will utilise our
extensive network and experience in property and facility
management to provide our customers with the most specialised
services. In addition, the Group has established an extensive business
network in the Mainland China and expected to achieve significant
progress in forthcoming year.
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Ancillary Business

Over the years, in order to provide a one-stop value added service to
the customers, Synergis has constantly developed its ancillary
business. The Group determined to modify the business model to
provide integrated “5 in 1”7 professional services including
procurement, laundry, cleaning, security and maintenance contracting
services in mid-2017 to external customers in order to capture the
new opportunities as nowadays many commercial corporations tend
to outsource their non-core business to improve cost-effectiveness.
The new brand — SynWave (¥7;R8) aims to offer enhanced, flexible
and tailor-made services. Total revenue from the ancillary business
reported a 8.7% decrease from last year to HK$91.8 million as a
result of the expiration of several management contracts in property
management segment. The gross profit margin was improved from
around 3.1% to 20.5% after a series of cost control exercise.
However, due to the increase in the costs associated with such
transformation in business model and general administrative
expenses for business development, investment on infrastructure and
repositioning strategy, this business segment only recorded a minor
operating profit of HK$0.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2017.

During the year, a two-year cleaning service contract from Kowloon
Motor Bus Depot with a total contract sum of approximately HK$16.0
million and a two-year technical support services contract with a total
contract sum of approximately HK$10.0 million for drainage
improvement works for Tsing Yi Garden had been secured.
Furthermore, SynWave has been appointed as the sole corporate
distributor of Vinda, responsible for sales and distribution of Vinda’s
products to more than 150 corporate customers. We have put effort
to increase its customer’s diversification continuously after a
repositioning exercise and expect a significant progress in the coming
years.

As a part of the core business of Synergis, ISP provides one-stop ISP
services including planning, design, consultancy, project
management, demolition work, site formation work, repair and
restoration of historic buildings work, curtain wall, sourcing services,
etc. to its local and overseas customers. With its expertise and
extensive industry experience and the launch of our new branding,
we strive to do better than ever before.
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For the year, the total revenue and gross profit of ISP business
recorded HK$1,385.7 million and HK$64.8 million respectively,
representing a decrease of 19.3% and 24.9% in the revenue and
gross profit respectively when compared to those of the year ended
31 December 2016. The significant revenue contribution came from
residential development at Discovery Bay North Phase 16, the new
factory development of a well-established pharmaceutical brand in
Yuen Long, the alteration and addition works at Kowloon Investment
Building at Bute Street in Mong Kok, which covered over half of ISP’s
revenue this year. The gross profit margin was around 4.7% that was
0.3% lower than that of last year. The decrease in revenue was mainly
due to a lack of new order replenishment in the second half of 2017.
Besides, the decrease in gross profit of approximately HK$21.5
million was mainly due to the lower gross margin generally for the
construction projects brought forward from last year together with
lower revenue this year in result.

During the year, ISP has expanded its new business in procurement
and sourcing services and a metal work fabrication factory in
Dongguan to support the curtain wall business. We also set up an
interior design consultancy team to expand our services to small to
medium size interior design and fitting out works for offices, retail and
residential to capture any new opportunities. As a result, the general
and administrative expenses substantially increased over 40.7% due
to the investment on developing more diversified business to leverage
the existing businesses with very keen competition. The operating
profit inevitably substantially decreased to HK$5.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

New contracts amounting to HK$519.0 million were awarded for the
year. The major projects are listed below by nature:

Construction

. Building and Electrical and Mechanical Works for Automation of
Arrival Bags Delivery at Hong Kong International Airport; and

. Reprovision of an Indoor All-weather Swimming Pool at Po
Leung Kok Camoes Tan Siu Lin Primary School at Yau Ma Tei.

Alteration and Addition (“A&A”), and Fitting-out

. A&A Works at Hung To Road in Kwun Tong;

. Office Renovation Works at 28th Floor for CDW Building in
Tsuen Wan;

. Renovation Works at Whampoa Garden;
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. Renovation Works at Citistore in Tseung Kwan O;

o Fitting-out for Hotel Guestrooms, Corridors, Lift Lobbies and Lift
Car at Tung Chung Town Lot No.2 & 11; and

. A&A Works At Commercial/Carpark Block, Hing Man Shopping
Centre, No. 188 Tai Tam Road.

Procurement

. A first phrase resort development contract in Danang, Vietnam,
with an area of approximately 1.1 million sgm, providing
entertainment facilities consultancy services as well as material
and facilities procurement services.

The total outstanding workload for contracts on hand, as of 31
December 2017, exceeded HK$1.4 billion, over two-thirds of which
would be completed in 2018. Due to lesser new order replenishment
during this year, the total outstanding work orders decreased from
approximately HK$2.2 billion to HK$1.4 billion this year. With
outstanding contracts on hand and our efforts to replenish orders,
management believes that the ISP business would deliver growth in
the coming years through the team’s commitment and dedication to
excellence. We will continue to focus on the core businesses (fitting
out, A&A, renovation, special construction project, demolition, etc)
and target at high end/hotel fitting-out and retail fitting-out business
with higher profit margin in the coming years.

After year end, ISP has been awarded a construction manager
service and general contractor contract for temple renovation project
in Kowloon Tong recently. ISP will provide professional construction
manager services at the pre-construction stage to manage project
design, project cost control, selection of building materials, plant and
equipment, project planning and construction schedule of works. The
renovation works for the temple will include interior renovations to the
8 levels of the building (comprising approximately 5,200 sgm),
improvements for the garden at ground level, replacement of the roof
system, mechanical & electrical plants and the exterior building
facade. The exterior building facade of the temple will be replaced in
its entirety and the expected project completion will take place by end
of 2020. Besides, ISP has also been awarded a construction of a
small size superstructure in Macau.

The controlling shareholder of the Company has been changed to
Champ Key after completion of acquisitions took place on 21
November 2016.
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Pursuant to Rules 26.1 and 13.5 of the Code on Takeovers and
Mergers and Share Buy-backs, Champ Key and parties acting in
concert are required to make mandatory unconditional cash offers for
all the issued ordinary shares (other than those already owned and/or
agreed to be acquired by Champ Key) (“Share Offer”) and to cancel
all 7,244,000 outstanding options (“Option Offer”) (collectively, the
“Offers”). As 80,000,000 convertible preference shares (“CPSs”) were
held by Champ Key as at 30 November 2016, no comparable offer
would be made in respect of the CPSs. The offer price of HK$1.12
per ordinary share under the Share Offer and the offer prices for the
Option Offer were set out as below:

(@ 6,814,000 options may be exercised at an exercise price of
HK$0.952 per ordinary share, the offer price for these options
was HK$0.168 each;

(b) 330,000 options may be exercised at an exercise price of
HK$0.860 per ordinary share, the offer price for these options
was HK$0.260 each; and

(c) 100,000 options may be exercised at an exercise price of
HK$0.850 per ordinary share, the offer price for these options
was HK$0.270 each.

The Offers were closed on 3 February 2017.

The adoption of Chinese name “SEIZEA B R A A", as the secondary
name of the Company to replace the previous Chinese name “$TE&%
L BB PR A R]” which was used for identification purposes only, was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting held on 19 May 2017 and took effect on 25 May 2017. The
Certificate of secondary name was issued by the Registrar of
Companies in Bermuda on 4 July 2017, certifying that “S 1A A R
N A" was registered as the secondary name of the Company on 25
May 2017 and the certificate of Registration of Alteration of Name of
Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by the Registrar of
Companies in Hong Kong on 18 July 2017. The Chinese stock short
name of the shares of the Company for trading on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) has been changed from
“HETBEE to “SEIE” with effect from 1 August 2017. The
English stock short name of the shares of the Company for trading on
the Stock Exchange remains unchanged as “SYNERGIS HOLD”. The
logo of the Company has been changed to reflect the change of
company name with effect from 1 August 2017 as well. The changes
of company name and logo are part of the re-branding exercise in light
of the change of controlling shareholder of the Company from Hsin
Chong to Champ Key.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of 31 December 2017, the total outstanding bank loan was
HK$162.4 million, which is scheduled to be repaid over the next three
years. This includes an outstanding balance of HK$60.0 million (of
which around $36.0 million is due over 1 year) relating to the banking
facility drawn down for acquiring the ISP business in November 2012.
The remaining sum represents working capital loans mainly to support
ISP operations and business development. During the year under
review, the Group’s sources of fund were generated primarily from
operating activities, financing activities including placing and existing
banking facilities.

On 12 May 2017, the Company entered into a placing agreement (as
supplemented by a side letter on 26 May 2017) with Kingston
Securities Limited and VMS Securities Limited (the “Placing
Agreement”) as the placing agents (the “Placing Agents”), pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to place through the Placing
Agents up to 69,520,000 placing shares (the “Placing Shares”) to not
fewer than six independent placees at the placing price of HK$1.09
per Placing Share (the “Placing Price”) (collectively, the “Placing”). The
Placing Price represented a discount of approximately 19.85% to the
closing price of HK$1.36 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the date of the Placing Agreement. The Placing was completed on
18 June 2017 and an aggregate of 69,520,000 Placing Shares were
issued under the general mandate granted to the Directors by the
shareholders at the AGM held on 20 May 2016. The aggregate
nominal value of the Placing Shares under the Placing should be
HK$6,952,000. The Company received the gross proceeds of
approximately HK$75.8 million from the Placing while the net
proceeds was approximately HK$73.9 million, which represents a net
issue price of HK$1.06 per Placing Share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SREsam M

The purpose of the Placing which raised approximately HK$73.9
million after expenses is to provide adequate buffer for the Group’s
working capital requirements in case that HK$63.4 million outstanding
receivables due from Hsin Chong under its settlement agreement with
the Group has not been received after taking into account the
expected operating cash inflow, available banking and other facilities.
The Group’s working capital requirements include operating
overheads and the upfront cash outlay (before receipt of payments
for certified works carried out) in respect of projects on hand and new
projects that may be awarded in the ISP business. The Group closely
manages its cash flow position to ensure that there is adequate cash
buffer to support new projects if awarded. As at the date of this
report, approximately HK$50.0 million out of the net Placing proceeds
was used for supporting the subcontractor payments of ISP business
and the balance of approximately HK$23.9 million has been remained
in a bank. The Directors considered that the terms of the Placing
Agreement (including the Placing Price and the placing commission)
are fair and reasonable based on the market conditions and in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The effects of the Placing on the capital structure of the Company are
more particularly depicted in note 22 to the financial information of
this report. The full details of the aforesaid transaction can also be
referred to in the announcements of the Company dated 14 May
2017, 26 May 2017, 6 June 2017 and 13 June 2017.

The gearing ratios and liquidity have been improved immediately after
completion of Placing. The management will continue to proactively
monitor the financial position of the Group so as to maintain a
sufficient buffer in financial capacity while taking advantage of
attractive business opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Interest costs on bank borrowings are primarily charged based on a
spread over HIBOR. With regard to the current portfolio of
businesses, management expects that financial requirements for the
future will be met from a combination of shareholders’ equity and
banking facilities. The Group would continue to manage our financial
position and maintain sufficient working capital and liquidity to get
ready for any business opportunities and to prepare for the challenges
in future.

Financial position (HK$’000)

BRENRRDR

RITEE 2SR AEBREBRITRERS
MEEAE - RRBEXHHAMS - EEER
HIR R TS 5 SR B SA R R M 2 I IRI TR B ¢
o AREREEEREREMBINON - YRR
REEBERRREE & ALEE I RAR
ARPKBAIE o 24 -

BIEMRR GE®¥ T 5T) 2017 2016
Total assets EEHRE 1,120,897 1,197,562
Receivables and other assets FEWERSR R EMmEE 864,921 841,996
Deposits, cash and cash equivalents FH - BHeLBEeEE 116,198 129,284
Current assets RBEE 981,119 971,280
Net assets EEEE 250,827 225,550
Current liabilities hEas 868,442 963,278
Bank loans BITER 162,402 204,000
Gearing ratios and liquidity EERBLZERFHES

Net debt to net assets FEEREEFELE 18.4% 33.1%
Total debt to net assets BweFEHEEFEILE 64.7% 90.4%
Current ratio mEhLL = 1.1 1.0
Per share data sRER

Shares in issue (all classes) BTG (FTEER) 504,850,000 430,544,000
Basic losses per share (HK cents) BAREAREE (BEI) (13.8) (1.7
Diluted losses per share (HK cents) EFRESERE (B (13.8) (11.7)
Dividend per share (HK cents) SRR B (B = 1.5
Net assets per share (HK cents) SR E EFE (BEAL) 49.7 52.4

The Group adopts a conservative approach in the management of its
financial risks and resources, under the supervision of the Executive

Committee.

Interest rate risk arising from bank borrowings is low as interest rates
are fixed for short-term periods to take advantage of the lower rates
thus available. Interest rates will be subject to fluctuation at the time

of renewal.

o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SIRB5Yem & D

The Group’s business is conducted primarily in Hong Kong, and the
majority of its assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, therefore it has minimal foreign currency exposure. The
growth in Mainland China has been funded via permanent capital
injection, which is for the long-term and as such, foreign currency
hedging is considered unnecessary.

It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative transactions for
speculative purposes. It is also the Group’s policy not to invest its
financial resources in financial products, including hedge funds or
similar instruments, with significant underlying leverage or derivative
exposure.

The Group operates a centralised cash management system. Cash
balances surplus to immediate requirements are mainly placed as
short-term bank deposits with a number of licensed banks in Hong
Kong.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed a total of 5,695 staff
(2016: 5,976) in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Employees are
remunerated according to their job responsibilities and the market
pay trends, with a discretionary annual performance bonus as variable
pay for rewarding individual performance and contributions to the
respective group’s achievement and results.
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MR. KINGSTON CHU CHUN HO
(aged 32)

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho (“Mr. Chu”)
was appointed as an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company with
effect from 9 March 2017. He is also a
member of each of the Executive
Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Chu is a licensed person under Securities and Futures Ordinance
for Type 1 (dealing in securities) and Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) regulated activities for Kingston Securities Limited and
Kingston Corporate Finance Limited, respectively. Mr. Chu is a member
of Guangxi Committee of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, a member of General Committee of The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies, vice president of Hong Kong CPPCC Youth
Association, Youth Committee Vice Director of HKCPPCC (Provincial)
Members Association, vice president of Federation of Hong Kong
Guangxi Community Organisations, vice chairman of Hong Kong
Guangdong Youth Association, honorary chairman of Hong Kong
Guangxi Youth Organisations, Youth Committee Chairman of Hong
Kong Federation of Dongguan Associations and a director of Hong
Kong Securities Association. Mr. Chu holds a Bachelor Degree of
Business from the University of Southern California in the U.S.A.

Mr. Chu has been an executive director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong)
Limited (stock code: 444) (“Sincere HK”), a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board”), since 29 May 2012. Mr. Chu has also been a director of
Sincere Watch Limited, the immediate holding company of Sincere HK
since 21 May 2012. In addition, he has been an executive director of
Kingston Financial Group Limited (stock code: 1031), a company listed
on the Main Board, since 21 August 2015 and a non-executive director
of New Concepts Holdings Limited (stock code: 2221), a company
listed on the Main Board, since 8 September 2016.

Mr. Chu is the son of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, the ultimate beneficial owner
of Champ Key, which is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS
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MR. TERENCE LEUNG SIU
CHEONG

BSc, MHKIE, MCIOB, MHKICM,
ACIArb, R.P.E. (aged 52)

Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong (“Mr.
Leung”) was appointed as an
Executive Director with effect from 10
April 2015. He subsequently was (i)
appointed as a Co-Managing Director
with effect from 1 September 2015 and re-designated to a Managing
Director with effect from 5 April 2016; and (i) appointed as the Deputy
Chairman with effect from 9 March 2017. He is also a member of the
Executive Committee.

Mr. Leung is the managing director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a member of the supervisory board of a joint
venture of the Group.

Mr. Leung is responsible for the business development and project
monitoring of all addition and alteration works, renovation works,
fitting-out works, conservation and revitalisation works, and various
construction and special projects. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers and a registered professional engineer. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Leung was a senior management member of
Hsin Chong Group Holdings Limited, where he established and
managed the interiors and special projects division. He has over 30
years of experience in project planning and monitoring, building
construction and coordination, cost control, renovation and fitting-out
works.
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MR. RONALD LAU MAN TAK
(aged 48)

Mr. Ronald Lau Man Tak (“Mr. Lau”)
has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director
since 28 September 2017. He is also
the chairman of the Audit Committee,
and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Lau graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy in November 1991. Mr. Lau
has more than 15 years of experience in finance and accounting. He
has been an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since September 1997, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since July 2002, a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors since August
2012 and a member and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute since April 2000 and December
2015, respectively.

Mr. Lau is currently the chairman and an executive director of TEM
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8346), a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of the Stock Exchange, and
an independent non-executive director of Kingston Financial Group
Limited (stock code: 1031), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He is also a non-executive director and
chairman of REF Holdings Limited (stock code: 1631), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lau was an
executive director, the chairman, authorised representative and
compliance officer of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock
code: 8148) from June 2012 to September 2014, which is a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He was also an
independent non-executive director of each of Sincere Watch (Hong
Kong) Limited (stock code: 444) from June 2012 to December
2016, Kong Sun Holdings Limited (stock code: 295) from
September 2008 to April 2014, AMCO United Holding Limited (stock
code: 630) from October 2010 to June 2015 and KuangChi Science
Limited (stock code: 439) from March 2008 to September 2015,
which are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.
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MR. ERIC LEE HON MAN
(aged 51)

Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man (“Mr. Lee”) has
been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director since 28
September 2017. He is a member of
the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee.
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Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive director of TEM
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8346), a company listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange, and is employed by Orient Finance Holdings
(Hong Kong) Limited as managing director of investment banking
department. Mr. Lee graduated from the University of Birmingham,
the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree of engineering in
electronic and electrical engineering in July 1988, and obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in December 1993.

Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience in the corporate finance
industry. From August 2015 to February 2017, Mr. Lee worked at LY
Capital Limited, a company engaging in advising on corporate
finance, as a director. From April 2002 to November 2014, Mr. Lee
worked at First Shanghai Capital Limited, a company engaging in
advising on corporate finance, and his last position was managing
director. From July 1997 to March 2002, Mr. Lee worked at DBS Asia
Capital Limited, a company engaging in advising on corporate
finance, and his last position was vice president.

MY T
(51%%)

FHEE(TFRE]) B2017F9H28HE
BEZERRRBIZBUIFRITES - RRBEXK

ZBe ¥FMZBERRERZBEKE -

7= 5 438 A TEM Holdings Limited (A3 F1%
BRABERAR) (BRHAE : 8346) 2 B IEH
TEE  ZARRBXATGEM £ @ I
REFRbZER (B8 BRAR - BEREAR
THEEREIE - ZREMI1988F7THEE
REBRAPEHGADE  ETREBLEN(ETR
BHWTIR) WH1993F 12 AEFEBH X
AETHEEEL B -

TREETPEMETERB0FLR - Tt
HR20156FE8AE2017F2 A ARBE LR
RARINES  ZARNERCERERER
B o f2002F 4 BE2014F 11 f » AT
BE—LERMERRAT  ZARMERDE
BERHER MEEBIIBUAESEL
o 1997 F7 A E2002F3 7 TR AER
TREEDMNREBRAT @ ZARKERD
¥REREER  MESMBITRALARIBE -

Y EHRBEE



FEERERAR —T—LFFW

DR. EDWARD WONG YUN KUEN
(aged 60)

Dr. Edward Wong Yun Kuen (“Dr.
Wong”) has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director
since 1 December 2017. He is the
chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Dr. Wong received a Ph.D. Degree from Harvard University, and was
“Distinguished Visiting Scholar” at Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania. He has worked in financial industries in the United
States and Hong Kong for many years, and has considerable
experience in corporate finance, investment and derivative products.
He is a member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He
is also an Adjunct Professor of Syracuse University, USA.

Dr. Wong is the chairman and an executive director of UBA
Investments Limited and Far East Holdings International Limited, an
executive director of Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Ngai Shun Holdings Limited), a non-executive director of
China Sandi Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive
director of Kingston Financial Group Limited, DeTai New Energy
Group Limited (formerly known as Guocang Group Limited), Kaisun
Energy Group Limited, GT Group Holdings Limited (formerly known
as China Yunnan Tin Minerals Group Company Limited) and Tech Pro
Technology Development Limited. Dr. Wong was also an independent
non-executive director of Sincere Watch (Hong Kong) Limited from
September 2012 to November 2017, Bauhaus International (Holdings)
Limited from October 2004 to December 2016, China Sandi Holdings
Limited from September 2009 to September 2016, Far East Holdings
International Limited from December 2014 to July 2017, Huge China
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Harmony Asset Limited) from
September 2004 to January 2015, Kong Sun Holdings Limited from
April 2007 to November 2014, Huajun Holdings Limited (formerly
known as New Island Development Holdings Limited) from October
2010 to September 2014 and KuangChi Science Limited (formerly
known as Climax International Company Limited) from June 2007 to
August 2014. All the companies mentioned above are listed on the
Stock Exchange.
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MR. KAN FOOK YEE
GBS, SBS (aged 81)

Mr. Kan Fook Yee (“Mr. Kan”) has
been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director since 27
September 2008. He is also the
chairman of the Nomination
Committee, and a member of the
Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Kan has ceased his barrister practice from 1 September 2014
and is now the principal and proprietor of F.Y. Kan Property
Consultancy & ADR Services Co.

Mr. Kan continues to hold his membership as a Fellow Member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and a Fellow Member of the
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators.
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PROPERTY AND FACILITY MANAGEMENT BUSINESS

MR. WILLIAM YEUNG
WAI LING

MBA, BSSc, MRICS (aged 62)

Mr. William Yeung Wai Ling (“Mr.
Yeung”) joined the Group as
Chief Operation Officer with effect
from 5 April 2016. He
subsequently was re-designated
to Managing Director for the property and facility management
business of the Company with effect from 29 June 2016.

Mr. Yeung is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and
mainly responsible for strategic planning and implementation,
business development, as well as monitoring and improving
operational management of the Group.

Mr. Yeung has over 32 years of senior management experience in
both Hong Kong and Mainland China. He held senior positions in a
number of Hong Kong companies listed on the Main Board.

Mr. Yeung holds a Bachelor’s degree in Social Sciences from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is also
a member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS).

MR. WILSON WONG SIU
KWAN

(aged 59)

Mr. Wilson Wong Siu Kwan (“Mr.
Wong”) is the Deputy Managing
Director (China) and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the
Company. He is responsible for
the overall strategic planning, business development and
management operations of the real estate service business in
Mainland China. He is a member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors and the Chartered Institute of Housing. Mr. Wong joined
the Group in 2009 and has over 39 years of extensive experience in
real estate service in Hong Kong, Taiwan and Mainland China.
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MR. TERENCE NG CHUN
MAN

(aged 52)

Mr. Terence Ng Chun Man (“Mr.
Ng”) joined the Group as Director
— Ancillary Services Business.
He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and
responsible for the strategic
planning, business development
and overall operation of the business.

Mr. Ng obtained a Bachelor degree of Social Sciences from the
University of Hong Kong. He has been a director of Business
Environmental Council (BEC) and is the vice chairman of the
Federation of Environmental and Hygienic Services (FEHS). He is
also a member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives
Association (HKPASEA). Mr. Ng has over 22-year experience in top
management position including ancillary services business
management in listed companies.

MR. NELSON HO SIU
LEUNG

MBA, FRICS, F.PFM, FHKIoD,
MHKIS, Beam Pro, Green
Building Faculty (aged 52)

Mr. Nelson Ho Siu Leung (“Mr.
Ho”) joined the Group on 11 May
2016 as a director of Synergis
Facility Management Limited and
is responsible for the overall
strategic planning, business development and management operation
of the facility management business.

Mr. Ho graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
qualified as a Chartered Building Surveyor and Chartered Project
Management Surveyor. He is also a green building expert and
appointed as a member of Green Building Faculty of Hong Kong
Green Building Council and a nominated director of the Beam Society
Limited. He is a founding director and the past president of the Hong
Kong Institute of Facility Management; and a founding director and
the founding chairman of buildingSMART Hong Kong. Mr. Ho
contributes much of his time to public service and is currently a
member (2012-2018) of the Appeal Tribunal Panel (Building) of the
Development Bureau, Task Force Member (since 2012) of the Task
Force on Energy Management System (EnMS) Certification of the
Hong Kong Accreditation Service, Innovation and Technology
Commission and a member (2011-2017) of the Panel of Advisors on
Building Management Disputes, Home Affairs Department.
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Mr. Ho possesses over 29 years of experience in the project and
facility management industry and had served in various renowned
developers, major consulting firms and public organisations in Hong
Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ho had established recognition
from the facility management industry. During his service in the Hong
Kong Academy for Performing Arts, his team won the United Nations’
Cultural Award in Heritage in 2008 with the restoration project of the
Bethanie. During his service in the Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation, his team won the HKIFM EFMA
Grand Award twice in 2012 and 2015 and the HKIS QPFMA Grand
Award in 2011, and is the Winner of Sustainability Initiative of the
RICS Hong Kong Property Award 2012, the Winner of Building
Surveyors Award 2015 in the Maintenance and Repair Works (Client’s
Representative) Category. Moreover, Mr. Ho had led his team to
certify for Hong Kong’s first ISO 50001 Energy Management System
in 2011 for the Hong Kong Science Park. Mr. Ho led the Synergis
facility management team won four awards in the EFMA in 2017.

INTERIORS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS BUSINESS

MR. DAVID CHAN TAT WAI
(aged 58)

Mr. David Chan Tat Wai, (“Mr.
Chan”) is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and
responsible for the strategic
planning, business development
and overall operation of interiors
and special projects business.

Mr. Chan is also responsible for the business development and
project monitoring of certain alteration and addition works, renovation
works, fitting-out works, facade works and special projects. He is a
member of the Chartered Institute of Building and Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers.

Mr. Chan joined the Group in 2010 and has over 36 years of
experience in project planning and monitoring, building
construction and coordination, estimating and budgeting, cost
control, procurement, renovation and fitting-out works.
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MR. DANNY TSUI CHI HOU
(aged 53)

Mr. Danny Tsui Chi Hou (“Mr.
Tsui”) is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and
responsible for the strategic
planning, business development
and overall operation of interiors
and special projects business.

Mr. Tsui graduated from the United Kingdom and qualified as a
member of each of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors,
Chartered Association of Building Engineers and Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors since his graduation. He is also an authorised person
and registered inspector under the Hong Kong Buildings Ordinance.
Mr. Tsui is currently appointed as a member (2015-2018) of the
Appeal Tribunal Panel (Buildings) under the Planning and Lands of the
Development Bureau of the Government Secretariat.

Mr. Tsui possesses over 30 years of experience in the building
construction industry in the areas of project planning, design and
construction management with exposure in Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland China and South East Asia. He has been involved in various
mega sized projects including several entertainment projects in
Macau, theme park and property developments in Singapore,
numerous international brand hotel developments in various provinces
of Mainland China, and a wide range of new build, fitting-out, and
alteration and addition work projects in Hong Kong territory.

MR. YU CHI WING
(aged 50)

Mr. Yu Chi Wing (“Mr. Yu”) is a
director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company and responsible for
the strategic planning, business
development and overall
operation of interiors and special
projects business.
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Mr. Yu is also responsible for the business development, tendering,
project monitoring and commercial issues of all alteration and
addition works, renovation works, fitting-out works, conservation and
revitalization works and special projects. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Yu had worked for over 24 years in Hsin Chong Group Holdings
Limited and was its senior staff member. He has over 29 years of
experience in building construction and coordination, cost control,
renovation and fitting-out works.

MS. CECILIA CHIU MEI ZIN
CIPS(UK), MIPS(HK) (aged 59)

Ms. Cecilia Chiu Mei Zin (“Ms.
Chiu”) is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and
is responsible for overall strategic
planning, business development

‘ and operation of the Group’s
procurement and supply chain
services.

Ms. Chiu is a member of the Chartered Institute of Procurement &
Supply of the United Kingdom and a member of Institute of
Purchasing & Supply of Hong Kong. Being a procurement and
supply chain professional, Ms. Chiu possesses over 31 years of
solid procurement and supply chain experience at top
management capacity regionally and globally in several multi-
national listed companies.

She was the head in charge of procurement and supply chain for
different industries, majority of which are construction and hospitality
industries including various sizeable construction projects in Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China and South East Asia plus several mega
integrated resort projects in Las Vegas, Macau and Singapore.
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MR. QUENTIN NG CHUN
TUN

BA (Int) (aged 50)

Mr. Quentin Ng Chun Tun (“Mr.
Ng”) is a director of P1 Design
Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, and responsible for
the operation of interior design
consultancy and fitting-out design
project management.

B
"I

Graduated in interior design from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, Mr. Ng’'s professional career spans over 27 years which
cover diversified project scope ranging from commercial office,
shopping mall project to prestigious hospitality interiors in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and South East Asia, such as Park Hyatt Tokyo in
Japan, and Westgate Mall Shopping Plaza in Shanghai.

Mr. Ng was formerly an entrepreneur and he possesses insight into
the full spectrum of the design process, organisation skills and market
sense. Mr. Ng pays attention to every detail in his design project and
is passionate in pursuit of modern design excellence.

FINANCIAL SERVICE

MS. MANDY HUI SUK
MAN

MBA, FCCA, FCPA (aged 42)

Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man (“Ms.
Hui”) is the Financial Director of
the Group and is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. She is a Certified
Public Accountant in Hong Kong.

Ms. Hui is responsible for overseeing the finance and accounting
operations, budgetary control, group financial control and treasury
management. She also assists the Board for merger and acquisition
projects. She has around 20 years of experience in corporate
accounting, financing and taxation. Ms. Hui joined the Group in 2006
and prior to that, she got extensive experience in both audit and
accounting. She is also responsible for company secretarial practice
of the Group and is the primary corporate contact person of company
secretarial function for the Company. Ms. Hui holds a Master’s
Degree of Business Administration from Hong Kong Baptist
University. She is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant.
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The Company recognises the interests of and its responsibility to one
of its most important stakeholders — the shareholders. Synergis is
committed to upholding high standards of corporate governance as a
means of protecting and enhancing shareholder value and ensuring
the integrity of operations of the Group. Synergis’s corporate
governance standards are built on the principles of independence,
accountability, transparency and fairness with an appropriate system
of checks and balances.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles of the code provisions and
certain recommended best practices set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on Stock Exchange.

Throughout the year, the Company has fully complied with all code
provisions of the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct for regulating
securities transactions by the Directors. Having been made specific
enquiry by the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Board has further adopted the Model Code as the written
guidelines for regulating securities transactions by the senior
management (whose names appear in the annual report of the
Company) and certain employees (collectively, the “Relevant
Employees”) of the Group. The Board believes that the Relevant
Employees may, by virtue of their positions, likely be in possession of
unpublished inside information of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised six Directors, including two Executive Directors and four
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The names of the Directors are set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)
Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
(appointed as Deputy Chairman with effect from 9 March 2017)
Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung (former Chairman)
(resigned with effect from 9 March 2017)
Mr. Lui Chun Pong
(resigned with effect from 9 March 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ronald Lau Man Tak

(appointed with effect from 28 September 2017)
Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man

(appointed with effect from 28 September 2017)
Dr. Edward Wong Yun Kuen

(appointed with effect from 1 December 2017)
Mr. Kan Fook Yee
Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan

(resigned with effect from 1 December 2017)
Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong

(resigned with effect from 1 January 2018)
Mr. David Yu Hon To

(resigned with effect from 1 January 2018)

An updated list of directors identifying their roles and functions is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company (www.synergis.com.hk).

Coming from diverse businesses and professional backgrounds, the
Board members possess a balance of skills and expertise appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Group and they are
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. Save as disclosed in
the Profiles of Directors set out on pages 25 to 30 of this annual
report, there is no relationship among the Board members.
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The Company currently has four Independent Non-executive
Directors representing more than one-third of the total number of
Board members and is in compliance with the requirement under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. The views of the Independent Non-
executive Directors carry weight in the Board'’s decisions, and their
participation helps the Board exercise judgment, make decisions and
act objectively in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has given to the
Company an annual confirmation of independence in compliance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are and have remained
independent. Mr. Ronald Lau Man Tak, chairman of the Audit
Committee, has the appropriate accounting and financial
management expertise required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The Board members, including the names of all the Independent
Non-executive Directors, are expressly identified in all corporate
communications which disclose the names of the Directors of the
Company.

The Board has an ultimate oversight of the Group’s activities. Its
primary functions are to set and direct the Company’s strategy and to
monitor and measure the management’s performance. It is
accountable for the overall strategic development of the Group with
the objective to enhance shareholder value. Material matters are
reserved for the Board’s considerations or decisions which include,
among other things, overall strategy of the Group, business plans,
annual budgets, significant capital expenditure, interim and annual
results and reports, dividend policy and payments, material
acquisitions, disposals or investment proposals, directors’
appointments, re-appointments or removal, and other material
transactions.

The Board has delegated certain of its responsibilities to the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee,
Special Committee and Executive Committee. It has also delegated
the day-to-day operations of the Group’s business to the senior
management. Delegation of duties to the Board committees and daily
business operations to the management are discussed on pages 46
to 54 of this report.
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Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing. Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung was the
Chairman of the Board until 8 March 2017, and Mr. Kingston Chu
Chun Ho has been appointed as the Chairman of the Board with
effect from 9 March 2017. Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong and Mr.
William Yeung Wai Ling have been appointed as Managing Directors
of ISP and PFM business of the Company respectively.

At all times, the chairmen and chief executives are not related to each
other and there are clear divisions among their responsibilities with a
view to achieving a balance of power and authority. The Chairman of
the Board provides leadership to the Board in terms of formulating
policies and strategies, and discharges those duties set out in code
provision A.2 of the CG Code. The Managing Directors have the
overall responsibility of implementing the decisions, policies and
strategies approved by the Board, and overseeing the Group’s
business and operations. The duties of the Chairman and the
Managing Directors are set out in their respective service agreements
entered into with the Company.

With the support from the Executive Directors and the Company
Secretary, the Chairman of the Board ensures that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising from Board meetings and receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner.

The Board has assumed the responsibility to consider the
appointment, re-election and removal of the Directors. The Board set
up a Nomination Committee in 2011 to recommend the appointment,
re-election and removal of the Directors.

All the Independent Non-executive Directors have entered into letters
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years subject to
the requirements of the Listing Rules and the bye-laws of the
Company (“Bye-laws”), including the requirement of retirement by
rotation and re-election or standing for re-election at AGMs of the
Company at least once every three years. The term is renewable
upon expiry.
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Any new Director to be appointed by the Company shall be provided
with information on duties and obligations of director, relevant
regulatory requirements and the Group’s business affairs. All Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting or next following AGM of the Company respectively and shall
then be eligible for re-election at the meeting according to the Bye-
laws of the Company.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular Board
meetings for next year are scheduled approaching the end of each
calendar year in order to facilitate the Directors to plan for attendance
of the meetings. Additional Board meetings will be convened, as and
when required, to deal with ad hoc issues. Any Director who is not
able to present physically may participate at any Board meeting
through electronic means of communication, such as conference
telephone or other similar communication equipment, in accordance
with the Bye-laws.

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least 14 days
in advance, and reasonable notice is given for other Board meetings.
The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the Board to prepare
the meeting notice and agenda. Each Director may include any item
in the agenda. The agenda, accompanied by meeting papers with
sufficient and reliable information, are sent to each Director not less
than three days before the date of a Board meeting to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed,
except where a Board meeting is convened on a very urgent basis to
consider any urgent ad hoc matter.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of the
Board meetings, drafts and final versions of which will be circulated to
Directors for comment and records, respectively, and in both cases,
within a reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board at the meeting
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by the
Directors or dissenting view (if any) expressed. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and open for inspection
to any Director on request.
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All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Directors have
full and timely access to all relevant information, including reports
from the Board committees and reports from the management. They
are also provided with updates on the latest developments of the
Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory changes and
matters of relevance to the Directors in discharging their duties as
and when appropriate.

To assist the Directors to discharge their duties, the Board has
adopted written procedures in case any Director wishes to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

Board approval is also given by circulation of resolution in writing
pursuant to the Bye-laws on urgent matter which requires decision in
a tight timeframe and hence convening a Board meeting is difficult or
not practicable. In the case where a resolution in writing is circulated,
sufficient information and explanatory materials will also be provided
to the Directors at the same time.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter (including material transaction with connected persons) which
the Board determines to be material, the Board will hold a meeting (as
long as time is allowed to convene a Board meeting) to consider the
relevant matter first before any subsequent approval is given by way
of circulation of resolution in writing.

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and officers’ liabilities has
been arranged to protect the Directors and officers of the Group.

FIEEENERBARAWMEZRE  MARMW
EERTHRRESSEFERELMAEMRR
AR B PR - EFHRER 2 EEUSAH
BHEER  BREFEETNZESIHE
REBEz®E - RETEERRHEE LT
BRAZ & EMREMBRENREERDIE

PHEHES  URBREFRTREBERR
ZEH-

SHPEZEETREZRE EFSCKEMNE
HEF  BEMEFASRKBVEXER &
RAIBMARE AT

WAEEZFREARBRERRAELRE  XLH
HHARTEARESTE S AIREHAR
ExernEBENEmRZ T AMESRE
B HEHERRER - RO ZER REHAM
HERESREETES -

FRETERRIEFTER —FH(BEERE
ATHEARG)THEEEFTERR/ERNT
SARE  EEERELRTER(REBAR
AERFEREEESHR) AN EERBER
BT @ BB NERHEERET e TEAL
JE ©

AEBEBEEEZEZNSABETER
% REEERSHBBREHRERRE -



AERERERIE T LFFRH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Attendances of Meetings

Seven Board meetings, three Audit Committee Meetings, three
Remuneration Committee meetings, one Nomination Committee
meeting and one general meeting were held during the year.
Attendances of these meetings by Directors are set out below:

/'\—/\— \

@ B0 :I/:&CJ

SRIBFE
Z’-‘&W %&%TT?/Aﬁ%E Eﬂ%‘i‘/z 3//\%1@_

-BR283 SAFMZESSE 1ARS
ZEgg a&hfd&iﬁﬁ TREINEEH
FaEaRzB)

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend

B/ BERLEREE
Audit Remuneration Nomination Special General

Board Committee = Committee = Committee = Committee™ Meeting
Name of Directors ESn4 EXE ENRZEEE FHZEEE REZEE  KHEEEY  RRAE®
Chairman I
Kingston Chu Chun Ho' REE 6/6 n/a 3/3 11 n/a 11
Joseph Choi Kin Hung? ks 11 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Executive Directors HiTES
Terence Leung Siu Cheong 2 & /7 n/a n/a n/a n/a 1
Lui Chun Pong® aiRe 11 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Independent BIFBTES

Non-executive Directors

Ronald Lau Man Tak? B3z 11 n/a 11 n/a n/a n/a
Eric Lee Hon Man® FHY 11 n/a 11 n/a n/a n/a
Edward Wong Yun Kuen* HEE 11 n/a 11 n/a n/a n/a
Kan Fook Yee Gl 7/7 3/3 3/3 11 0/0 1/1
Stephen lp Shu Kwan’ BT 6/6 n/a 2/2 11 0/0 1/1
Wong Tsan Kwong? R 7 3/3 n/a n/a 0/0 11
David Yu Hon To® aEEe 77 3/3 n/a n/a 0/0 11
Notes: B3

10

n/a:

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho has been appointed as an Executive Director and the
Chairman with effect from 9 March 2017.

Mr. Ronald Lau Man Tak has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 28 September 2017.

Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 28 September 2017.

Dr. Edward Wong Yun Kuen has been appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director with effect from 1 December 2017.

Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung resigned as an Executive Director and the Chairman
with effect from 9 March 2017.

Mr. Lui Chun Pong resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 9 March
2017.

Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
with effect from 1 December 2017.

Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 1 January 2018.

Mr. David Yu Hon To resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 1 January 2018.

To streamline the structure of the Board Committees, the Company ceased to
have the Special Committee with effect from 28 September 2017.

not applicable
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During the year under review, the Chairman of the Board also held a
meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the
Executive Directors present.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that Independent
Non-executive Directors and other Non-executive Directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. All Independent Non-executive Directors
attended the AGM of the Company held on 19 May 2017.

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company. The Company provides all Board members with
monthly updates on the Group’s performance and financial position.

Directors are aware of the requirement under the code provision A.6.5
of CG Code regarding continuous professional development. During
the year, the Company provided reading materials to the Directors for
self-study. In addition, the Directors have attended external courses,
conference or luncheons organised by various organisations.
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Directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial updates
and other reading materials provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices, and relevant legal
and regulatory developments. A record of the Directors’ participation
in various continuous professional development programme is kept
by the company secretarial department. A summary of training
received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2017 is
according to the records provided by the Directors as follows:

/'\—/\— \
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ERNBHERSEIRNS §ALBRIBHE
SRR EMEALESaERRIEMER

RARBESFBERONEEN 1 HEES
ETARESLHRER WS BATNE

HRARTF

BENEHE017TF12A3BILEFE

FrE Bl E (REE S ATRENTER
2O

Giving talks or
attending seminars/

Reading newspapers,
journals and updates
relating to the economy,
general business,
accounting, laws, rules

conferences/forums and regulations, etc
BB RS -

BITHEER —REE 5 %2

ﬁlﬁ?ﬁﬁé‘fé/ BRAIKERESE

Name of Directors ESnA Ve ZHE - HIRSHFER

Kingston Chu Chun Ho' R Vv Vv

Terence Leung Siu Cheong 2IE V v

Ronald Lau Man Tak? 2| fE2 v v

Eric Lee Hon Man? RS v Vv

Edward Wong Yun Kuen? = Vv v

Kan Fook Yee ki vV Vv

Joseph Choi Kin Hung® g DEE V Vv

Lui Chun Pong? E iR FBe Vv Vv

Stephen Ip Shu Kwan’ = 0p v Vv

Wong Tsan Kwong? Y Sit v Vv

David Yu Hon To® BEEe vV Vv
Notes: B3

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho has been appointed as an Executive Director and the
Chairman with effect from 9 March 2017.

Mr. Ronald Lau Man Tak has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 28 September 2017.

Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 28 September 2017.

Dr. Edward Wong Yun Kuen has been appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director with effect from 1 December 2017.

Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung resigned as an Executive Director and the Chairman
with effect from 9 March 2017.

Mr. Lui Chun Pong resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 9 March
2017.

Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
with effect from 1 December 2017.

Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 1 January 2018.

Mr. David Yu Hon To resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with
effect from 1 January 2018.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Each of the Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Executive Committee, is to assist in the execution of the Board’s
responsibilities and to oversee particular aspect of the Group’s affairs.
Each Board committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties properly, and holds meetings in accordance with
the Bye-laws, its specific written terms of reference and, where
applicable, the proceedings of Board meeting.

The Audit Committee currently comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors, and Mr. Ronald Lau Man Tak acts as the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The members of Audit Committee
during the year under review were:

Mr. Ronald Lau Man Tak (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2018)
Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man
(appointed with effect from 1 December 2017)
Dr. Edward Wong Yun Kuen
(appointed with effect from 1 December 2017)
Mr. Kan Fook Yee
Mr. David Yu Hon To (former Chairman)
(resigned with effect from 1 January 2018)
Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong
(resigned with effect from 1 January 2018)

None of the Audit Committee members is or has been a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors for the past one
year.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for conducting an
independent and objective review of the financial reporting process,
internal controls and audit function with emphasis on:

(i) appraise the quality of the audit effort of the Company’s internal
and external auditors;

(i)  serve as an independent and objective party to review the
financial information presented by management to
shareholders, regulators and the general public;

(i) ascertain the adequacy of the Company’s systems of risk
management and internal control which management and the
Board have established; and

s%8
ExZEe(EREZBT HHZEg .
RAZBERHT éz\a)i’]ﬁﬂéﬁﬂﬂiﬂﬁ§$
SCRM WEREEAREEHEIR—HTE
8l SEEFZ8eHERRRERER A
@?ﬁimﬁ%ﬁﬁi\ﬁ&f WREAA - HSEE®E
BREENEFSRFREF(WER) B#1TE

2
22
FE e

08

DR

EVZESRNANEBE Y IFRITESMAMN
BNEEREEEERZEQTIR - OEFE

|
W BZZEGNRENT

Bk ()
(8201841 A1 HEEEERT)
£
<§2m7¢1zﬁ1at £1)
(B2017F 12 A1 BREESE)
SRR A

BIEE R (BTEE)
(B201841 A1 H#EEHT)
(B201841 A1 BEE/T)

MEEZZEENERFIANBE—FEER

ARRREINEZBEI ZAARBA -
BERZBeTIZABMMBHRRIERF - AAE

h&%’fi%ﬁui&ﬁ%ﬁ&@%ﬁZ*ﬁ%ﬁ C WEE
INPNINE

) FHEEARFABRINEREE 2 EZT
(SEESE

i) UBIRFBESOHEZEEERER -
EEREBRRAR2RMBER

iy ErEEENREETGRIMAAFER
BEENNDEZERRAEERD '&



ABREZERERAE —T—LFFR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(iv)  serve as useful channel of communication between the Board
and the external and internal auditors on matters relating to and
arising out of the external and internal audit.

The authority and duties of the Audit Committee are set out in its
specific written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, among other
things, recommending to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment or removal of the Company’s external auditor and on its
remuneration; reviewing the Company’s interim and annual financial
statements and other financial reports; and reviewing the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control procedures (including
monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function) and risk
management systems. The Audit Committee has explicit authority to
investigate any activity within its duties and responsibilities and the
authority to obtain outside legal or other independent professional
advice if it considers necessary.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. During the year,
three Audit Committee meetings were held. Attendances of the
meetings have been disclosed on page 43 of this report.

During the year, the Audit Committee members reviewed (i) the audit
strategy memorandum from the external auditor; (ii) with the
participation of the internal and external auditors and the
management, the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group; and (jii) with the participation of the internal and external
auditors and the management, the interim and annual results and the
related financial statements of the Company with a view to ensuring
that these financial statements were prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles and standards generally accepted in Hong
Kong. The Audit Committee also considered the reports from the
external auditor on the scope and findings of its independent review
of the interim financial statements and audit of the annual financial
statements.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee’s view on re-appointment of external auditor, and they
both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the
ensuing year at the 2018 AGM of the Company.
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The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five Directors, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, and Dr.
Edward Wong Yun Kuen acts as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The members of the Remuneration Committee during the
year under review were:

Dr. Edward Wong Yun Kuen (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 1 December 2017)
Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho
(appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)
Mr. Ronald Lau Man Tak
(appointed with effect from 1 December 2017)
Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man
(appointed with effect from 1 December 2017)
Mr. Kan Fook Yee
Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan (former Chairman)
(resigned with effect from 1 December 2017)
Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung
(resigned with effect from 9 March 2017)

The authority and duties of the Remuneration Committee are set out
in its specific written terms of reference. Full text of the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for reviewing
the remuneration policy of the Group and the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management of the Company. Its duties
are summarised below:

(i) make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(i) review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(i)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management;

(iv)  make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
Non-executive Directors;
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consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities, and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

review and approve compensation arrangement, relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year, three Remuneration Committee meetings were held.
Attendances of the meetings have been disclosed on page 43 of this
report.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee members reviewed (i)
the remuneration packages of the newly appointed Executive

Director,

Independent Non-executive Directors and senior

management; (i) the salaries of Executive Directors and business
segment heads for the year ending 2018; (iii) the salary increment of
the general staff for the year ending 2018; (iv) the directors’ fees for
the year ending 31 December 2018; and (v) recommended the
aforesaid matters to the Board for approval.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December
2017 is set out below:

BECEEATAZTANEXEBA5E - KA
THEESEEEABREE2017F12 A31H
IEFERFENAAR

Number of

Within the band of A BN F R individuals
AE

up to HK$1,000,000 #5#1,000,000 T IA T 17
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 75 # 1,000,001 JLE 7B # 2,000,000 7T 18
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 75 2 000,001 JTTZE A 3,000,000 7T 3

The Group sets its remuneration policy by making reference to the
prevailing market conditions and benchmark of the industry, and by
formulating a performance-based reward system. It is to ensure that
the Group is able to attract, retain and motivate executives of the
highest calibre, essential to the successful leadership and effective
management of the Group. The performance measures are balanced
between financial and industrial comparatives. The components of
remuneration package may consist of base salary, allowances,
benefits-in-kind, fringe benefits including medical insurance and
contributions to pension funds, as well as incentives like discretionary
bonus, participation in a share option scheme or long-term rewards.

The remuneration packages of the Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company are determined by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board by reference to their
respective duties and responsibilities in the Group, individual
performance, achievement of the Group’s targets and the prevailing
market terms in the industry.

The remunerations of the Non-executive and Independent Non-
executive Directors are determined by the Board under the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee by reference to
their duties and responsibilities in the Group, time involvement and
the prevailing market situation.
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises five Directors, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors, and Mr.
Kan Fook Yee acts as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The members of the Nomination Committee during the year under
review were:

Mr. Kan Fook Yee (Chairman)
Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho

(appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)
Mr. Ronald Lau Man Tak

(appointed with effect from 1 December 2017)
Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man

(appointed with effect from 1 December 2017)
Dr. Edward Wong Yun Kuen

(appointed with effect from 1 December 2017)
Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung

(resigned with effect from 9 March 2017)
Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan

(resigned with effect from 1 December 2017)

The authority and duties of the Nomination Committee are set out in
its specific written terms of reference. Full text of the said terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for formulating
nomination policy and leading the process of identifying and
nominating suitable candidates. Its duties are summarised below:

(i) review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, skills, knowledge, professional experience and length
of service) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Group’s corporate strategy;

(i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(iiy  identify and nominate candidates to fill casual vacancies of
Directors for the Board’s approval;

(iv)  taking into account the Group’s corporate strategy and mix of
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity needed in the future,
to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive;
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(v) assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors and review the Independent Non-executive Directors’
annual confirmations on their independence; and make
disclosure of its review results in the Corporate Governance
Report;

(vi)  regularly review the time required from a Director to perform his/
her responsibilities and report to the Board of their findings; and

(vi) review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; review the
measurable objectives that the Board had set for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the
objectives; and make disclosure of its review results in the
Corporate Governance Report annually.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held. Attendances
of the meeting have been disclosed on page 43 of this report.

During the year, the Nomination Committee members (i) reviewed and
considered that the structure, size, diversity and composition of the
Board are appropriate: (i) assessed the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors; (iii) reviewed the appointments of Executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors; and (iv)
recommended the aforesaid matters to the Board for approval.

The “Board Diversity Policy” sets out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. It is believed that a truly diverse board will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, background,
experience, knowledge, expertise and other qualities of the Board
members. These differences will be taken into account in determining
the optimum composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board composition by considering the benefits of all
aspect of diversity, including but not limited to those described above.
The “Board Diversity Policy” shall be reviewed by the Nomination
Committee, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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To streamline the structure of the Board Committees, the Company
ceased to have the Special Committee with effect from 28 September
2017. As at 28 September 2017, the Special Committee comprised
four Independent Non-executive Directors. The members of the
Special Committee were:

Mr. Kan Fook Yee (Chairman)
Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan
Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong

Mr. David Yu Hon To

On 9 April 2015, the Special Committee was established to deal with
the investigation by Independent Commission Against Corruption of
Hong Kong in connection with the contracts awarded for a renovation
project of Garden Vista, the property managed by the Group
previously with duties summarised below:

M

(i)

(v)

review, as appropriate, the adequacy of internal procedures
and related checks and balances in relation to the provision of
property and facility management services of the Group
(including managing any tender processes for client properties
or facilities) and internal training programmes implemented by
the Group in such procedures and legal/regulatory compliance
and recommend measures to strengthen the procedures and/
or training programmes as the Committee deems necessary;

monitor the progress of investigations on the matters, and to
consider the impact of any further developments on the
operations and financial position of the Group and to
recommend action to be taken by the Board;

where the Committee considers it appropriate, appoint external
legal counsel or other independent professional advisers (the
“Advisers”) (the terms of engagement and scope of work of
which shall be determined and finalised by the Committee) to
provide advice and assistance in conducting the investigation
into the matters, to review and comment on the findings and to
consider the advice of the Advisers;

authorise any further investigations that may be deemed
necessary in the Committee’s sole opinion; and
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(v)  report on any irregularities identified by the Advisers and from the
results of any investigations to the Board as and when the
Committee considers appropriate and to make recommendations
to the Board on the action to be taken.

The Special Committee met from time to time and as necessary. As
at 28 September 2017, none of Special Committee meeting was
held.

The Executive Committee currently comprises two Executive
Directors and two senior management members of the Group. The
members of the Executive Committee during the year under review
were:

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho

(appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)
Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong
Mr. William Yeung Wai Ling

(appointed with effect from 25 September 2017)
Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man

(appointed with effect from 25 September 2017)
Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung

(resigned with effect from 9 March 2017)
Mr. Lui Chun Pong

(resigned with effect from 9 March 2017)

The authority and duties of the Executive Committee are set out in
the specific written terms of reference adopted by the Board. Full text
of the said terms of reference of the Executive Committee is available
on the website of the Company. The principal duties of the Executive
Committee are, pursuant to the Authorisation Matrix/Limits of
Authority of each subsidiary, to approve tender submission and/or
payment requisition when the amount of tender or payment exceeds
certain limits, to approve banking matters, the issue of guarantees to
third party customers, the issue of shares under share option
scheme, promotion or appointment of senior management at
operation level, and other duties delegated by the Board from time to
time.

The Executive Committee shall meet as and when required depending
on business and operation needs. Members’ attendances would
depend on the importance of the matters to be transacted. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Executive Committee held 22
meetings to discharge their duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

(i) develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i)  review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

@iy  review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(v) review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board has in place Procedures for Directors to seek Independent
Professional Advice.

DELEGATION TO MANAGEMENT

The monitoring of the day-to-day business operations of the Group
and the implementation of the business plans and strategies adopted
by the Board are performed by the senior management led primarily
by the Managing Directors of the Company.

The Group has also organised a management meeting for senior
management and other relevant staff to meet on a monthly basis to
review business operations with significant issue, review the financial
and business performance against the budget approved by the
Board, and review the implementation of the strategies and policies
adopted by the Board.

With a view to further enhancing risk management at all levels, a Risk
Management Committee, as approved by the Audit Committee and
the Board, has been established to assume the responsibility for
identifying, evaluating, assessing and managing risk areas from
company-wide perspective. The Risk Management Committee
comprises senior management, and corporate managers of the
Group. Its findings and recommendations will be reported to the Audit
Committee.
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The Board has the overall responsibility for establishing, maintaining
and evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risk of failure to achieve business objective, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Management is responsible for setting the appropriate tone from the
top, performing risk assessments, and owning the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal controls. The associated
policies and procedures for risk management and internal controls,
which are properly documented and communicated to staff, are
designed to help ensure that the Group’s assets are safeguarded
against unauthorised use or disposition; relevant rules and regulations
are adhered to and complied with; complete, accurate and reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained; and key risk factors
including business strategic, operational, financial and regulatory
compliance risks which may impact the Group’s performance are
appropriately identified and managed.

To ensure the risk management process is consistent with the best
practice, the Group reviews the existing practice, and their
suggestions will be incorporated into the Group’s risk management
framework in due course.

The Group’s risk management framework comprises the following
key features:

o A distinct organisational structure for different responsible
parties with defined authority, responsibilities and risk
management roles;

o The Board sets forth the proper risk management culture and
risk appetite for the Group, evaluates and determines the level
of risk that the Group should take and monitor regularly;

. The Risk Management Committee facilitates the risk
assessment process and timely communication to the Audit
Committee and the Board. Also, they ensure key business and
operational risks being properly identified and managed; and

. A Risk Management Policy has been established to provide a
framework for the identification, analysis, evaluation, treatment,
monitoring and reporting of key risks at all levels across the
Group to support the achievement of the organisation’s overall
strategic objectives.
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Identified potential risks are evaluated using appropriate qualitative
and quantitative techniques and risk responses (i.e. accept, reduce,
transfer and avoid) are formulated, which are consistent with the
Group’s risk appetite. Risks are assessed based on a risk assessment
matrix that helps to rank the risks into 4 risk levels (i.e. Extremely
High, High, Medium and Low) and to prioritise risk management effort
to determine the appropriate risk mitigation plans.

The Group has an internal audit (“IA”) function, which plays a major
role in monitoring the internal governance of the Group, to conduct
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control system and report the review results
regularly to the Board through the Audit Committee.

To ensure systematic coverage of all auditable areas and effective
deployment of resources, a 3-year |IA plan with reference to the risk
assessment results has been formulated and approved by the Audit
Committee. During the year, the IA plan focused on the examination
of the fraud control, site safety, business strategy, financial and
treasury management, compliance with applicable rules and
regulations, management of litigation and claims, payment controls,
and management of information technology. Subsequent meetings
were conducted to update the IA plan in order to reflect the major
changes in the organisational structure and business objectives,
review the |A reports and highlight the more significant issues
identified from the IA reviews and follow-up actions taken. Meetings
between the Head of IA function and senior management are
conducted monthly to stay current with market developments and
changes in the business strategy.

The Group is fully aware of its obligation of handling and
dissemination of inside information under the Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”). The Group has a set of procedures and controls in
place to preserve the confidentiality of inside information relating to
the Group. All Board members and senior management, who are
likely to possess the Group’s inside information because of their
offices or employments in the Group, are bound by Model Code. In
addition, every employee is required to follow the guidelines of the
code of conduct and the staff handbook to keep unpublished inside
information strictly confidential.
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During the year, the Board has conducted a review on the
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems of the
Group through discussion with the Audit Committee, which covers
the major control procedures in areas of business/strategy,
operational, financial, compliance and regulatory risk, and was
satisfied with the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The changes in the nature and extent of significant risks faced by the
Group and response plans to changes in its business and the external
environment have been evaluated. The scope and quality of ongoing
monitoring of risks and the internal control systems have been
assessed. No significant areas of concern that may affect the Group
to achieve strategic goals have been identified. The Board considered
that the risk management and internal control systems are functioning
effectively and adequately.

In addition, confirmation from management on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group was
received during the year.

The Board has reviewed and is satisfied with the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experiences, training requirements
and budgets of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and 1A
functions.

Each of our staff is given clear guidelines and codes of standard in
the staff handbook with integrity being put as the first and foremost
code of conduct. A whistle-blowing-type channel which is
implemented by the Integrity Monitoring Committee is to provide staff
and contractors a channel to report issues which might cause a
significant financial loss to, or an adverse impact on the image of the
Company. The Integrity Monitoring Committee comprises senior
quality assurance manager as chairman of the Committee, finance
director and senior human resources manager as members.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group on a going concern
basis. With the support of the accounting and finance functions led
by Finance Director of the Group, the Directors have ensured that the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017 have been prepared in accordance with appropriate accounting
policies applied, if any, consistently save for those new and amended
accounting standards as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

In preparing the interim and annual financial statements,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules, the Directors aim at presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.
Financial information put before the Board for approval by
management is accompanied by sufficient explanation to enable the
Directors to make an informed assessment.

The independent auditor’s report, which contains the statement of
the external auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements, is set out in pages 96 to 98 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s
external auditor, for services rendered for the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out as follows:

Services rendered
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Audit services EZR 1,520

Non-audit services* IEEZ RS 223

* compressed advisory services in compliance with regulatory requirements, ad hoc ~ * BEMGERNERNBZARE  XHMEEZHH

projects for the transactions and potential transactions interim review and
continuing connected transactions assurance, etc.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board
process, as well as communications among Board members. The
Company Secretary complied with all the qualifications under the
Listing Rules. Mr. Wong Long Kee acted as the Company Secretary
during the period from 1 January 2017 to 27 February 2017 and the
Company appointed Mr. Eric Chan Kwong Leung as the Company
Secretary from an external service provider with effect from 28
February 2017. The primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Ms. Mandy Hui Suk Man, the Finance Director of the
Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS, INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

In addition to publishing interim and annual reports, announcements,
circulars, quarterly business updates and press releases, updates on
the Group’s developments are also provided on the Company’s
website which is updated in a timely manner.

Comments and suggestions from shareholders or investors are
welcome through the following channels to the Company:

(i) by post to the Company’s Hong Kong principal place of
business at 7/F., Linkchart Centre, 2 Tai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

(i) by facsimile transmission to (852) 2751 8784
(i) by telephone at (852) 3471 2340
(iv) by email at investor@synergis.com.hk

(v)  on the Company’s website at www.synergis.com.hk under “IR
Contact” of “Investor Relations”

An AGM is deemed as a forum for shareholders to communicate
directly with the Board members. Notice of 20 clear business days
together with detailed agenda is given to shareholders for the AGM of
the Company and 10 clear business days for all special general
meetings of the Company. Separate resolution is proposed at the
AGM on each substantially separate issue, including the election of
each individual director.
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In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at a general meeting shall have the right, by written
requisition served to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The
chairman of meeting will explain the poll voting procedures at the
relevant general meeting.

CONTINUOUS CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
ENHANCEMENT

The Board is committed to continuous corporate governance
enhancement including giving closer attention to any regulatory
changes with a view to maintaining a corporate culture built on ethics
and integrity and increasing shareholder value as a whole.

FHREBBWS

RBANZRE  EAFEERNERAE L
BREZARBDBRBEATLR 52— 0B
R OERAESFSERAFAMEZLERR
Ko BREFEARBRKFAIAE - LEEE
FAE RO EMER - BRRMBERAE L4
ANRERATNETEARR - KELXFER
RIABARERERRE LRBRERRNEF -

NS

AERFEREIBKF

EEeAHRBEERNEER KT BT
DEBERERES  BREH - EZERE
ERBENEEXL  REFRRNERE
18-

061



062

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE HIGHLIGHTS

IRIE - LB MEISHE

With a mission to create value for our stakeholders, we, Synergis, are
dedicated to ensuring that our business operations bring sustained
value to our shareholders, customers, employees, and business
partners, while benefitting the environment and community at large.

The Group’s first standalone ESG report demonstrates our
commitment to the integration of economic, environmental, social
considerations in our business approach. It also demonstrates the
Group’s comprehensive effort in caring for its stakeholders. The
report outlines our sustainability management approach and
performances for the year ended 31 December 2017 and has been
prepared in accordance with the “comply or explain” and
“recommended disclosures” provisions of the ESG Reporting Guide
as set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

Key highlights of the Group’s sustainability initiatives and
performances are as follows:

o Participated in ESG engagement exercises with close to 300
stakeholders, including management, employees, customers
and business partners;

. Refined its sustainability strategy and commitment;

. Achieved 98% customer satisfaction in our property and facility
management services;

. Attended over 50 recruitment talks and job fairs to attract
talents;

. Accumulated over 11,000 training hours for full time employees;
and

. Set up a new standing committee responsible for planning ESG
and employee activities, namely “S-Power”.
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The Directors present the report and the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the provision of
PFM business and ISP business in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macau. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are
set out in notes 32 to the financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of the business review information are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10 to 24 of
this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We consider environmental protection is essential to the long-term
development of the Group and will constantly improve management
practices so as to minimise waste, maximise efficiencies and reduce
our negative environmental impact on the environment.

For details, please refer to our standalone “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with such requirements.
The Group has been allocating system and staff resources to ensure
ongoing compliance with rules and regulations.

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Macau while the
Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and listed on the Stock
Exchange in Hong Kong. Our establishment and operations
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in Hong
Kong, Bermuda, Mainland China and Macau.
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To ensure compliance with the Competition Ordinance, the Group
has conducted trainings for our staff. We also step up measures to
increase safety awareness amongst our management and staff to
prevent accidents in contravention with safety regulations.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Various risks that the Company may face have been disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report and the notes to the Financial
Statements on pages 55 to 58 and pages 124 to 129 of this annual
report respectively.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group ensures all staff are reasonably remunerated and we
regularly review and improve our policies on remuneration and
benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. A
customer complaint handling mechanism is in place to receive,
analyse and study complaints and make recommendations on
remedies with the aim of improving service quality.

The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers and conducts a
fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers.

For details, please refer to our standalone “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report”.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 99; the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 100 and
the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31
December 2017 are set out in the consolidated balance sheet on
pages 101 to 102 and balance sheet and reserve movement of the
Company on note 30.

The Board did not recommend the payment of interim dividend for
the six months ended 30 June 2017 (2016: 1.5 HK cents per share).
To preserve funds for the expansion and development of the
Company, the Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).
Accordingly, total dividends for the financial year of 2017 is nil (2016:
1.5 HK cents per share).
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 103 and in note 23 to the financial
statements respectively.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the operating results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last four financial years and for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out on page 169. This summary does not form
a part of the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in note
14 and note 15 to the financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2017,
calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
amounted to HK$7,947,000 (31 December 2016: HK$66,447,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Kingston Chu Chun Ho (Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)
Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong*#
(Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung* (former Chairman)
(resigned with effect from 9 March 2017)
Mr. Lui Chun Pong*
(resigned with effect from 9 March 2017)

Mr. Ronald Lau Man Tak

(appointed with effect from 28 September 2017)
Mr. Eric Lee Hon Man

(appointed with effect from 28 September 2017)
Dr. Edward Wong Yun Kuen

(appointed with effect from 1 December 2017)
Mr. Kan Fook Yee
Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan*

(resigned with effect from 1 December 2017)
Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong*

(resigned with effect from 1 January 2018)
Mr. David Yu Hon To*

(resigned with effect from 1 January 2018)

The profiles of Directors who are in office as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 25 to 30 of this annual report.

In accordance with Bye-laws 86(2), Mr. Ronald Lau Man Tak, Mr. Eric
Lee Hon Man and Dr. Edward Wong Yun Kuen shall retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at 2018 AGM. In accordance
with Bye-laws 87(1) and 87(2), Mr. Kan Fook Yee shall retire by
rotation at 2018 AGM. Mr. Kan Fook Yee, who has been an
Independent Non-executive Director since 2008, has decided to retire
as a Director in May 2018 as he would like to devote more time for
other personal pursuits. Mr. Kan Fook Yee has informed the
Company that he will not be standing for re-election at the 2018 AGM
and will therefore retire at the conclusion of the 2018 AGM. Save for
the aforesaid, the other remaining Directors would continue in office.
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The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers that all the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with the terms of the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

& Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong was appointed as the Deputy Chairman with
effect from 9 March 2017.

# Ir. Joseph Choi Kin Hung resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 9
March 2017 as he wished to devote more time to his other business
commitments. Mr. Lui Chun Pong resigned as an Executive Director with effect
from 9 March 2017 as he wished to pursue his other business and personal
interests. Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 1 December 2017 and Mr. Wong Tsan Kwong and Mr.
David Yu Hon To resigned as Independent Non-executive Directors with effect
from 1 January 2018, as they would like to devote more time for other personal
pursuits. They have confirmed that they have no disagreement with the Board and
there is nothing relating to the affairs of the Company that needed to be brought
to the attention of the shareholders of the Company or the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at AGM have
entered into a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

There were no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company’s subsidiaries, its holding companies or its fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director and the Director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Schemes”,
“Convertible Securities, Options, Warrants or Similar Rights” and
“Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares
and Underlying Shares of the Company — Convertible Preference
Shares” of this report, the Company has not entered into any equity-
linked agreements during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Bye-law 168, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be liable for
any loss, damages or misfortune which may happen to or be incurred
by the Company in the execution of the duties of his/her office or in
relation thereto, provided that this Bye-law shall only have effect in so
far as its provisions are not avoided by the Bermuda Companies Act.
The Company has maintained Directors and officers liability insurance
during the year.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Analysis of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2017 is set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MANDATORY UNCONDITIONAL CASH OFFER

The controlling shareholder of the Company has been changed to
Champ Key after completion of acquisition took place on 21
November 2016.

Pursuant to Rules 26.1 and 13.5 of the Code on Takeovers and
Mergers and Share Buy-backs, Champ Key and parties acting in
concert are required to make mandatory unconditional cash offers for
all the issued ordinary shares (other than those already owned and/or
agreed to be acquired by Champ Key) (“Share Offer”) and to cancel
all 7,244,000 outstanding options (“Option Offer”) (collectively, the
“Offers”). As 80,000,000 CPSs were held by Champ Key as at 30
November 2016, no comparable offer would be made in respect of
the CPSs.
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The Offers became or was declared unconditional on 13 January
2017 when the composite document was despatched.

The offer price of HK$1.12 per ordinary share under the Share Offer
and the offer prices for the Option Offer were set out as below:

(@ 6,814,000 options may be exercised at an exercise price of
HK$0.952 per ordinary share, the offer price for these options
was HK$0.168 each;

(b) 330,000 options may be exercised at an exercise price of
HK$0.860 per ordinary share, the offer price for these options
was HK$0.260 each; and

(c) 100,000 options may be exercised at an exercise price of
HK$0.850 per ordinary share, the offer price for these options
was HK$0.270 each.

The Offers were closed on 3 February 2017.

For the details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
30 November 2016, 13 January 2017 and 3 February 2017 and the
Company’s composite document dated 13 January 2017
(“Composite Document”).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO,
which were required: (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred to
therein (the “Register”); or (c) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company
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Approximate
percentage of

interests in

Number of Number of the total

ordinary underlying number of

Name of Directors Capacity shares held shares held Total issued shares
HEBRITRSG

FEzERR BH M8 B MOER

EEpE L) RAEE % EE et Botk
(Note)

(BtaE)

Kan Fook Yee Beneficial owner 200,000 - 200,000 0.05%

Lk BEalAA

Note: There were 424,850,000 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31
December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which had been naotified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange or as recorded in the Register or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the 2013 AGM, the shareholders approved the adoption of a new
share option scheme (the “New Option Scheme”) and the termination
of the share option scheme, which was adopted on 19 September
2003 (the “Old Option Scheme”). Share options granted under the
Old Option Scheme remain effective. Details of the Old Option
Scheme and the New Option Scheme as required to be disclosed
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules are set out below:

(a)

(b)

Purpose of the Old Option Scheme

The Old Option Scheme was set up for the purpose of
recognising and motivating the contribution of the Eligible
Persons (as defined below) to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries and/or any Invested Entity (as defined
below).

Participants of the Old Option Scheme

Eligible persons entitled to participate in the Old Option
Scheme (the “Eligible Persons”) include:

U

(i)

any employee (whether full-time or part-time) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any entity in
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries holds
an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”); including
any executive director of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity and any
employee employed or to be employed by the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity, whether in Hong Kong or in The People’s
Republic of China;

any non-executive director (including any
independent non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any shareholder of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity or any holder of
any securities issued by the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who had, in the
opinion of the Board, made contribution to the
business growth of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;
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(c)

(iv) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(v any supplier of goods and/or services to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(vi)  any business collaborator, business consultant, joint
venture or business partner, or technical, financial,
legal and other professional advisers engaged by
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(vi) any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
the directors or the substantial shareholders of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity who had, in the opinion of the Board, made
contribution to the business growth of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity; or

(viii) the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board,
the beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the
discretionary objects) of which included any of the
above-mentioned persons,

and, for the purposes of the Old Option Scheme, the
options might be granted to any company wholly-owned
by one or more of the above Eligible Persons.

Number of shares available for issue under the Old
Option Scheme

During the year, (i) 4,686,000 options were exercised; (i)
no options were lapsed, granted and cancelled by the
Company. As at the date of this report, there are no
outstanding options.

()

v) MmARE - EERKNERT
KL E B RIEMH-TE
B 2% Bk B b A il ST IR 2 AR AR
ALTHER :

V) AR EEAHEARR
TAREEENTMNEM®
%/ SRS HIER

V) ARA - HEMAFEBARRK
EMREERAEE 2 I
XBEER  EBER &
BRAIKEBEMN &
- 7% ERMEMER
AR

(viiy ANAF] - EEAMBAQE 5%
FAREERIEERETE
BRZEMBEA(EER L
MRAD  MEZTERAHY
P/ I s E R CINE = N
TR EERIEBEESR
FTERE © 3

(i) KEFSRLIEZEME
AZIZAA - EZHA (S
BEEET MAXZHR)
BEEA Ll A

MR ERBRE S B &
RPER—RHALZ & ER
AEZ2EHEAZE[RF -

REEBRETATRITZROEK
=]

RENR - () 4,686,000 & A 12 1
1T ¢ (i) BB R R R AN R A
BEER LB IR - BLEAR
EEHE - SRR RIT A



(d)

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under
the Old Option Scheme

No option might be granted to any one Eligible Person in
any 12-month period which, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of shares already issued to such
Eligible Person under all the options previously granted to
him/her which had been exercised and, issuable to him/
her under all the options previously granted to him/her
which were for the time being subsisting and unexercised,
exceeding 1% of the share capital of the Company in
issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
being approved by the shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting.

Where any proposed grant of option to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules), would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) and to be granted to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of the
proposed grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total
number of shares in issue for the time being; and

(i)  the aggregate value of which, based on the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of the
proposed grant, was in excess of HK$5.0 million,

such proposed grant of option shall be subject to the
prior approval of the shareholders of the Company at a
general meeting in which all connected persons for the
time being of the Company (if any) (except where any
connected person intends to vote against the proposed
grant of option and his/her intention to do so has been
stated in the circular) should abstain from voting at such
general meeting and at which any vote taken should be
taken on a poll.

(d)
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(e)

)

(9)

(h)

Period for and payment on acceptance of an option

An offer for grant of an option must be accepted by an
Eligible Person (and by no other person except the Eligible
Person) in respect of all the shares for which the offer is
made. Acceptance should be made by such Eligible
Person by signing and returning the duplicate of the offer
letter together with the payment of a consideration of
HK$1.00 for such grant to the Company within the time
period specified in the offer letter.

The basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any option granted
under the Old Option Scheme should be a price
determined by the Board and notified to each grantee
and should not be less than the highest of () the nominal
value of a share; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which an offer for grant of an
option (the “Old Offer Date”) was made to an Eligible
Person; and (jii) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the Old
Offer Date which must be a business day, provided that
the subscription price shall be rounded upwards to the
nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before
exercise

There was no minimum holding period for which an option
must be held before exercise pursuant to the Old Option
Scheme. The commencement date of an option period
should be specified by the Board in the relevant offer
letter.

Remaining life

The Old Option Scheme was terminated pursuant to
resolutions passed by the shareholders on 17 June 2013.

(e)

U]

(9)

(h)
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(a)

(b)

Purpose of the New Option Scheme

The New Option Scheme is set up for the purpose of
recognising and motivating the contribution of the Eligible
Persons (as defined below) to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries and/or any Invested Entity (as defined
below).

Participants of the New Option Scheme

Eligible persons entitled to participate in the New Option
Scheme (the “Eligible Persons”) include:

U

(i)

(i)

(v)

any employee (whether full time or part time) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any entity in
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries holds
an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”); including
any executive director of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity and any
employee employed or to be employed by the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity, whether in Hong Kong or in The People’s
Republic of China;

any non-executive director (including any
independent non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any shareholder of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity or any holder of
any securities issued by the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity who has, in the
opinion of the Board, made contribution to the
business growth of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any supplier of goods and/or services to the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(a)

(b)
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()

(vi)  any business collaborator, business consultant, joint
venture or business partner, or technical, financial,
legal and other professional advisers engaged by
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(vii) any associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
the directors or the substantial shareholders of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity who has, in the opinion of the Board, made
contribution to the business growth of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity; or

(viii)  the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board,
the beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust, the
discretionary objects) of which includes any of the
above-mentioned persons,

and, for the purposes of the New Option Scheme, the
options may be granted to any company wholly owned by
one or more of the above Eligible Persons.

Maximum Number of shares available for issue
under the New Option Scheme

At 2013 AGM, the scheme mandate limit for the New
Option Scheme to allow the Company to issue a
maximum of 33,200,000 options under the New Option
Scheme, representing approximately 7.81% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company (i.e.
424,850,000 ordinary shares) as at 27 March 2018.

During the year, (i) 100,000 options were exercised; and
(i) no options were lapsed, granted and cancelled by the
Company. As at the date of this report, there are no
outstanding options and the maximum number of shares
available for issue under the New Option Scheme is
29,600,000, representing approximately 6.97% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company (i.e.
424,850,000 ordinary shares) as at 27 March 2018.
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(d)

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person under
the New Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any one Eligible Person in
any 12-month period which, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of shares already issued to such
Eligible Person under all the options previously granted to
him/her which have been exercised and, issuable to him/
her under all the options previously granted to him/her
which are for the time being subsisting and unexercised,
exceeding 1% of the share capital of the Company in
issue on the last date of such 12-month period unless
being approved by the shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting.

Where any proposed grant of option to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules), would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) and to be granted to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of the
proposed grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the total
number of shares in issue for the time being; and

(i)  the aggregate value of which, based on the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of the
proposed grant, is in excess of HK$5.0 million, such
proposed grant of option shall be subject to the
prior approval of the shareholders of the Company
at a general meeting in which all connected persons
for the time being of the Company (if any) (except
where any connected person intends to vote
against the proposed grant of option and his/her
intention to do so has been stated in the circular)
shall abstain from voting at such general meeting
and at which any vote taken shall be taken on a

poll.

(d)
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(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Period for and payment on acceptance of an option

An offer for grant of an option must be accepted by an
Eligible Person (and by no other person) in respect of all
the shares for which the offer is made. Acceptance shall
be made by such Eligible Person by signing and returning
the duplicate of the offer letter together with the payment
of a consideration of HK$1.00 for such grant to the
Company within the time period specified in the offer
letter.

The basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any option granted
under the New Option Scheme shall be a price
determined by the Board and notified to each grantee
and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of a share; (i) the average of the closing prices of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which an offer for grant of an
option (the “New Offer Date”) is made to an Eligible
Person; and (jii) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the New
Offer Date which must be a business day, provided that
the subscription price shall be rounded upwards to the
nearest whole cent.

Minimum period for holding an option before
exercise

There is no minimum holding period for which an option
must be held before exercise pursuant to the New Option
Scheme. The commencement date of the period during
which an option may be exercised shall be specified by
the Board in the relevant offer letter.

Remaining life

The New Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years commencing on 17 June 2013, the
date of adoption of the New Option Scheme, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the rules of the
New Option Scheme.
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(3) Movements in Options

Details of movements in the share options under the Old Option
Scheme and the New Option Scheme, and the share options
outstanding at the beginning and the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out as follows:
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Weighted
average
price of

Closing price  closing price

per share per share

Number of Number of immediately immediately

share options share options before before

held as at Changes during the year held as at Exercise date of grant date of

1 January FEREE 31 December price per of share exercise of

Name of grantees Date of grant 2017 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 2017 share Exercisable period options  share options

(ammiyyy) K3 (o) HKS) (H4)
R017E

Ro017E 12A318 FEBRER  FEERES

1B18%EZ 2 LEENSR  ERANER

REARE b EREYA i it b4 i BRESR  SRORE G

Directors

E2

Terence Leung Siu Cheong 27/05/2013 600,0002 - (600,000) - - - 0952 27/05/2017-27/06/2019 094 162

28

Kan Fook Yee 27/05/2013 200,000° - (200,000) - - - 0952 27/05/2015-27/05/2017 094 154

it

Ex-directors

HEs

Stephen Ip Shu Kwan® 27/05/2013 300,000 - (300,000) - - - 0952 27/05/2014-27/06/2017 094 154

Earl 16/10/2013 100,000 - (100,000) - - - 0850  16/10/2013-15/10/2018 08 1.50

Employees (in aggregate) 07/06/2011 196,000' - (196,000 - - - 0860 07/06/2014-06/06/2017 085 1.59

EE(28) 27/05/2013 3,390,000° - (3,390,000) - - - 0952 27/05/2015-27/06/2019 094 157

4,786,000 - (478000 - - -

Notes: BT

1 Share options were vested in equal portions on 7 June 2014, 2015 and 1 HE AR 2 B2 R 2014 4F ~ 2015 K 2016 F
2016 respectively. 6 A7TBERAEHEEE -

2 Share options were or will be vested in equal portions on 27 May 2017 2 BB 1 9 R 2 R A 702017 FF R 20186 5
and 2018 respectively. The unvested options became exercisable within a A27 BRASHHYHE - RIFEBREE
30-day period after the date on which the Option Offer became or was HRANEE6.3(c) R 7(0) 15 + AREFE AR IR
declared unconditional (i.e. the date of the despatch of the Composite EZHKAKE M REGTEE B (B12017 4
Document, 13 January 2017) according to Rules 6.3(c) and 7(b) of the Old 118 BIRE 2 4R & 1) 1% 30 B B A AT
Option Scheme. All share options were exercised on 26 January 2017, FATE - FTEMEREE R 201741 A26 A (B
which is within a 30-day period after the commencement of the Option BREZOFIA%I0 B M) BT -

Offer.
3 Share options were vested in equal portions on 27 May 2015 and 2016 3 BE RS HE 5 B 2 R 20154 201645 A 27 H

respectively.
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4 Share options were vested in equal portions on 27 May 2014, 2015 and

2016 respectively.

5 Share options were or will be vested in equal portions on 27 May 2015,
2016, 2017 and 2018 respectively. The unvested options became
exercisable within a 30-day period after the date on which the Option Offer
became or was declared unconditional (i.e. the date of the despatch of the
Composite Document, 13 January 2017) according to Rules 6.3(c) and
7(b) of the Old Option Scheme. All share options were exercised on 26
January 2017, which is within a 30-day period after the commencement of
the Option Offer.

6 Mr. Stephen Ip Shu Kwan resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director with effect from 1 December 2017.

The fair value of share options granted for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year, the Company has the New Option Scheme pursuant
to which options may be granted, inter alia, to the Directors. Details of
such schemes and the movements in options are set out in the
paragraphs entitled “Share Option Schemes” above. Further details of
options granted and/or shares allotted or transferred to the Directors
are disclosed in the paragraph entitled “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company and Its Associated
Corporations” and note 10 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

4 BB AL HE 9 BB 72014 £ ~ 20154 ;. 2016 6
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HER(B20174F1 B 18 BIRE 2454 3XF)
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HERITES -
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DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 27 March 2018, a Director had the following interests in
business which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business:

FRERARAT —TLEFH

DIRECTORS" REPORT
EBSRS

SENRBEBER
HZE2018F3A27H  —BEENUTHER
EEESEESEERR IR AREER RS
ZEETR AR

Name of Director Name of company Nature of business Nature of interests

Expgs NCIECY:] EBMUE Rty

Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong ~ $TE & EEEBR A F Building construction and  Being the legal representative
(Hsin Chong civil engineering and a director of Hsin Chong

Construction Co. Ltd.)
(a wholly foreign owned
enterprise in the PRC)

Construction Co. Ltd.*

RRKERE (PRSI EEEDRR) BFRENTATIE REEREREARAT

HZEERRARES

Note: Although Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong has competing interests in Hsin Chong
Construction Co. Ltd.* by virtue of his common directorship, the Directors
consider that such competition, if any, is neither significant nor material to the
Group as a whole. Furthermore, Mr. Terence Leung Siu Cheong will fulfil his
fiduciary duties in order to ensure that he will act in the best interest of the
shareholders and the Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is
capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from,
the businesses of such companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors (excluding
Independent Non-executive Directors) nor their respective associates
had any interest in business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

* for identification purposes only

M - BARKEFRERRMEERG NS L ERE
ERABDFEEBRTED  EFRAEHBF(WA)
BRETHAKBEMEELTEEREKX 4o 2Kk
ERERBEITEREEM  UBRREMERRRY
B R EARBHBERENSTE - By A%
E e 4B L LA R RIRY ST AP AT & K75 -

BREXWEEN  EE(TEREBELIENTE
B)HIEZENBEAREZ2017F12 A 31
AlLFEMEREFRASEEF ARSI MERE
X35 5 ok AT BERE AR B D 3RS 2 MRS o
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company issued and allotted 80,000,000 CPSs, as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of ISP business in late 2012. The
CPSs are convertible into the ordinary shares at HK$0.75 per share
subject to satisfaction of the minimum public float requirements under
the Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2017, none of the CPSs was
converted nor redeemed.

Save as above and other than the share option schemes described in
the paragraph titled “Share Option Scheme” above and in note 10 to
the financial statements, the Company had no outstanding convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights at 31 December 2017.
There was no issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options,
warrants or similar rights during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participated in mandatory provident fund schemes in
Hong Kong and in the municipal government contribution scheme in
Mainland China. Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in
note 2.17(c) to the financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the following person/entities (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had or were deemed or
taken to have interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests and
short positions of substantial shareholders (the “Register of
Substantial Shareholders”) required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

oJ AR 8 %5 -
il

AN BB 1T N B 35 80,000,000 A% AT 2 A48 S iR
BEAD - YE AR 2012 G F R U = N & M4
RIE B EE 2O RE - ATERELR IS
AEPS ¥ 0. 75 o AT AR - HARE LR
ARE s REARFRE - HE2017F12 A
318 - Bty fE o o] EiR@ Lk -

e AR & o2 SR U

iy HR 'T I &

B b R bt [FERERt 8] — B Rk
BYFE10 Pl 2 B AR AR T 819D - 2017 12 A
318 - AR A BB MR ETT 2 AT AL

7 BRI EJZ*ETLME%'J KENR -
AR A RARE S - BRE - RIREESR
LAREREEITRITE -

éi@l:lm

RER - BERAR B2 APHAER TR EHKE
MR R B EAE R RITHAL

RIS
REBSBEFBRGIELNES
MRBTHEREE - ZF5FR
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Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares of R BRNDRBEERMNB 2R
the Company

(a) Ordinary Shares (a) TEBRERH

Approximate

percentage of

Number of interests in the
ordinary shares total number of

Name of Shareholders Capacity held issued shares
HEBRITRG
RECEER #HBEBOES
REREMHE 8% R EE Bot
(Note (i)
(B & (i)
Chu Yuet Wah Interests of controlled 225,518,633 53.08%
corporation(s) (Note (i)
FAE XL R (HIaE ()
Champ Key Beneficial owner 225,518,633 53.08%
BEEERA
Notes: MIsE -
0] Champ Key being a company wholly-owned by Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah is 0 B E % R EIE M - Champ Key (2 A %
deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah under the T+ 2BERE AT BEATAEL Y
SFO. FEAE -
(ii) There were 424,850,000 ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at 31 (i) ARABEHZE2017F12A31 A B RTLE

December 2017. A& A% 17 & 424,850,000 A% °
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(b) Convertible Preference Shares (b) FERELER
Approximate
Number of percentage of
convertible interests in the
preference total number of
Name of Shareholders Capacity shares held issued shares
HERITRA
BEZAER AHoBOES
BREREH 514 BEREE Aotk
(Note (i)
(K17 (i)
Chu Yuet Wah Interests of controlled 80,000,000 100%
corporation(s) (Note (i)
FHE A EER (Btat @)
Champ Key Beneficial owner 80,000,000 100%
EmlEA
Notes: 5T -

(0] The Company issued and allotted 80,000,000 CPSs to Smart Lane
Holdings Limited (“Smart Lane”), as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of ISP business in late 2012. As disclosed in the joint
announcement of Champ Key and the Company dated 30 November
2016, Champ Key (a company wholly-owned by Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah) as
the offeror entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Smart Lane
as the vendor of the sale and purchase of 169,116,777 ordinary shares
and the 80,000,000 CPSs. Champ Key being a company wholly-owned
by Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah is deemed to be a controlled corporation of Mrs.
Chu Yuet Wah under the SFO.

(i) There were 80,000,000 CPSs of the Company in issue as at 31 December
2017.

(i)

7872 &) 18 Smart Lane Holdings Limited ([ Smart
Lane ) 7T K B2 3 80,000,000 A% 7] # #2128 5¢
BER%(D » VBRI 2012 4 RULTE = R &%
FERIE B ¥ 2 B R ME © B0 Champ Key
EAARIHEA2016F 11 A0H 2BA R
EHBEE BTAELLTREBMEBZRA
Champ Key (fEAZ #) A) B2 Smart Lane ({E
7 8 169,116,777 % & i@ g 12 80,000,000
AEREER BRI BB o IRIEE
F R EIE &) - Champ Key (EAELZ L2
BRABZRARERATREZT 221
EE o

ARAREHE2017F12831BZB&TA 8
18 %5 B A% 1% % 80,000,000 % °

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors  B& EXXFFHEESIN - N2017FE12 A31H - &
were not aware of any persons/entities (other than Directors or chief ~ EI EEREM AL, B2 (AQATESHIT
executive of the Company) who/which had or were deemed or taken — ERAZZL RSN MAR R R RABRERR D A
to have any other interests or short position in the shares or B ABRELENEAAGEEESFLRBEE

underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the Register of {555 336 {§

ATHFEZTERRECMZEMN

Substantial Shareholders required to be kept by the Company  HitbhEzEaixE -

pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and/or its subsidiaries had entered into
the following continuing connected transaction which is subject to
annual review and reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules:

The Company entered into a General Business Services Master
Agreement on 8 September 2017 with Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah, pursuant
to which the Group is the services provider. The annual cap for the
General Business Services Master Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2017 was HK$5,700,000. Details of the transaction were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 September
2017.

FREERERAR —T—

DIRECTORS" REPORT
EBSRS

EEFR

RERERS

AER  ARA R/ REWB AR LT
AET EMRRAFE1AAR 2 FEBR N ARR
ENRERERS

%mw¢9ﬂ85'$ﬁﬂﬁéﬂﬁkiﬂj
—REBREBIHE - B AR R ARBGEE
e BE2017TE12A3MHIEEE - f&%%
BR 7% 42 13 M F [ _EBR &7 ¥ 5,700,000 7T ©
RPFBRARF B A2017F9A8AMA
EREE o

Consideration
forthe  Nature and extent of the

Connected person(s) Date of agreement(s) Terms Particulars Annual cap Period  connected person’s interest
BEAL ek HR #E FELR ZHERE HEATBREMEREE
(HKS) (HKS)
Mrs. Chu General Business Services The period from Provision of the general business 5,700,000 1,759,681 Mrs. Chu Yuet Wah is a substantial
Master Agreement dated 8 September 2017 to services, including but not limited to, shareholder and controling
8 September 2017 31 December 2019 the property and assets shareholder of the Company and
(both days inclusive) management, real estate advisory hence, a connected person under
(‘the Period") services, fitting-out works, the Listing Rules.
renovation works, general
consultancy and other ancillary
services, by relevant members of
the Group to Mrs. Chu and/or
her associates
It BEA017TF9A8HY B201759A8AEE REEEBRERAMERLR/ A FRELTRADAZZERRR
—REBRAEE 2019512 831 B 1LHR HEEARM-REBRS - 08 BRRR - BmALTRAIT 2
(RHEERMAE) BRBRRNEREAEER  BHE BEAL -
() uasﬂﬁﬁi% ZEIR BRI

— R R E R

The Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
have reviewed and confirmed that all the continuing connected
transactions mentioned above conducted in the year were entered
into on the following basis:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and
(c) according to the relevant agreements governing these

transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

EX(BEBUIFNTES) E%F)ﬁj’rﬁﬁﬂti
Pﬁﬁtmir TRMERFEREZSTIRRT
51| R A #E

(@ RAKBBETER-REFBENET

(b) R REREREE SO - &
© REEEZEXZINHEEHBHEEZIFE
2T A AN R AR B B8 ) 2 0 IR SRR
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group as above in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

In addition, the auditor of the Company has confirmed to the Board
that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the above continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2017:

(@)  have not been approved by the Board;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group where the transactions involve the
provision of services by the Group;

(¢) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(d)  have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed in the
respective previous announcements of the Company.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
continuing connected transactions mentioned above.

BREFBSIMASHMOBT BEREBEER
3000 5% [ 5L A 75 & #t & iz sk = B LA SN EB AL
T U2 EEBEHATI0H [FBE LTHRE
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 44.8% (31 December 2016:
44.0%) of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue attributable to
the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 16.3% (31
December 2016: 13.7%) of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the
year (2016: less than 30%).

None of the Directors, any of their associates or shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital), had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers.

BANK BORROWINGS

The particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2017 are set out in note 26 to the financial statement.

DONATIONS

The Group donated HK$12,000 (2016: Nil) for charitable and other
purposes during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions of the Group are set out in note
29 to the financial statements. In relation to those related party
transactions that also constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Group as defined in the
Listing Rules, the relevant disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with.

ABEZERERDF —T—LFFW
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ZEFPRMIED

RAFE  AEEBZASMNBEFHAEERU
25 #944.8% (2016 F12 A31 8 : 44.0%) * M
AEEFGAREFPAGAREEAWZRL16.3%
(2016512 A31 8 : 13.7%) °

RAREE  REBZRASUBEEEERAER Y
ALREEFE LA 30% (2016 5 + LA 30%) ©

B IARSZBEAIBRBESAA
BREARRDHEITRABBL%E) MEER
SEZEASUFFPTHATMNEDEL

IRITERM
AEEP2017F12 A31 BHRITERFEH
R IREHT 5 26 °

=B

RER AEFAEHEEREGBBREE
12,000 7T (2016 £F : #&) o

B8 - HEABOR T LHES
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PUBLIC FLOAT

At the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and to the best of knowledge of its
Directors.

AUDITOR

The retiring auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, has expressed
its willingness to offer for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint
Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company for
the ensuing year and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration.

On behalf of the Board

Kingston Chu Chun Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

=
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

The consolidated financial statements of Synergis Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out
on pages 99 to 168, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;
. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Accounting for construction contracts — including profit
recognition and contracting work-in-progress;

. Impairment assessment on receivables; and

. Impairment assessment on goodwill.

SROEHR
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNET R EERET SR

Accounting for construction contracts — including
profit recognition and contracting work-in-progress

Refer to note 2.10, note 2.21, note 4(c), note 5 and note
17 to the consolidated financial statements
B2MREMIEFREMFTE2.10 « WEE2.21 ~ HIFE4(0)
BisE s RMIEE17

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
recognised revenue from construction contracts relating to
the interiors and special projects which totalled HK$1,386
million. The contracting work-in-progress amounted to
HK$349.3 million as at 31 December 2017.
HE017F12A3BIEFE - ESERRRAEAER
# NI R B ES B KA %8 %1,386,000,000
Lo M2017F12R318 BE P T2 R B K
349,300,000 7T °

The recognition of revenue and cost of sales for the
Group’s construction contracts is based on the stage of
completion of contract activity. Stage of completion is
determined by reference to work performed up to the end
of the reporting period. Recognition of profit on contracts
requires significant judgement and estimates of the total
contract costs and revenue by management.
EEERESHZRAERHERENRIESLEDHN T
BXPEER T AR - TR RAIZ2BEEREHRETK
MIRETE SRGNNERFTEZEEBHANEKA
KN gs 1E B oK e R Ak 5t -

7B S A I~ B
EELH

ZErhg T2

We tested the key controls on how management determine
the stage of completion, including controls on estimated
total contract costs and budgeted margins, progress
billings and progress payments of contracts.
HMERERBNAETETRERNFEBETETAR -
BERGFTENEKARTBENE GHNEFERIE
[ETFREY BR TR ©

Our work in relation to management’s estimated total
contract costs and budgeted margins focused on the
following procedures in relation to material construction
contracts within the Group:

HMHERER ESENERBESHNMAETNEGH
BRARFAEMEEPETUATRERF

o Discussing with the Group’s quantity surveyors and
project managers for the status of the projects,
identifying any variations, claims and provision on
loss-making contracts, and obtaining explanations
for fluctuations in margins and the expected recovery
of variations.

e B EEETHASMMEELBENREMER
AN ABRI R B EEMNEE  RERAEME
A EE e EE - WES B AR K B & 78 B
ElENSE

. Obtaining corroborative evidence, in relation to the
above points, by reviewing the project budgets,
external architect’s certificates of work performed
and minutes of management’s regular internal
meetings, on a sample basis.

e HWIHAMEE INFEEMBETIRNZERER
BETHOTHABG R @@ CEETHESEH
BB S E IR S

U Inspecting signed contracts to identify the total
contract sum and terms.
o RBEEFSHN  UBEBRESHNRSERIER -
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Key Audit Matter
BRETSEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNET R EERET SR

Accounting for construction contracts — including
profit recognition and contracting work-in-progress

These judgements include the expected recovery of costs
arising from variations to contracts requested by
customers, compensation events and claims made against
contractors for delays.
ZEHEBREELEREFANMEENTRRAKBIAA
MES M RBER T AABERL 2 RE -

Due to the significant judgement and estimates involved,
specific audit focus is placed on this area.

ER5 RERAE R - AT E 500t S0 45 Al
BT o

15 R 5 K B ) T 7E

. Agreeing the stage of completion to the surveyors’
latest valuation and/or external architects’
certificates.

. H = ERK PR ER 56 R = A 2 FRi

HRIZEBE o

TG E R, HIM R

o Testing the calculations of contract revenue, costs
and construction contracts in progress.

o HANMWE  RARETTRESOMNEETA
E}to

. Where applicable, inspecting correspondence with
the customers and sub-contractors to obtain audit
evidence on variations from customers, claims from
customers and sub-contractors.

e THEERBAT REHTXFPROBENRTER -
UREEPHNEERS TREERPBEMREZR
EREEBE -

We found the assumptions made by management in
relation to construction (including profit recognition and
contracting work-in-progress) are supported by the audit
evidence available.

BEABZER  BMRATEEHREEEL 2BR(E
EHER RN KRR TRE) B SERIBBR XIS -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNET R EERET SR

Impairment assessment on receivables

Refer to note 2.12, note 4(b) and note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements
BLMERE M EREMTE2.12 « MFE4(b) RFIFE18

The Group has a net receivables of HK$490.6 million after
provision for impairment of HK$70.6 million as at 31
December 2017.

R2017512A31H - EEEEARKFIBFELEE
490,600,000 7t (FIBR 7 (B 1 18 78 % 70,600,000 7T)

Receivables of the Group comprise mainly receivables in
relation to the Group’s business of (i) property and facility
management services, and (ii) interiors and special
projects.

EEECERKRFETERREE EXEE()MELREER
ARFS + R (i) E A FE B0 R IR TR B X758 M 2 RURBR K -

The recoverable amount is estimated by management
based on their specific recoverability assessment on
individual debtor with reference to the ageing profile,
historical payment pattern, the past record of default and
assessment of their financial positions. Management would
make specific provision against individual balances with
reference to the estimated recoverable amount.

A A& R TYE IR R IR E A RIE 5 A 80 A @ WL R
MmEERFE - BEFR2EZREKES  MENKREBIE - T8
R RAHERBRRL  EREGR2EMEN KOS
7 HERIARIEL e R -

For the purpose of impairment assessment, significant
judgements and assumptions include identification of
impairment indicators, the credit risks of debtors, the
estimated timing and amount of future cash flows for the
determination of the impairment charge.

HRER LTS - EXAERBEREEZNRETR - &
BAZGEERR - HEtRERRRESRESEE © LAFR
BIEEHE -

We performed the following procedures in relation to the
recoverability of receivables:
BAME BB SRIE Z AR EI M ST AT T

. Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade receivables
at year end on a sample basis.

o HEREZRUGIRMNKE 2 ERITETTRER o

o Obtaining a list of outstanding receivables and
identifying any debtors with potential financial
difficulty through discussion with management as
well as conducting market research on the industry.

o  EHEMERNEEE - i EE IR E & 1K kAl
ERFERBEMBABOESA - WEITEET
MG

. Assessing the recoverability of the unsettled
receivables on a sample basis through our evaluation
of management’s assessment with reference to the
credit profile of the debtors, historical payment
pattern of debtors, publicly available information and
latest correspondence with debtors and to consider
if any additional provision should be made.

o RIEEREUEKARTAERA BB M - B
2RBEBANGEEAS  BEBEAUENZREBEE - 1A
FEM M EERSARTHRBE - RS A AR
WERRZ TR - I E BRESELRRIMNER

. Testing subsequent settlement of trade receivables
after the balance sheet date on a sample basis.
e HREHRNEZIERKFIRZBPREZETHMEAR

Al ©

We found the key judgements and assumptions used by
management in the recoverability assessment of trade
receivables to be supportable based on the available
evidence.

BEBAFZER HMRLAEEERNE S ERKFIESN
A BT il B T I R 2R = B IR R S 5 o
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Key Audit Matter
ERETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNET N EEERET SR

Impairment assessment on gooawill

Refer to note 2.5, note 2.9, note 4(d) and note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements
FLRRATHRERME2.5 - WiE2.9 « MIsE4(d) &Kz
16

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has significant
balance of goodwill of HK$171.8 million before impairment
relating to the acquisition of the Interiors and Special
Projects business and ISP Curtain Wall and Aluminum
Products Limited in 2012 and 2015 respectively. The
industry competition and upward pressure on salaries and
wages increase the risk that these businesses may not
perform in line with initial expectations and forecasts and
therefore the carrying values of goodwill may be impaired.
R2017F12A31H - EXEHENRENEAHNER
#AB 171,800,000 7T - L FEEE 2012 F K 2015 F 73 A
WEEAEMREREBEBLAREBREEERE
RARIHER - TR ?&%iﬂlﬁiﬁmrﬂPMT
ZEZEBORRICREEY) & VIR E R FERE R -
UL E A BRE B A RS IRRE o

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the goodwill
balances are allocated to separate cash-generating units
(“CGUs”), and the recoverable amount of each CGU is
determined by management based on value-in-use
calculations using cash flow projections.

A BBENS  BEEREOREBURCELSMN
((REeELSBM])  ERERARESREBTRRREER
BEAERECREEEEMMAKREISHE -

Management has concluded to make an impairment
charge of HK$55.0 million in respect of the goodwill for the
year ended 31 December 2017. This conclusion is based
on significant management judgment with respect to the
key assumptions, including gross profit growth, terminal
growth rates and discount rates.

EEENERAREE2017F12A3BLEEFERES
B & §8 73 78 % 55,000,000 7T © Lt 455 T AR 1R T BE 52 (R

REFBEMNER ZFEERXEFTVRITEERNEEH
B o

B B E
Our work in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

ZMEEREREMHMEETZ TIERE

o Assessing management’s identification of CGUs
based on the Group’s accounting policies and our
understanding of the Group’s business.

e R EEEZSHBEREMAY BEEEXKZ
TEFHMEERERREEESEM 2 ER -

o Assessing the value-in-use calculations methodology
adopted by management.

o FHMEEEEMEBZEREBENEE-

. Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
(including gross profit growth, terminal growth rates
and discount rates) based on our knowledge of the
business and industry.

e RERMEBEBRITENRSD  FEERRK(E
BENER  &RERENFREK) 2 S8 -

o Engaging our internal valuation specialist to assess
the appropriateness of the valuation methodology
and discount rates.

o ZREAMHEZERHMEEERERTRE @S -

o Performing sensitivity analyses over the key
assumptions by considering the impact of possible
downside changes

s ZERBRIXTAEZHNTE -
DA

HERBRRETHRRM

We found the management’s assumptions used in the
impairment assessment to be reasonable based on
available evidence.
REAI5 2 &E -

BREAEN -

BARREBBIRMEN LA
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

1a 17 112 256 iy &

Hh{5R

BERRESAHEMESAR - HBUERERE
FHRANABES  BEIBRESUBEHRRL
PR BEN RS -

BAPEEEMBERENBERLTRERLME
B BT T HZEREMERBEREALAL

%ui,nufﬂi °

FBEBRMUREMBRRNET  RANEE
EREEMER  EIARS  ZREMER
B BAR ﬁﬁ%i&%‘iﬁ1PﬂE%ﬁLE¢FFﬁT
BEOBERFEEREBERELUFFEEAHE
PR3 Y1 0, o

‘:ﬂ

ERBMERTHIIE - IRBEMRBEMIE
EREEAHREL  RAFTEREZEE
HEHTE  RFPRAEMRE -

EENERTEEME
ENSE

S MRAR

BERREFAARBEAGHMAERME
(BERMBRE LR AREFTEB(R AR B
BERTHEEEMT NGV HHRE - I
M‘J/\uuﬁr7%1§2? MBHRROBRETFEAR
HRRF X 88 5R 1 B B A0 B K BE AR R AL P 75 &9 PO 8D
E%\JE,\

ERBGEAMBHRERE  EFRENE EX
l FEQEREN  YHEERBR T RE LR

BREFANER  URERFHBELE RS
%E‘% BRIFESEREN BSREBRAFLRE
2 RREEMERNER IR -

ERZBRARRAEE B5EENYBEHRSE
2o
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

ZSEI B 5tHir MR HRRIENST

BANBR  SHERAMBRERBEREE T
TR S 5R AR M B B A B A3 SR R B AS
BIEFRE  XHABRERKME R A2 BA &
T BMERBARE NN\ —F(REE)
Fo0fkm BMTUERBRB)RERMNER
BRib 2 SN B EEAD B A I T EHA
HENARREAEMA LR ESEAEERFE
£ AERBERNKFHNRE - BETERER
R(EBBFEADETHES X —EX
SRR PRI AE RS R BE B3R o $RARERAL AT LA R AR
FFElEERRSIE - RS EFAMEFIE BN ELR
ERA LT BEAMBHRRERE KBRS Y
TSR PR B ERIE - RIB R AV SRR R
A BARMEE X ©

ERB(ERBBRITEN)ETEABRES
BIVER T EXRHAME - RIFTEXRIBREE -
HAIIL

o HAMFHERRKRFRBERMEBSE
MBEBRFEENBERRANER - R
FERHMITE R R A E L ER - A
REBGE R MEE MR RE  (ERK
MERNER - ANKFFAIE S K H
RoE - BEER ERRAL - H0E
BRAEMES Z £ FittReeBRER
& T 2 e B A 88 RR BRI 9 [ B = 1 R
Bt 2% IR IR 58 3R T B 20 H B K $5 AR PR A 19

R -

o  TRETFTHBAMES - AREE
ENESAERF - BEENAIYE S5E
MEBEH B RIERRBR

e HEEFMRASBRNBEERE
SR RENSIEME -
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

1a 17 112 256 iy &

s HEERARELLSHERMNBEN
tE A& © RIBFAEDMMEFESRE &
EEBFAEEFHEKBREENEAT
HEW M EERY BEERBENFE
BREENELBARE - WRAFIR
REEEATHEEG  ABABEERZH
B & PR A EAEIBRA M ®mE
FEVIRBANE - BREEHENEETR -
AIRPEERRIFEREER - LW
e BN BEIHRE B LT RGHE
FHERRE o AT RRFHEKIBERAIGES

B ESBETREFELE -

s HESRAUMBHBRNERBIRSIA &
BNMAR  BEEE ARGEEMBR
REBTERRIZMER -

e Bt ERBERNERIEHIZBNONBKE
BERGR - BENETRE  UEY
HEMBHRREXRER -RMAE &
SEZFTOIR - EEMBT - RS
B BERAERNEL -

PREMEERIN  HAEERZE BB THE
MERTRE - BRZH EXEFAERE £
RRPIEET R A EBE S B E I E KRR
B

BfERBEZZEGRIER  HARMEN
BAERBEIENERERERER - WERM
BRAAESEMKRA/ETERFIBEILIEN
FRAERFEMEMER - UREFERNERT
TERAEY T EHEHE
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From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chu Ho Kwan Raphael.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018

EBZZERBNERTD - HIIEEDRL
SHHUARG AV BHREANEARAER » A
MK ERENEE - RAOIEXBEREDH
MELEIR - RIBREER T AFARKESE
LEETE - SAERRFERNBER T - IREERE
HERMRETBBRFHEXNBERKRE
BEENATAE - BFPRETEEREHE
B EIA -

HARNBYZBMBENEREABARK

HEIR o
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HEEEAD
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

fiﬁ/_\ o D
OB Mmx

For the year ended 31 December 2017

B ZE2017F 12 A 31 HIFFE
2017 2016
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
Hiat BT T BT
Revenue W5 5 2,083,300 2,433,471
Cost of sales SHE A (1,916,456) (2,248,218)
Gross profit EF 166,844 185,253
Other income Hibg A 7 9,801 5,162
General and administrative expenses —RITHAX (148,505) (122,494)
Doubtful debt recovery Y B B 7 19,818 -
Amortisation of intangible assets T8 (1,628) (3,401)
Intangible asset write off MiHETEE 7 (33,907) (1,759)
Impairment loss on goodwill e 7 REEE 16 (55,000) -
Impairment of contracting FEFRF TR ZBE
work-in-progress 17 (2,723) (9,448)
Impairment of receivables AR 2 RE 18 (3,160) (82,304)
Interest expenses A B R 6 (5,291) (5,959)
Loss before taxation bR BT ES 18 7 (53,751) (34,946)
Taxation FRIE 11 (1,770) (4,766)
Loss for the year FNEE (55,521) (39,712)
Loss attributable to: FEIGETE -
Equity holders of the Company AARREREEA (54,377) (39,483)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR e (1,144) (229)
(55,521) (39,712)
Losses per share for loss attributable to 2" A Tk G A FE(L 18
the equity holders of the Company 2 BREE
— basic (HK cents) — EAREEEAL) 13 (13.8) (11.7)
— diluted (HK cents) — B8 OB 13 (13.8) (11.7)
Dividend [N 12 - 6,419
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

B ZE2017F 12 A 31 HIFFE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Loss for the year FRAEE (55,521) (39,712
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hit2EUWA (i) :
ltems that will not be reclassified to HEEBTeEFH»EEBE2EE ¢
profit or loss:
Actuarial gain on long service KRB BB BERE
payment liabilities 505 1,564
ltems that may be subsequently AIEGEN Y EEEm2EE ¢
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BMEBINEBEX CERZE
foreign operations 1,696 (2,060)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMEEVA(EIE)
for the year 2,201 (496)
Total comprehensive loss for the year S R2HEEIEAE (53,320) (40,208)




A

SEERERAT — T HEER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
DS EBR’R

As at 31 December 2017

R20174#12 431 H

2017 2016
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
Kt BET T BT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MNE - MR MR 14 15,263 13,435
Investment properties WEYHE 15 5,600 3,600
Intangible assets A B 16 - 35,535
Goodwill EES 16 116,794 171,794
Deferred tax assets REEFIEEE 25 41 78
Prepayment a8 2,080 1,840
Total non-currentassets FnmEERR 139,778 226,282
Current assets REBEE
Contracting work-in-progress EEhR TR 17 349,294 411,412
Receivables FE U BR X 18 490,604 398,409
Deposits and prepayments 24 RFEMNRIE 18 22,429 26,622
Taxation recoverable A Y [0 757 78 2,594 5,553
Cash and cash equivalents ReEKFSEE 20 112,532 111,723
Time deposits with original maturities RESABBE=1EA
over three months ZEHITER 20 3,666 17,561
Total current assets REEEMREE 981,119 971,280
Current liabilities REBEE
Payables and accruals FENBR R IEETE A 21 704,154 753,368
Bank loans SRITER 26 162,402 204,000
Amount due to non-controlling JE A< FEE AR 25 FRTR
interests 19 1,306 1,240
Amount due to other partner of JERT B R &L B HFIE
joint operations 15 15
Taxation payable FEfSBTR 565 4,655
Total current liabilities RBAERE 868,442 963,278
Netcurrentassets ==~~~ nBEEFE 2677 8,002
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERABERE 252,455 234,284
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
moOBSEBRR

As at 31 December 2017
R20174F 12431 H

2017 2016
Note HK$’°000 HK$'000
Kt BET T BT T
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Long service payment liabilities RHRE2E8E 24 1,380 2,378
Deferred tax liabilities BLEFIEAE 25 248 6,356
Total non-current liabilites FnmAmes 000000 1628 8,734
Net assets BEERHE 250,827 225,550
Equity attributable to equity holders 72 R R#ERZFE A
of the Company GRS
Share capital AR 22 50,486 43,055
Retained profits and other reserves (REB S 7| I b {5 8 23 201,499 182,509
251,985 225,564
Non-controlling interests FEERER (1,158) (14)
Total equity S 250,827 225,550
The notes on pages 105 to 168 are an integral part of these ZE1052F 1688 2 Wik AxxESE A M BHE
consolidated financial statements. ZHRKERD o

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on
27 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf.

Kingston Chu Chun Ho % &5

B mRCEETSN2018FEI 27 BHfL -
FHUTATRERESE

Chairman % & Director %

Terence Leung Siu Cheong £ Jk &
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

COBRBENE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

HE2017F 12 A31 HILFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BERALTIREREA
Employee
share Non-
Share Share  Merger option Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests Equity
ESiERE FER
Rx  RHEE AHEE B EXGE RIEEH &3t BE #En4E
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
BETT  A%Tn BETn  BETn  A%Tn  BETn BT A%Tn AT
At1 January 2017 R2O017E1R18 43,055 114,143 1,513 255 (2,546) 69,144 225,564 (14 225,550
Loss for the year EREiE - - - - - (54377 (B43TT) (1,144 (55,521)
Other comprehensive income Eh2EMA - - - - 1,696 505 2,201 - 2,201
Total comprehensive incomefoss) ~ 2EMA/(E1B) 28 - - - - 169 (53872  (62176) (1,144  (53,320)
Placing of new shares REHRH 6952 66,777 - - - - TN - 131N
Share option scheme e RE] - - - 195 - 144 339 - 339
Issue of shares upon exercise of RiTERRENETRG
share options 479 4,500 - (450) - - 4529 - 4,529
At 31 December 2017 R2017£12831R8 50,486 185,420 1,513 - (850) 15416 251,985 (1,158) 250,827
At 1 January 2016 R20165151R 42,768 110,935 1,513 764 (486) 125109 280,608 (1211 219392
Loss for the year ERER = = = = - (39483) (30489 (229 (89712
Other comprehensive (oss)income ~ Ef 2 (18) /WA - - - - 060 1564 (49) - (496)
Total comprehensive loss rEBELE = = = = (2060 (37919 (39,979 (229)  (40,208)
2015 final divicend paic BIR2015FR R ER S = = = = - (1069 (106%) - (1069
2016 interim dvidend paid (note 12) ~ 2IE2016 EER AR,
(K1) - - - - - M9 6419 - 6419
Share option scheme BREE = = - 539 = - 539 = 539
Transfer upon share options lapsing R REX M ER - - - (268) - 268 - - -
Issue of shares upon exercise of RiTERRENSETRG
share options 287 3,208 - (780) - - 2,715 - 2,715
Incorporation of a subsiolary AR us-HHEART - - - - - - = 4 H
Further acquistfon of asubsidiary ~ #—# U —-FEHERR - - = = - (12 (1209 1385 182
At 31 December 2016 R20165128317 43055 114,143 1,513 205 (2,546) 69,144 225,564 (14 225,550
The note on pages 105 to 168 are an integral part of these %105% ZEmA B EmK

consolidated financial statements.

168 B Z M s &
ZHREBD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
l\\/T\ Eﬁ\//)lL%

For the year ended 31 December 2017

EZE20174F 12 A31 HIFFE
2017 2016
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
[zt BT BT T
Operating activities R
Cash (used in)/generated from operations KL %% (#A), /EA2RE 28 (32,902) 142,341
Interest received B E 3,737 115
Interest paid EASFLE (5,267) (6,072)
Income taxes paid BERFEH (8,972) (19,344)
Net cash (used in)/generated from & XK (¥H) EBEE2
operating activities HeFE (43,404) 117,040
Investing activities REER
Purchase of property, BEME - HESRRE
plant and equipment (8,588) (12,404)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEYE - HRER
plant and equipment RABEFT SR 213 183
Decrease/(increase) time deposits (35 0) #BiE =18 A &
over three months FEEFER 13,895 (17,561)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEXBELE (EA)
investing activities ZBE&REHE 5,520 (29,782
Financing activities REER
Issuance of shares upon exercise of RITEEAREm TG
share options 4,529 2,715
Drawdown of bank loans HARITER 233,138 615,005
Placing of new shares [RA=Ean) 73,729 =
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (274,736) (704,541)
Dividend paid ERRE - (17,111)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEBKEL(FEA) 2
financing activities HEEE 36,660 (103,932)
Net decrease in cash and ReRRESEERIZ
cash equivalents B (1,224) (16,674)
Cash and cash equivalents at FzHekBEeEE
the beginning of the year 111,723 129,841
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and fﬁé RREEEIER
cash equivalents Wz (BER) 2,033 (1,444)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRzBRERB[EF
the end of the year 112,532 111,723

The note on pages 105 to 168 are an integral part of these 1052 F168E 2 Wit AZ LGS BHRE
consolidated financial statements. KIS o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda as an exempted company on
4 August 2003. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company’s shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 9 October 2003.

The principal business of the Group is principally engaged in the
provision of PFM business and ISP business in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and Macau.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong dollars (HK$), unless otherwise stated,
and were approved for issue by the Board on 27 March 2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements of Synergis Holdings
Limited have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment properties which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in note 4.
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The following amendments to standards have been
adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial
year beginning on or after 1 January 2017:

Amendments to HKFRS 12 Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses

The adoption of the above amendments to existing
standards has no material impact on the Group’s results
and financial position or any substantial changes to the
Group’s accounting policies.

REFDR2017F1 A1 BB
BIFE g R A T ER 2 &
&l

ABMBRELER  2014FZ2016F
F125 2185 B FELE
BAeEL RETE
ENgTd

ol AT BERR
F125 2183 ERFHIEEE

R bR AR BT H A E
ZEB NI IR I A EE G
ROEMEREHAUBRSATE -



ARERBRAR —T—tFFH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following standards and amendments are effective
after 2017 and have not been early adopted by the

Group:

Annual Improvements Project
on HKFRS 1 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 9

HKFRS 16
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts!

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15!

Transfers of Investment
Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Leases?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Insurance Contracts®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 Effective for annual periods to be determined
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The Group will adopt the above standards and
amendments to existing standards as and when they
become effective. None of the above is expected to have
a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except the following set out
below:

HKFRS 15, “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations
(including but not limited to HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 “Transfers of
Assets from Customers”). HKFRS 15 establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining when to
recognise revenue and how much revenue to recognise
through a 5-step approach: (i) identify the contract(s) with
a customer; (i) identify separate performance obligations
in the contract; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv)
allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and (v) recognise revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied. The core principle is
that a company should recognise revenue when control
of a good or service transfers to a customer. Under
HKFRS 15, an entity normally recognises revenue when a
performance obligation is satisfied. Impact on the revenue
recognition may arise when multiple performance
obligations are identified.

Based on the assessment undertaken to date, the Group
does not expect the adoption of HKFRS 15 would have a
material impact over revenue recognition of the Group’s
major operation.

The Group intends to adopt the standard using the
modified retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised in
retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. It
replaces the guidance in HKAS 39 that relates to the
classification and measurement of financial instruments.
HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement
model and establishes three primary measurement
categories for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income and fair value
through profit or loss. The basis of classification depends
on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset. Investments in
equity instruments are required to be measured at fair
value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at
inception to present changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income not recycling. There is now a new
expected credit losses model that replaces the incurred
loss impairment model used in HKAS 39. For financial
liabilities there were no changes to classification and
measurement except for the recognition of changes in
own credit risk in other comprehensive income, for
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.
HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements for hedge
effectiveness but contemporaneous documentation is still
required.

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case
under HKAS 39. Based on the assessments undertaken
to date, the Group expects an earlier recognition of loss
which would result in a small increase in loss allowances.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in
the year of the adoption of the new standard.

The group will apply the new rules retrospectively from 1
January 2018, with the practical expedients permitted
under the standard. Comparatives for 2017 will not be
restated.
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HKFRS 16, “Leases”

HKFRS 16 will result in aimost all leases being recognised
on the statement of financial position, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use the leased
item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised.
The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases.
The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the
Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting date, the
Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of HK$20,165,000. Based on the preliminary assessment
undertaken to date, it is estimated that the adoption of
HKFRS 16 would result in recognition of right-of-use
assets and financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position primarily arising from leases
of land and buildings. The interest expenses on the lease
liabilities and the depreciation expenses on the right-of-
use assets under HKFRS 16 will replace the rental charge
under HKAS 17 in the consolidated income statement.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard before
its effective date.
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(a)

(b)

SEERERAT —T— tEFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases. Inter-company
transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment (note 2.9). Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling
interests, the difference between any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(a)

(b)
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(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in the
income statement. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as a joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income statement.

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures; depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor has rather
than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. For the
joint arrangements that specify that the parties to the joint
arrangements have rights to the assets and obligations to
the liabilities relating to the joint arrangements, they are
classified as joint operations. For the remaining joint
arrangements, they are classified as joint ventures.

All joint arrangements under the Group are joint
operations.

The Group recognises its direct right to the assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses of joint operations and
its share of any jointly held or incurred assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses. These have been incorporated in
the financial statements under the appropriate headings.
Details of the joint operation are set out in note 33.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker,
identified as the Executive Committee who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments and making strategic decisions.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Company’s and the
Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gain and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;
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(i) income and expenses for each income
statement and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

@iy — all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings, are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences
that were recorded in equity are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the
date of acquisition. Goodwill is accessed for impairment
annually or whenever there is an indication that it may be
impaired and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwiill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment assessment. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose
identified according to operating segment.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

SEERERAT —T— tEFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks and trade names
are shown at historical cost. Trademarks and trade
names acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.

Trademarks and trade names that have a definite
useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 15
years.

Trademarks that have indefinite useful lives are not
amortised. They subject to impairment testing
annually and whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired.

Backlog orders

Backlog orders acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
The secured contracts have a finite useful life and
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of the contracts of 3
years.

Non-competition agreement

Non-competition agreement acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The non-competition agreement
have a finite useful life and carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over the
expected life of the contracts of 15 years.

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields or
for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied by
the companies in the Group.

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is
revaluated bi-annually based on active market prices,
adjusted for any necessary difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the
light of current market conditions. Changes in fair values
are recognised in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in each asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that there is future
economic benefit to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method based on
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease period
Motor vehicles 25%-33.3% per annum
Furniture and equipment 10%-50% per annum

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
An assets’ carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
accessed annually for impairment, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that they
might be impaired. Other assets are accessed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

Contracting work-in-progress is valued at cost incurred
plus an appropriate proportion of profit after deducting
progress billings and allowances for foreseeable losses.
Cost comprises direct materials, labour and overheads
attributable in bringing the work-in-progress to its present
condition.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due
from customers for contract work for all contracts in
progress for which costs incurred plus recognised profits
(less recognised losses) exceed progress billings.
Progress billings not yet paid by customers and retention
are included within trade and retention receivables. The
Group presents as a liability the gross amount due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress
for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses).

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.
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Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except that for maturities greater than 12 months or the
normal operating cycle after the balance sheet date
(whichever is applicable). These are classified as non-
current assets.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. Impairment testing
of receivables is described in note 2.12.

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A
provision for impairment of receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use
of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. When a receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowances
account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts off are credited in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligations, and such amount can be reliably
estimated. Where the Group expects a provision will be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
balance sheet date.

Deposits, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand
and deposits held at call with banks that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. They are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or the normal operating
cycle (whichever is applicable) or else, they are presented
as non-current liabilities. Payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. It is the Group’s policy to forfeit any
untaken annual leave with a specific time period.
Subject to regular assessment of staff turnover rate,
a provision will be made or reversed. Employee
entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave. A provision is
made for the estimated liability up to the balance
sheet date.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus are made for
the estimated liability for incentive bonus as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date, where there is a contractual
obligation or past practice that has created a
constructive obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

Retirement benefit

The Group participates in mandatory provident fund
schemes in Hong Kong which are defined
contribution plan generally funded through
payments to trustee — administered funds. The
assets of the schemes is held separately from those
of the Group in independently administered funds.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
government in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), the subsidiaries in PRC participates in the
municipal government contribution scheme whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the
scheme for the retirement benefit of eligible
employees. The municipal government of the PRC
is responsible for the entire benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme
is to pay the ongoing contributions required by the
scheme. The Group’s contributions to the scheme
are expensed as incurred.

(a)

(b)

(c)
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(d)

(e)

SEERERAT —T— tEFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Long service payment liabilities

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
accounts payable on cessation of employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods. That
benefit is discounted to determine the present value
and reduced by entitlements accrued under the
Group’s retirement plans. The obligation is
calculated using the projected unit credit method by
a qualified actuary. Actuarial gains or losses was
charged/credited to other comprehensive income.

Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted to employees
is recognised as an employee cost with a
corresponding increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the
vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the income
statement for the year of the review. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained profits).

(d)

(e)
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A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
uncertain future events not wholly within the Group’s
control. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because outflow of
economic resources is considered not probable or the
amount cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability in that outflow becomes
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Group’s
entities operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates tax related situations
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of returns and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

Property and facility management fees are recognised
when the services are rendered and in accordance with
the terms of agreements. There are two types of
agreement, namely management remuneration contracts
(“MR Contracts”) and lump sum contracts (“LS
Contracts”). Under a MR Contract, the Group is
remunerated based on a fixed percentage of the costs
involved in the management of the property or facility, and
only such fee is recognised as the Group’s revenue.
Under a LS Contract, the Group is paid a lump sum fee
which normally covers the costs involved, thus the whole
of lump sum fee is recognised as the Group’s revenue.

Revenue from provision of other supporting services is
recognised when the services are rendered.
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Revenue from contracting work is recognised based on
the stage of completion of the contracts, provided that
the stage of contract completion and the gross billing
value of contracting work can be measured reliably. The
stage of completion of a contract is established by
reference to the gross billing value of contracting work to
date as compared to the total contract sum receivable
under the contracts.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and title has passed.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis,
taking into account the principal amounts or refundable
deposits outstanding and the effective interest rates
applicable.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability when approved, whereas dividend
proposed but not yet approved is recognised as an
appropriation of retained earnings.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management seeks to minimise any potential
material effects on the Group’s financial performance from
the following factors.

(@) Market risk

() Foreign exchange risk
The Group’s operation in the Mainland China
and Macau are monitored by proper
synchronisation of receipt and payment in
different operating currencies. Hedging has
not been effected due to immateriality of the
working capital balances.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk is not
material.
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(b)

(c)

SEERERAT —T— tEFR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(i) Interest rate risk

At 31 December 2017, if interest rates on
Hong Kong dollar denominated borrowings
had been 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis
points) higher or lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss for the year
would have increased/decreased by
approximately HK$996,000 (2016:
HK$1,167,000) as a result of higher or lower
interest expenses on floating rate bank
borrowings respectively.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk mainly arises from deposits,
cash and bank balances and receivables. Current
policies ensure that sales and services are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and
subject to periodic credit evaluations. Collection of
outstanding receivables is closely monitored on an
ongoing basis.

As at 31 December 2017, a provision of
approximately HK$69,600,000 (2016:
HK$80,500,000) against receivables based on the
impairment assessment on the respective balance
with Hsin Chong Group.

Certain customers have exceeded their respective
credit terms during the year (note below on
receivables). However, management does not
expect any significant losses from non-performance
by these counterparties because of their good
repayment history.

The credit risk associated with deposits and cash
and bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are bank with high credit rating.

Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk
management which includes maintaining sufficient
bank balances and cash, and having available

funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities.

(b)

(c)
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For bank loans containing a repayment on demand
clause, if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect, including short term revolving loans of
HK$90,000,000 (2016: HK$120,000,000) which is
subject to annual review by lenders, invoice
discounting HK$12,402,000 (2016: Nil) which is
subject to projects review by lenders and bank
loans of HK$60,000,000 (2016: HK$84,000,000)
with scheduled repayment dates, will be on demand
for repayment immediately, excluding interest
payments.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group was in breach
of certain loan covenants of bank loans of
HK$150,000,000 in relation to financial ratio
requirement. This might cause these borrowings to
become immediately repayable. Such condition
indicates the existence of certain uncertainties over
the Group’s liquidity position. In view of such
circumstances, the directors of the Company have
given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available sources
of financing in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to continue as a
going concern. Certain measures have been taken
to mitigate the liquidity pressure and to improve the
Group’s financial position which include, but are not
limited to, the following:

(i) The Group has communicated the aforesaid
breach of financial covenants to the lender
subsequent to 31 December 2017 and the
lender does not request for early repayment
so far.

(i)  The Group will continue to seek for settlement
of the overdue receivables from Hsin Chong
Group pursuant to the settlement agreements,
and might take legal actions, if necessary;

@iy ~ The Group will closely monitor the cash flow
requirement before submitting new tenders to
ensure any additional working capital
commitment will not cast doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ivy The Group will continue to take active
measures to control administrative costs
through various channels.

The directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow
projections prepared by management. The cash
flow projections cover a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 December 2017. They are
of the opinion that, taking into account the
abovementioned plans and measures, the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due within twelve months from
31 December 2017. Accordingly, the directors are
satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. Taking into account the
Group’s financial position and loan of HK$150,000,000
are guaranteed by a major shareholder, the
Directors do not consider that the bank will exercise
its discretion to demand immediate payment, and
believe that the bank loan will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in note 26. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,
including interest payment.
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MR R AZE
mBEERERE¥TIT)

Financial risk factors
Liquidity risk (in HK$’000)

After After
one year two years
Within  but within  but within
oneyear twoyears five years Total
SR—F SHME
EEONN BEHR
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12 831 H —FR MER EER wat
Term loans subject to a B ARENER
repayment on demand HEEER
clause 26,817 25,690 12,563 65,070
Other bank loans HRITER 90,089 - - 90,089
Payables and accruals FERBR TR S ERT B 684,231 19,096 827 704,154
Amount due to ARERG Tt e
non-controlling interests 1,306 - - 1,306
Amount due to other JE 5 B FE R AT
partner of joint operations EARS o0 15 - - 15
Total 4Bt 802,458 44,786 13,390 860,634
After After
oneyear  two years
Within but within but within
one year two years five years Total
ZR—5F LM
ERN BLR
At 31 December 2016 R 20164 12 431 H —FR ME A AER 5t
Term loans subject to a I EBRENER
repayment on demand B BER
clause 87,270 - - 87,270
Other bank loans HRITEN 120,275 - - 120,275
Payables and accruals B R R ETER 725,965 27,395 8 753,368
Amount due to ARERT Tt 0
non-controlling interests 1,240 - - 1,240
Amount due to other JE 5 B T R AT
partner of joint operations AR O 15 = = 15
Total 45 934,765 27,395 8 962,168
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In managing its capital, the Group’s objectives are to
safeguard its ability to continue operation as a going
concern while keeping an optimal capital level to reduce
the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares to reduce debt.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current assets and
liabilities approximate their fair values due to their short
term maturities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The resulting accounting estimates
may not, by definition, equal the related actual results. Those
estimates and assumptions that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of each
of the assets and liabilities are discussed below.

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation and amortisation charges for its
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
Such estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of similar nature and functions.
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AEENEAEE S EREREH
BEEEZE  VHRRRENELSE
BMREESKAN - BERFRFE
BEARER ASEHEHABIMNT
BERMA B HEE - ARRREEAR
S EITRTAABRETR

BRAEEZRBEENBEERE
HME - FEREESEARE
BE -

FAR B5HEE R AER

AEBETEHRESEERIEMEAR(E
RHERABATRARENRKREN
TEHD) SR E R A T AR - BTS2
BtEEER LARTERERAERA
[l RARBEHZREERBERE
BEEAFBZEERRZFTHAT

EEEEETNE HBERRER
B EEZ G ERFHNIERH
WEREBHEX W - ZATHRIER
BUHEERINEZYFE R RRE
REFEENERAERFH B
ERCSREETE ©

129



130

SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 i 7 B9 5

Management determines the provision for impairment of
receivables and deposits based on assessment of the
recoverability of the balances. The assessment is based
on the specific recoverability assessment and ageing
profile of the balances, which requires the use of
judgements and estimates. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of the balance, including the financial position and the
historical payment pattern of each counterparty. The
Group has set out policies to ensure follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue receivables and deposits. As at
31 December 2017, the Group has made a provision of
approximately HK$70,600,000 based on the impairment
assessment. The Group has been negotiating with the
counterparties for the payment of settlement. The
determination of the provision involved significant
management estimation.

As explained in note 2.21, revenue recognition on a
project is dependent on management’s estimation of the
total outcome of the construction contract, as well as the
work done to date. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates of contract revenue, contract costs, variation
orders and contract claims prepared for each
construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction income is determined in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contracts. Budgeted construction costs are prepared by
the management on the basis of quotations from time to
time provided by the major contractors, suppliers or
vendors involved and the experience of the management.
In order to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date, the
management conducts periodic reviews of the
management budgets by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in estimating the total
contract revenue, contract costs, variation works and
contract claims which may have an impact in terms of
percentage of completion and recognition of profit.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group had certain claims
over its contracting work-in-progress and receivables in
respect of disputes or prolonged negotiation between the
Group and the employers in certain building construction
contracts. The Group is closely monitoring the
development of these contracts and has been negotiating
with the employers. The directors are of the view that the
carrying value of the balances as at 31 December 2017
would be fully recoverable. The determination of the
recoverability involved significant management estimation.

The Group accesses whether goodwill and trademark
have suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2.9. The recoverable
amounts of goodwill and trademark are the higher of the
assets’ fair values less costs to sell and value in use.

As a result of a series of rebranding exercises of the
Group during the year following the change in controlling
shareholder of the Company, the Hsin Chong’s trademark
acquired along the Group’s acquisition of the ISP
business in late 2012, has been written-off during the
year, resulting in a loss of approximately HK$28,300,000
(net of tax). Furthermore, impairment charge of
HK$55,000,000 was provided on the goodwill as at 31
December 2017, also recognised upon the Group’s
acquisition of the ISP business in late 2012. The sensitivity
analysis of the impairment of goodwill is set out in note
16.

A considerable amount of judgement and assumptions
are required in estimating the recoverable amount of
goodwill and trademark, including growth rate, gross
margin and weighted average discount rate applied to the
cashflows.
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The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
Macau and the PRC. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for PRC income taxes. There
are a number of transactions and calculations for which
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
potential tax exposures based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker, identified as the
Executive Committee, who is responsible for allocating
resources, assessing performance of the operating segments
and making strategic decisions, the reportable operating
segments are:

o property and facility management services in Hong Kong;

U property and facility management services in Mainland
China;

o ancillary business including security, cleaning, laundry,
procurement and maintenance contracting;

o interiors and special projects
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(a) Segment Results (in HK$'000) (a) NIFEB(BETIT)

PFM
NERRIHER
Corporate
Hong  Mainland  Ancillary PFM ISP Overhead
Kong China  Business | Business Business (Note ) Total
EREHR
NERRE BHRER  THER
EE  PERE  EBEE | EEEE £% (W=D &t
017 0175
Revenue Wi 538,592 67,228 91,731 697,551 1,385,749 - 2,083,300
Gross profit eS| 67,729 15,469 18,776 101,974 64,870 - 166,844
Operating expenses RERY (36,600) (16,759) (18,364) (1,723)  (59,208) (15,495)  (146,426)
Operating profit/loss) before ~~ BEHRELERF 2
exceptional operating ftems mEEH/ (Bi8) 31,129 (1,290) 42 | 30,251 5662 (15495 20418
Doubtful debt recovery (note l) Y [EISZ8 (FizE1) - 12,69 349 | 13,047 6,771 - 19818
Impairment of contracting RN IERENR
work-in-progress and R AE (M50
receivables (note 5(0)) - (2,463) (697) (3,160) (2,723) - (5,883)
Operating profit/oss) megt/ (Bg) 31,129 8,045 64 | 40,138 9710 (15495 34353
Impairment loss on goodwil BERERE - - (55,000)  (55,000)
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ EFAE % - - (1628  (1,628)
Intangible asset write off MHENEE - - (33907)  (33,907)
Acquisition loan interest KEERZFIB R
Xpenses - - (2,925) (2,925)
Interest expenses iR (162) (2,204) - (2,366)
Other expenses R (840) (900) (339)  (2,079)
Other income A 6,377 5 - 6,382
Interest income from former RERSRRERAT
ultimate holding company ZFIBIA 294 3,125 - 3,419
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEEH/ (BR) 45,807 9,736  (109,294)  (53,751)
Taxation A (42%6)  (3,397) 5,863 (1,770)
Profit/oss) for the year Fratl/ (58) 41,57 6,339  (103431)  (55,521)
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PFM
EPERE
Corporate
Hong  Mainland Ancilary PEM ISP Overhead
Kong China  Business | Business  Business (Note ) Total
ERRAR
WERRE HHREE  RER
BF  wEMNE  BERE | BERH % (WD) a5t
2016 0165
Revenue W 563,836 62,100 100,562 | 716498 1,716,973 - 2433471
Gross profit EF 66,299 15,170 17,480 98,949 86,304 - 1852583
Operating expenses EERT (34,880) (14,590  (13,89) (63374) (42,083  (16,078)  (121,535)
Qperating profit/loss) before BERCEBEARZ
exceptional operating items BEGH/ (BB) 31413 580 3582 | 35575 44221 (16078 63,718
Impairment of contracting BERmIRRER
work-In-progress and B 2R (i 5()
receivables (note 5 (b)) - (12,698) (349) | (13,047)  (78,708) - (91,752)
Operating profit/(oss) g&EH/(BR) 31,418 (12,118) 3,233 20508 (34,484  (16078)  (28,034)
Amortisation of intangible assets B AE & = = (3401) (3,401)
Intangible asset write off MEEyEE = = (1,759) (1,756)
Acquisition loan interest WEERZFERS
Xpenses - - (3,660) (3,660)
Interest expenses flems (339) (1,960) - (2,299)
Other expenses =0l (327) © (539) (959)
Other income =L TON 4,837 325 - 5,162
Proft{oss) before taxation BEATER/ (B8) 66909 (36212 (26439  (34%4)
Taxation B (4,439) (327) - (4,766)
Proftoss)for theyear R/ (5) 2060 (659 549 B

Note I:  Corporate overhead mainly represents corporate and administrative
activities, and shared services.

Note ll:  The amount represents settlement of receivables which were

previously impaired.

A provision of approximately HK$5,900,000 (2016:
HK$91,800,000) was included based on the impairment
assessment on the remaining balance including
contracting work-in-progress and receivables mainly
related to Hsin Chong Group. The Company is pursuing
all measures to recover the receivables.
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INTEREST EXPENSES

The entire amount was attributable to the bank loans for the

current and last year.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION
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6 MREx

RAFEREFE 2BV HER
RITERK

7 BRiRAIESE

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T ST
Loss before taxation is arrived after BRREAESEBEER(GEA)
charging/(crediting): TH&IR -
Staff costs, including directors’ BTN (BRESEHE)
emoluments (note 8) (FFzE8) 700,780 730,014
Intangible asset write off MiHEEEE 33,907 1,755
Depreciation e 6,806 5,798
Auditor’s remuneration =BT &
— Audit services — BZAR 1,520 1,420
— Non-audit services — EBEZARTE 223 1,718
Impairment loss on goodwill ez REBE 55,000 -
Impairment of contracting work-in-progress B/ 9 T 12 2 )R E 2,723 9,448
Impairment of receivables FEUWBR K 2 R(E 3,160 82,304
Operating lease rental on land, buildings ~ +1# - F R A ERE 2
and office equipment waHeEle 12,380 12,930
Interest income from former ultimate KRB REIERATZ
holding company B WA (3,419) -
Fair value gain on investment properties & & % > A A BEWES (2,000) (560)
Doubtful debt recovery U [B] 22 BR (19,818) -
STAFF COSTS, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 8 BIMK(BREEME)
EMOLUMENTS
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT IT
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EUREDA
— included in cost of sales — T AEERKAK 582,590 629,752
— included in general and — FPA—RERITBAXZ
administrative expenses 95,492 75,947
Pension — defined contribution scheme  R{k& — RE G2 22,359 23,776
Share option expenses BB AR R 2 339 539
700,780 730,014
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9

BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 9 SSERkER
(a) Directors’ Emoluments (in HK$'000) (a) =ES8iE (B TT)
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BEE7HEWENT -
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZE2017E12A31BLEFE
Employer’s
Estimated contribution to
money  aretirement
value of benefit
other scheme*
Discretionary benefits*  ETHE(
Fees Salary* bonus*  EftEFlz Bl Total
Name of Director BB ik e R fiE%ER: pAs o &z
Executive Directors HiTES
Kingston Chu Chun Ho K 122 974 - - 40 1,136
Terence Leung Siu Cheong 28 150 2,420 - 52 18 2,640
Joseph Choi Kin Hung BiE 28 250 - - - 278
Lui Chun Pong' By 2 45 - - 2 75
Independent Non-executive By j&{TES
Directors
Ronald Lau Man Tak? A 62 - - - - 62
Eric Lee Hon Man? THY? 62 - - - - 62
Edward Wong Yun Kuen® &S 2 - - - - 2
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan* L 220 - - - - 220
Kan Fook Yee L 240 - - - - 240
Wong Tsan Kwong? RN 240 - - - - 240
David Yu Hon To? mEES 240 - - - - 240
1,412 3,689 - 52 60 5,213
* Except for the Independent Non-executive Directors, the amounts * FMRIBIEMITEERIN  ZESHEEMR

represented emoluments in respect of services provided in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiaries undertaking.

Resigned as an Executive Directors with effect from 9 March 2017
Appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Directors with effect
from 28 September 2017

Appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director with effect
from 1 December 2017

Resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Director with effect
from 1 December 2017

Resigned as an Independent Non-Executive Directors with effect
from 1 January 2018

R EMER AR ARRMBATN
B2 B2 BERBZBS -

H2017 43 A9 HREEINTES
H2017F9F 28 RERTAB L
HHNTES

H2017F 12 1B REZTAB YL
FHTES

2017612 A1 B #£E T8 IEH
TE=E

201841 B 1 A BHE B L FEHNTT
=



For the year ended 31 December 2016
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HBZ2016F 12831 BLLEE

Employer's
Estimated ~ contrioution to
money a retirement
valug of benefit
other scheme®
Discrefionary benefts”  [EEHEMR
Fees Salary* bonus®  EfARFIZ EyEE] Total
Neme of Director ESit4 ik Ger BERL A ki faz
Executive Directors HTES
Terence Leung Siu Cheong 2kE 150 2,306 - 55 18 2,529
Joseph Choi Kin Hung? Bgige 170 1,200 - - - 1,370
Lui Chun Pong? AR 150 240 - - 14 404
Brenda Yau Shuk Mee' AE 74 1,102 311 20 4 1558
Independent Non-executive B k#1785
Directors
Stephen Ip Shu Kwan -2 290 - - 33 = 323
Kan Fook Yee Gk 310 - - 33 - 343
Wong Tsan Kwong i 260 - - 33 - 293
David YuHon To NEE 300 - - 3 - 333
1,704 4,848 311 207 78 7,148
* Except for the Independent Non-executive Directors, the amounts MBI IERITESIN  ZESHER

represented emoluments in respect of services provided in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiaries undertaking.

! Resigned as an Executive Director and Managing Director with
effect from 29 June 2016
2 Resigned as an Executive Directors with effect from 9 March 2017

REAMEEARBREMBRRM
HIT 2 B2 MG ZBE -

H2016 66 A20B £ E BT MITE

EREBEEHLE

20173 Ao BRI HITES
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)

During the year, no retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’
services were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to
the directors; nor are any payable (2016: Nil). No
consideration was provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services
(2016: Nil).

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of directors, their controlled bodies corporate
and connected entities (2016: Nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2016: Nil).

During the year, the five individuals whose emoluments
were the highest in the Group include one director (2016:
one) whose emoluments are included in note 9(a). The
emoluments payable to the other four (2016: four) highest
paid individuals during the year are as follows:

) RNAFE IERNEFHE
kA& X REHRKE
M BEREEERE A
AR - IR AE (A B Uk PR
T2 HIB(2016%F : &) - W
ERESESREMERNL
F=TI s EY 2 K (E(2016
)

(i) IWEER  EEFEAM U
BEE REZEEEREE
LMEABERAESEAZRS
(20164 : &) o

(i) REFERIRAFEEM
KW EFERNNRG L2
EBAARAIEBZEARAR
5 RHEREH  MARA
EZEENHERETHE
BAMEZR (20164 « ) o

RER AREBRUNZSHEALTE
FE—%2016F : —R)EE -
E2HME B ERH ) e AF
A E T EA DA (2016 4F : MY
B)EEHFALTZHEFBOT ¢

2017 2016
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Salaries, allowances and benefits e RN EDMA G

in kind 7,257 7,260

Pension — defined contribution BRE — REE-KETE
scheme 272 305
Share options expense iR 84 99

7,613 7,664
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The emoluments of the above individuals fell within the
following bands:

871 15 il 2 B 5

EALHBEN FIATEHE -

Number of individuals

A
2017 2016
Emolument band B <& %5 [E]
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 B ¥ 1,000,001 TR
7B 2 000,000 7T 3 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 B #2 000,001 TR
78 13,000,000 7T 1
4 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

10 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the 2013 AGM, the shareholders approved the adoption of
the New Option Scheme and the termination of the Old Option
Scheme, which was adopted on 19 September 2003. Share
options granted under the Old Option Scheme remain effective.
The New Option Scheme and Old Option Scheme were set up
for the purpose of recognising and motivating the contribution
of the eligible persons to the Company and or any of its
subsidiaries and/or any invested entity.

Under the option schemes, the directors may at their absolute
discretion grant options to eligible persons who are employee
or directors of the Company or its subsidiaries. There were no
minimum holding period for which an option must be held
before exercised. The commencement date of an option period
should be specified by the Board in the relevant offer letter.

Options are granted under the plans for consideration of
HK$1.00 for each grant and carry no dividend or voting rights.

The subscription price in respect of any option granted shall be
a price determined by the Board and notified to each grantee
and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of
a share; (i) the average of the closing prices of the shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date on which
an offer for grant of an option is made; and (jii) the closing price
of the shares on the new offer date which must be a business
day.

10
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518
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o
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11

Movements in the share options under the Option Scheme
during the last 2 years are shown as follows:

B - AR IR AR B AR Y
SHIIRMT :

Average Number of

exercise price share options

FIHITEE BREHE

(HK$ per share) ’000

(BB T) T &

As at 1 January 2016 K2016F1 A1H 0.95 8,494

Exercised [=EGRES 0.91 (2,868)

Lapsed B 0.95 (840)
As at 31 December 2016 and R2016F 12 A31 H X

1 January 2017 20171 A1H 0.95 4,786

Exercised BIT{E = (4,786)

As at 31 December 2017

MN2017E12 A31 H

During the year, the weighted average closing price of the share
of the Company immediately before the dates on which the
share options were exercised was HK$1.56 (2016: HK$1.59).

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and
exercise price:

exercise price

RARERE  AAFRMO N BREEREE
1T6ERT B B2 IkE U T E A E .56
JC (2016 4F : B¥E1.597T) ©

FARITEREE 2B RITEREWT

Average

Number of share

Expiry date ZH A FIITHEE options ('000)
(HK$ per share) BREYE (Th)
(SE%TT) 2017 2016
27 May 2017 20175 A 27 B 0.952 - 500
6 June 2017 20176 A6H 0.86 - 196
15 October 2018 2018410 A 15H 0.85 - 100
27 May 2019 201945 A 27 H 0.952 - 3,990

No share options were outstanding as at 31 December 2017
(31 December 2016: 4,786,000).

TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits/(loss) for the
year after application of available tax losses brought forward for
both years. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

11

HE2017F12 A31 HiE  WEEAKITE
2 BERRHE (20165512 8311 - 4,786,000) ©

it 18

MEFENBENESRIIZEBRFTE 2
HETERBLEF (BB MR EEF&E
7 0 B 18 1% AT R 16.5% (2016
F :16.5%) Bl - NEE 2 BINRFF
BEREANEEMFERTEN AR L
FIEBER 2 IRITHERGE o
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The amount of tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated GFEBRERIR GrtA) zHELEm

income statement represents:

N

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current taxation B HTIE
Hong Kong profits tax BABFIEH
— provision for the year — FREE 7,768 4,541
— (oven)/under provision in — BAFE
prior years (1B%8) TR BB (35) 1,088
Overseas tax HNGIIR
— provision for the year — FREE 108 =
Deferred taxation (note 25) IEFERIIR (FFFE25) (6,071) (863)
1,770 4,766

The taxation on the Group’s loss before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of
the home country of the Company as follows:

&R BRR B AN B 18 2 TR SR A R B
EERMEREELZIERVURIEZR
L

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Loss before taxation BR AR BB 18 (53,751) (34,946)
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% LR R16.5% 18
(2016: 16.5%) (2016 4 : 16.5%) (8,869) (5,766)
Effect of different taxation rates in B Rl AR AR R
other tax jurisdictions ZHE 2,761 (731)
(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFE (B8 TEEE (113) 1,070
Income not subject to taxation BARBHA (339) (117)
Expenses not deductible for AAH0F A 2
taxation purposes 10,427 980
(Utilisation of unrecognised tax (BARERAZHEER)
losses)/unrecognised tax losses REWER 2 BB R (1,869) 9,330
Temporary difference not recognised RERZ LR E%E (96) -
Recognition of previously unrecognised — HRBER LR B =4
temporary difference (132) -

1,770 4,766
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13

DIVIDEND 12 KRS
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BYT T BT T
(@) Dividend attributable to the (a) AFEELRKRE :
current year:
No Interim dividend proposed WHEZZS IR HRE
(2016: 1.5 HK cents) (20164 - ¥ 1.510) - 6,419
No final dividend proposed (2016: Nil) WEERE IR AREARE
(20164 : %) - -
- 6,419
(o) Dividend attributable to the previous (0) B_E—EFE « RAFAHLE
year, approved and paid during RS
the year:
No final dividend proposed WEEZEIRAHRES
(2016: 2.5 HK cents) (2016 4F : ¥ 2.510) - 10,692

At a meeting held on 27 March 2018, the Board resolved not to
declare final dividend for year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil).

LOSSES PER SHARE 13

(@) Basic losses per share is calculated by dividing the
Group’s loss attributable to the equity holders less
dividends to convertible preference shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

R2018F3H27THE1Tr 8% Lt &F
SRR TEE2017E12A31 B IEE
TEIRARE (20164 : &) o

SikEE

(@) BREREEDRERESEAE
fit A~ S L S HEL A I S 40 8 S AR AR A
BEAZBRERUAFRERTE
BT BETE -

during the year.
2017 2016
Loss attributable to equity holders REiELE B AFE(LE1R
(HK$’'000) (B¥FT) (54,377) (39,483)
Less: dividends to convertible B ATEIRE SRR AE RS A A
preference shareholders ZIRE (BETIT)
(HK$'000) - (1,200)
Loss attributable to ordinary TS B ARG ES A
shareholders (HK$'000) (BT (54,377) (40,683)
Weighted-average ordinary shares BT L BRI T IIE
issued ('000) (Fr%) 393,376 347,982
Basic losses per share (HK cents) EFRREAREE BEAL) (13.8) (11.7)




(b) The diluted losses per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 is the same as the basic
losses per share because the exercise of the Group’s
share options and CPSs would result in a decrease in
losses per share for the year.

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14

) #HE2017FK2016F 12431 HIE
FEZERESBEEREREARE
EAER - REARITEAS B A
KA ERE LR EEHFANTRE
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B o

E Er NG

Leasehold Motor Furniture and
improvements vehicles equipment Total
HEMELE AE REREE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT BT
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2016 2016118 6,350 3,741 52,424 62,515
Exchange differences PEN =% (18) 61) (229) (308)
Additions NE 7,234 1,565 3,605 12,404
Disposals HE (1,210) (244) (1,477 (2,931)
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12A31H 12,356 5,001 54,323 71,680
Exchange differences PE HZERE 24 134 251 409
Additions INE 1,311 748 6,529 8,588
Disposals HE (128) (962) (1,965) (3,055)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H 13,563 4,921 59,138 77,622
Accumulated depreciation ZitiTE
At 1 January 2016 20161 F1H (5,660) (3,393) (46,579) (55,632)
Exchange differences =% 20 64 215 299
Additions INE (1,709) (367) (3,722) (5,798)
Disposals HeE 1,210 244 1,432 2,886
At 31 December 2016 R20165F12 A 31 A (6,139) (3,452) (48,654) (58,245)
Exchange differences bE =58 24) (65) 211) (300)
Additions INE (2,430) (600) (3,776) (6,806)
Disposals k= 128 950 1,914 2,992
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A31H (8,465) (3,167) (50,727) (62,359)
Closing net book value FRIREFE
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A31A 5,098 1,754 8,411 15,263
At 31 December 2016 12016512 A31 H 6,217 1,549 5,669 13,435
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15 REMF

2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
BYT T T T
At 1 January w1A1H 3,600 3,040
Unrealised gain arising from AABEEBEL 2 REHR W
change in fair value 2,000 560
At 31 December W12 A31H 5,600 3,600
Properties in Hong Kong held under BETHHELEEEWE
medium-term lease (more than (BiB10FBDLRE04F)
ten years but less than fifty years) 5,600 3,600

Note: The investment properties were valued as of year-end date on the basis of

their open market value by an independent professional property valuer,
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited.

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2017 has been determined on the basis
of valuations carried out by independent valuers not
related to the Group. The Group engaged Savills Valuation
and Professional Services Limited to value its investment
properties. Discussion of valuation processes and results
are held between the Group’s senior management and
valuers at least once every six months, in line with the
Group’s interim and annual reporting dates. At each
reporting date the Group’s senior management:

—  verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

— assess property valuations movement when
compared to the prior period valuation report; and

— holds discussions with the independent valuers.

Change in Levels 2 and 3 fair values are also analysed at
each reporting date during the bi-annual valuations
discussions date between the Group’s senior
management.

GEE

REMENFRABLEEY ELERME —
ARFBEHEELREXERERRFRAH
AL -

REBEZEAAENEELREDE -
REBZIEEMHER2017F12 A
31 B Z AR ATy iR E A 5 E W &
BB B AEMETZHEE
TE o NEBZEE— KNFE &G
BEREXEMERARHEREY
¥ETHE AEESEEEAR
BEEMELESNER (BAKE
ZHHRFRERE B %) #T
—RIAERFRERT®R o REIR
LHE  AKESEEEAS :

- BERBUGEBRSANME
BEHABE

— B HEEEEREET
B DR EEED
)53

—  BEBYHEMETHR

AEESEEEABTHE MR
BRI EIEPINEHREEH
EIT—FMEZHENREETD
A7 o



(b) Fair value hierarchy
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(b)

The following tables analyses the fair value of investment
properties at different levels defined as follows:

— quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

— inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (Level 2).

— inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (Level 3).

Quoted prices

571 155 e 7= PHY 5E

NIEEH

TREINTRABRZLEMELRTR
BNt BRBRZEEMT :

- RBEEEXABERERMS
EZRECRERR) (F—
&) -

- FAF—BRAZBERINZ
BEXABZABEHAH
B TwmEx (BIER)XHE
BETEBER)(E=R) -

— YHRERABEMZEEZ
BELXABEHARE (TR
ERABE)(F=) °

in active Significant
market for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EEEE EARHft BARAFAHE
AERTE L AR\ A W ARE
ZHRE(E-R) HEE=HR (B=%%)
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
BT T BT BETIT
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F12H31H
Recurring fair value BEEAREFE
measurements
Investment properties WA - 5,600 -
As at 31 December 2016 520164412 A31 H
Recurring fair value BEEAREFE
measurements
Investment properties WA - 3,600 =

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during

the year.

REER £ F_HZRE=

2 T AR -
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Fair vale measurements using significant other
observable inputs (Level 2)

Fair value of the investment properties are derived using
the direct comparison method. This valuation method is
based on comparing the property to be valued directly
with other comparable properties, which have recently
transacted. However, given the heterogeneous nature of
the properties, appropriate adjustments are usually
required to allow for any qualitative differences that may
affect the price likely to be achieved by the property under

consideration.

16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

EREARMITEEGABEBEZA

REFE(EZR)

REMEZ AR EEBERLBOL
B - tEEETI A FHEZY
KB G 2 HM A B L&Y%
ETZERLBAER - AT - ©

REYMEZHEEETHER - BE
TEHEEHE - MAFFER

A
A

IN=Y
Be 2

ERNMERREERZERZEM

BlEZR -

16 BIEEERBE

Non-
Backlog competition

Goodwill || Trademark orders agreement Total
[EkS B REHRE THEHR #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT T BT BT
Cost D%
At 1 January 2016 M20164F1 A1 H 171,794 48,826 15,934 2,393 67,153
Write off during the year 4 P 3 - - - (2,393) (2,393)
At 31 December 2016 R2016 12 A31 H 171,794 48,826 15,934 - 64,760
Write off during the year 4 PO - (48,826) - - (48,826)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%E12H31H 171,794 - 15,934 - 15,934
Accumulated Rt RE
amortisation/
impairment
At 1 January 2016 20161 A1H - (10,036) (15,934) (492) (26,462)
Amortisation for the year ~ F R E 5 - (3,255) - (146) (3,401)
Write off during the year FE A - - - 638 638
At 31 December2016 20165128318 - (13,291) (15,934) - (29,225)
Amortisation for the year SRS - (1,628) - - (1,628)
Impairment charge BESE (55,000) = = = =
Write off during the year F R - 14,919 - - 14,919
At 31 December 2017 R2017%E12 831 H (55,000) = (15,934) - (15,934)
Net Book Value REFE
At 31 December 2017  R2017%12A31RH 116,794 - - - -
At 31 December 2016 201612 A 31 H 171,794 851589 — - SO1585)
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The Company acquired interiors and special projects business
(the “ISP Business”) in late 2012 (the *““Acquisition’’), which are
the provision of alteration and addition, demolition, renovation
and conservation, fitting-out, maintenance and construction
works in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Macau. The goodwill
generated from the Acquisition was allocated to ISP Business
segment. As a result of the Acquisition, the Company is
required to assess the carrying value of the goodwill annually.
Accordingly, the Company has performed the annual
assessment of impairment on goodwill based on the
recoverable amount of ISP Business derived from cash flow
projections based on approved management budget over a
three-year period. However, primarily due to the lack of
substantial new orders replenishment of ISP business during
the year and the increasingly competitive business environment
of ISP Business, the carrying value of the goodwill related to
Acquisition in late 2012 has been reduced by a non-cash
impairment charge of HK$55.0 million to its estimated
recoverable amount.

Pursuant to the requirements of HKAS 36 — Impairment of
Assets, the assets has to be carried at no more than their
recoverable amounts. The goodwill impairment was calculated
by reference to value-in-use model based on a three-year cash
flow projection with the assumptions as set out in the table
below.

Inherent in the development of the present value of future cash
flow forecast are assumptions and estimates derived from a
review of the expected annual revenue growth rates, gross and
net profit margins, business plans, future market conditions and
inflation rates.

The Company determined the financial forecast based on the
past performance and its expectations for the market
development. The key assumptions and parameters used for
determination of the recoverable amount of the ISP Business
are as follows:

871 15 il 2 B 5

AR R 2012 F IR UBE = 2 8 I B Bk
HEEB(EREMRERBEE%])
(TREE=EE]) RES - PRALH &R
PIIR R Z R NE - #F & - B3 KR
B HKiE REREEIR - KEZE
FEABRESEEERNEMHRIFHRIER
E¥BoE - AR EE - A RRFEAES
FENEERRE - Ut ARAE
BEERNEMREHRIED £S5l
CHERBBREELFETG - HERK
EREMZN=FHBEEAFENE SR
TR - AT - AR A E R KK
HE¥BHe REHNIEfMx BER
R REHRIBE EBNEBRERFB
HEIZ B0 FEWEEENEE
FEHERLFEFRSAERERX
55,000,000 8 L EEAFT AT EI &5 -

RigF BT ERIFEI06H — EERE
MRE  AREEMNKREETASRE
Al EeRE - mEREN2ERRER
BAMBRBE-FHRRSARBBTE - &
A N RPTEAVRAR

KBS REARERRTEERES
EMTEEE TR E R  EF R R
Rl 2R RRT SRR B
EFTEH A B RAbE o

RARRBBERBREHMHERD
TRHEL BTN - BEEREHLE
RIRB EB A EE RRATE AR R
RE2HWAT

2017 2016
Average annual revenue growth (note 1)  “FIF FE U EIE R Z (FiFE1) 1.3% 8.0%
Average gross profit margin (note 2) FHERME (FFFE2) 4.4% 4.7%
Terminal growth rate (note 3) Bimig R & (fFFE3) 3% 3%
Discount rate (note 4) PrERE (MH7E4) 13% 13%
Recoverable amount (HK$’000) Ak E S5 (&) 117,000 259,000
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Notes:

1. Average annual revenue growth rates cover the three-year forecast period
which is estimated based on the business past performance, outstanding
work orders as at year end and management’s expectations on the
market development. During the year, the Group applied a lower average
annual revenue growth rate of 1.3% due to the fewer new orders awarded
and keen competition for ISP Business. The substantial decrease in terms
of revenue and profits compared with last year is resulted from poor
performance of ISP Business this year.

2. The Group adopted a lower average gross profit margin in 2017 in light of
the increasing market competition over the ISP Business.

3. The terminal growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth
rate of the ISP Business.

4. Post-tax discount rate applied to the post-tax cash flow forecast and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant segments.

There was no subsequent change in the valuation method.

If the budgeted gross profit margin used in the value-in-use
calculation for the ISP business had been 0.5% lower than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2017 (3.9% instead
of 4.4%), the group would have had to recognise an further
impairment against the carrying amount of goodwill of
HK$51,000,000.

If the budgeted revenue over the three-year forecasted period
used in the value-in-use calculation for the ISP business had
been 5% lower than management’s estimates at 31 December
2017, the group would have had to recognise an further
impairment against the carrying amount of goodwill of
HK$23,000,000.

If the post-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
had been 1% higher than management’s estimates, the group
would have had to recognise an further impairment against the
goodwill of HK$17,000,000.

As a result of a series of rebranding exercise of the Group in the
reporting period following the change in controlling shareholder
of the Company, the Hsin Chong’s trademark acquired along
the Group’s acquisition of the ISP business in late 2012, has
been written-off during the year, resulting in loss of
approximately HK$28,300,000 (net of tax).

Mo

1. FHEERGEEEREEZ=FRASBM - it
TIRBBEEBHRER - FREARTKIIZT
BEREBEEHMSERNEAMBESL -
FR - AEBTHFEREERER1.83% -
ERERENRA/EANRMLFHRIAE %
BRI ER D AT HR - W R
HEEFRBRAD TIARANEREREKE R
FRIBE RBRBARE

2. R2017F + AEBFHENERENRER -
HRENEMHREKRIEREBOMERFH
B -

3. CHMERETEEAZARGREAAAE
B RBTOREE -

4. BRI REREANHRRR SRR LR T
TRRAD &R R AR RE LR ©

HIg i mE A ET X -

R2017E12A31 8 @ st E = REH
MEHRIEEEBNEREBERMAZE
HEMEREREH7HK0.5% (B13.9%
MIE44%)  AEBEREBREER
REBHNREE 51,000,000 7T ©

R2017F 12 A31H @ Mt EE RN KA
RERIBEE ZBMEREBERAC=S
FIRABEcBERERERE MK
5% @ AL BB BREEREREING
B8 23,000,000 7T °

WIREREBRFTA ZBRFRZ IR RE
EREMTE 1% AEBB M EERER
FASMNRE S ¥ 17,000,000 7T °

RPN 52 [ 5 dae A AR R 14 1A 3R 45 B R
BT EREHTEMNEY AEER
2012 F RN = & M IR TE B 275
BRI SRR NERAFE M -
3 B8 4978 15 28,300,000 7T (F0 B B
) °
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17 CONTRACTING WORK-IN-PROGRESS 17 BEDPH IR

2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T
Gross amounts due from customers BWERE 2 TIRFIAER
for contract work 356,618 420,860
Less: impairment B ORE (7,324) (9,448)
349,294 411,412
Contract costs incurred plus attributable — FEE 4 & ZI A A INfE (L
profits less foreseeable losses i A AT 7B R B R 1,140,764 1,407,859
Less: progress payments received T B R UG TS R
and receivables (798,288) (993,772)
Less: impairment B B (7,324) (9,448
335,152 404,639
Representing by: 235
Gross amounts due from customers for FE REEHRHTIRE T~
contract work included in stocks and BREEKEF2TEE
contracting work-in-progress FIEER 349,294 411,412
Gross amounts due to customers for MR MESERET
contract work included in payables BREMEF2TRE
and accruals FIBER (14,142) 6,773)
335,152 404,639

The Group made a provision for amounts of contracting work-
in-progress of approximately HK$9,448,000 based on the
impairment assessment for the year ended 31 December 2016
which was mainly related to Hsin Chong Group. Contracting
work-in-progress of approximately HK$4,847,000 previously
impaired were reallocated to receivables during the year.
Further provision for amounts of contracting work-in-progress
of approximately HK$2,723,000 based on the impairment
assessment for the year ended 31 December 2017 which
related to Hsin Chong Group has been made as well. As a
result, the total contracting work-in-progress with provision for
impairment as at 31 December 2017 was approximately
HK$7,324,000.

Movements in the provision for impairment of contracting work-
in-progress that are assessed for impairment collectively are as
follows:

BEHNEE2016FE12 A1 B ILFE
FERFESBELNBERE A%
EREERN TRBEHERBLYBE
9,448,0007T ° AFA + FHIERE 2 H
R TIZH A 4,847,000 TE EFHH
L= ENERFK - RIBEE =2017F 12 A
1B EFEZRENE  EE@EHME
EBERANIRBELNBE
2,723,000 TR EEINERE - Bt - 712017
F12A31H  EAEREREZEHERR
TR4BEEA) B 7,324,000 7T °

SR ) T2 (R8T R E) 2R E R
HEEHMT

2017 2016
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
BT T BETIT
Contracting Work-in-progress BEZ2EERNIR
under impairment
At 1 January »1A1H 9,448 -
Provision for impairment transferred to B85 A JEWER SR 2 BB
receivables (note 18) (MF5E18) (4,847) -
Provision for impairment recognised FRERR B ERE
during the year 2,723 9,448
At 31 December M®12881H 7,324 9,448
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18 RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 18 [EUERFR - REKLFATRIB
The credit period of the Group’s accounts receivable generally AEBERWERR ZEER—KBNTFI02
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2016: 30 to 60 days) and the 60 B (20164 : 30E60H ) - AEE 2
majority of the Group’s accounts receivable are denominated in A EWIRR TR BB E - IHBR
Hong Kong dollars. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable HEAS 3 2 FEUBR SR 2 BREe AT LR T -
by invoice date is as follows:
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT
Accounts receivable FE U BR X
0 to 30 days 02 30H 173,954 157,934
31 to 60 days 312 60H 43,424 39,491
61 to 90 days 61 £ 90 H 15,977 10,442
Over 90 days 90 H B E 120,289 81,160
353,644 289,027
Retention receivables and EWRESRHMEKRRIE
other receivables 207,537 191,686
Receivables PE U BR X 561,181 480,713
Deposits and prepayments BEREMFRIE 22,429 26,622
583,610 507,335
Impairment of accounts receivables, EUWRF - EWRE LK
retention receivables and other Hib W FIE 2 RmE
receivables (70,577) (82,304)
513,033 425,031

Retention receivables in respect of the contracting business are
settled in accordance with the terms of the respective
contracts. At 31 December 2017, retention receivables held by
customers for contract works amounting to approximately
HK$39,409,000 (2016: HK$48,487,000) are expected to be
recovered or settled in more than twelve months from the end
of the reporting period.

As of 31 December 2017, accounts receivable of
HK$111,892,000 (2016:HK$47,575,000) were past due but not
impaired. These related to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. Accounts
receivable of HK$58,980,000 (2016: HK$74,611,000) were
past due and impaired which mainly related to Hsin Chong
Group. The ageing analysis of accounts receivables that were
past due but not impaired is as follows:

AREEBZEBRES IRIEBEHEBEYD
IR o R2017E12 8318 4938
#:39,409,000 7T (20164 : & ¥
48,487,00070) ZE PRI TIEFEH
JEWRES BN RER AL 12MEA
B U O S AL o

R2017 12 A31 H » &% 111,892,000
7T (2016 4F : 7B # 47,575,000 7T) 2 FEUL
RACBHERRBE - ZERHEESZE
AT EENCHRNBYREFERB - B
%0 57 K2 R (B 2 78 558,980,000 7T (2016
& BEE74,611,0007T) 2 EWEBRREE
HISEEARH - RO EHEERE
DI R 2 BRE DTN ¢

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BT T BEET T

Accounts receivable FEURBR X

1 to 30 days 1£30H 44,256 33,784
31 to 60 days 312 60H 16,667 7,807
61 to 90 days 61290 H 20,553 2,517
Over 90 days 90 B E 30,416 3,467

111,892 47,575
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The Group made a provision for amounts of receivables of
approximately HK$82,304,000 based on the impairment
assessment for the year ended 31 December 2016 which was
mainly related to Hsin Chong Group. Contracting work-in-
progress approximately HK$4,847,000 previously impaired
were reallocated to receivables and has also been impaired
during the year. Further provision for amounts of receivables of
approximately HK$3,160,000 based on the impairment
assessment for the year ended 31 December 2017 which
related to Hsin Chong Group has been made as well. During
the year, approximately HK$19,818,000 of receivables which
were previously impaired, have been recovered and
approximately HK$19,020,000 has been settled under the
settlement agreement and supplemental agreement that have
been entered with Hsin Chong for the repayment of remaining
balance of receivables by 1 June 2018 at the latest. As a result,
the total receivables with provision for impairment as at 31
December 2017 were approximately HK$70,577,000.

The amount of receivable of approximately HK$63,380,000 was
outstanding to be recovered the settlement agreements with
Hsin Chong Group. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of the receivables mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade, retention
and other receivables that are assessed for impairment
collectively are as follows:

871 15 il 2 B 5

RIFEZE2016F 12 A31 B IEFE R
BiE - NEBFHREWRIERE LS
#82,304000C FEHMEELEEHR
B RAEREZEHEFHENIREY
7515 4,847,000 TE B EREUKIERE,
RAFEERRE - RIBFEZ2017F 12
A31HIEFENRENS  A£ETE
SR ESEEH c BWFIEEED
753,160,000 7T c RANEE - BET AN
B RAEREREIKKENEE
19,818,000t M E & % & #&
19,020,0007T -+ Itk Jh AR R B2 57 B ot & 4B
R2018F 6 H1 REERKNFIAREEE]
NZERBEIRETIHHRETNERE -
It - A2017 12 A31 B » 5T 1R 8 B &
B R IE B 58 A48 % 70,577,000
=

i8] A 18 38 2 #4251 4075 ¥ 63,380,000 7T #%
EREFEEENERDEE N RE -
RFEAHAEBNZAEERR A L
FEWBR R ZIREE - A AR EFHE
AR RIE AR -

SBHAEREZES  RESREMH
FEWBR KRB BB BE BN T

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Receivables under impairment BB Z FE W BR =X
At 1 January ®W1A1H 82,304 -
Provision for impairment transferred from 8 5 B2/ ) T2 2 R E B
contracting work-in-progress (note 17) (ftsE17) 4,847 =
Provision for impairment recognised FAE R RERE
during the year 3,160 82,304
Doubtful debts recovery g Bl = Bk (19,818) -
Exchange difference arising from the FRREREEFCERER
provision of impairment during the year 84 =
At 31 December M12A31H 70,577 82,304

BALANCES WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Balances with non-controlling Interests are unsecured, interest
free, repayable on demand with no fixed terms of repayment
and mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

19 FRIRIERLSER

IR BB EER B8 AR
EREETRAEEERBREENS
L
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20 DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20 7 RERREEE

2017 2016

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Cash and bank balance W& MIRTTHEER 92,038 111,723
Time deposits with original maturities BEISHBEA=EANUNTH

less than three months TEHISRITIF 3K 20,494 -

Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREFE 112,532 111,723

Time deposits with original maturities JREIEAE BB =& A8
over three months TEHRERTTIF 5K 3,666 17,561
116,198 129,284

21

The majority of the Group’s deposits, cash and cash equivalents
is denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The deposits, cash and cash equivalents disclosed above and
in the consolidated statement of cash flows include
HK$32,760,000 which are held in the PRC. These deposits are
subject to regulatory restrictions and are therefore not available

for general use by the other entities within the group.

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

21

AEBZzER  ReMRESFEAREN
LA REEAL -

EXBENGTR  REeRBSEEMG
ANRB IR & mER B 32,760,000 7T
ERBFE ZEGARZEERS -
hEBAEMERITKERELS R
R -

TR KBSt &R

The credit period of the Group’s accounts payable generally
ranges from 30 to 60 days (2016: 30 to 60 days). The ageing
analysis of accounts payable by invoice date is as follows:

AEFEREMNERZEER BN T0E
60 H (20164 : 30E60H ) - LB ZE=H
HD 2z BABRRZEESITOT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT I
Accounts payable FEfTER R
0 to 30 days 0% 30H 375,704 400,210
31 to 60 days 312 60H 21,694 55,281
61 to 90 days 612 90H 16,286 25,394
Over 90 days 90 H LA E 38,879 46,399
452,563 527,284
Retention payables, EARES  HEMERRR
other payables and accruals EsEA 226,494 212,943
Amounts due to customers for EREEZ2MENZEREER
property and facility services 10,955 6,368
Amounts due to customers for ERNEFzIRER
contract work 14,142 6,773
704,154 753,368
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Retention payables in respect of the contracting business are AEEK ZEWRE S TIIBIERBE YN
settled in accordance with the terms of the respective B - M2017F12A31H » A&
contracts. At 31 December 2017, retention payables held by FIT 435 49 78 % 19,924,000 7t (2016 F :
the Group amounting to approximately HK$19,924,000 (2016: 75 27,403,000 7T ) 2 FE 1R [E & 78 &
HK$27,403,000) are expected to be settled in more than twelve REEHARBET 12E B &4 -

months from the end of the reporting period.

SHARE CAPITAL 22 PRIR
Number of
shares Amount
& E &5
‘000 HK$'000
Th% BT T
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
Ordinary shares AR
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 A1 H 350,544 35,055
Share issued upon exercise of options RIZE I HERT &I B 2 BE RS AE
granted under the Share Option Scheme  E1T{E M3 THIAR D 4,786 479
Placing of new shares (note a) Be & 5 A% (0 (I 5E (@) 69,520 6,952
At 31 December 2017 M2017%F12831H 424,850 42,486
Convertible preference shares (note b) A 8RB S IR (BIRE (b))
At 1 January 2017 R20174%1 A1 H K2017F
and 31 December 2017 12 H31H 80,000 8,000
Ordinary shares and convertible BT RERE 2 TER L%
preference shares issued and fully paid Bk
At 31 December 2017 M2017E12A31H 504,850 50,486
At 31 December 2016 R2016F 12 A31 H 430,544 43,055
Note: Mzt -
(@) The Company entered into a placing agreement on 12 May 2017, (@) AN 2017F5 A 12 AR R E 1 @ B
pursuant to which 69,520,000 new shares of the Company were placed It + 69,520,000 A& A8 A B AR 17 Bl & F 98 <L
to independent investors at the placing price of HK$1.09 per share. The KEE EEASRBE1.09T - BER

completion of placing took place on 13 June 2017. 201746 A 13 HFEMA °
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(b) 80,000,000 CPSs of HK$0.75 each were issued as part of the
consideration paid for the acquisition of ISP business in late 2012. The
rights, privileges and restrictions of the CPS are set out below:

i

Dividend

Holder of each CPS shall have the same entitlement to dividend
and other income distribution as the holder of each ordinary share
of the Company and shall rank pari passu with ordinary shares of
the Company as to dividend payments.

Return on capital

On winding up of the Company, the holder of the CPSs shall be
entitled to the return of capital on the basis of the issue price of the
CPSs and in priority to ordinary shares of the Company.

Conversion rights

The CPSs is convertible at the option of the holder at any time after
the issue date. Conversion of the CPSs shall subject to, among
others, the minimum public float requirements stipulated under the
Listing Rules or as required by the Stock Exchange being satisfied.

Conversion price

The conversion price is HK$0.75, subject to adjustment in
accordance with the terms of the CPS . The adjustment event
includes consolidation, sub-division, rights issue, issue of the
Company’s shares for cash and grant of options or warrants to
subscribe for new shares of the Company at a discount of more
than 20% of the market price.

Redemption

The Company shall have the sole right to redeem the CPSs at any
time after the issue at the issue price of the CPSs, i.e. HK$0.75 per
share.

23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group are set out on

page 103.

(b) £ 3%1780,000,000 [ F IR EEE Y 0.76 T2
AHRREER - ERN2012FFRIKBER
K RFRABEHBENREZ 8D - 7]
BB R - FREMREINT -

)

BRABRELRZFE ARSERA
AEE BB ARBE REMIK
ADKAEZBRSERN - BRIKE
HHEAADFEBRZERFMHA -

i) AARRIE
AR ELERZHEABEIREAR

FE AR B AR A L T E BRIR AR
REBER BT ELEEEAEE -

i) Ealiig

A AFRER AT B IR ET R
B ATAAE SRR - BIRFTRRES
EFED (R ) EMRAIFTSR
TRBRABRZ ZIERRFHRE
& JIAIETT o

iv) HRE

HMEBK0.757T - AIRBATARE
ERZBERTARE - ZEHESM
BEAM  FE HERBETARA
AR © - AR EIRESR
AR E AR T B8 20% 2 & R B8
RRBHAD ©

V) el

AABEEBEERN  AIRETAH
BAEMRREZETEBISEEE0.75
7o) BE AR B S o

23 MRAKKfEfR
AEEFREBFBFHNF103H -
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24 LONG SERVICE PAYMENT LIABILITIES

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees who
have completed at least five years of service with the Group.
The amount payable is dependent on the employee’s final
salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group’s defined contribution retirement
scheme that is attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet is present value of
unfunded obligation and its movements are as follows:

871 15 il 2 B 5

24 RHRFEE&E

REFE(RREGN) AEEFETH
RARBRBFEELFIALMES
TEATRLZENEEMN L —FBH
T XN ESBEDRIEEBNZL
FEMRBERMET - AMREEE
AEBEFEHFORING S T AR
REBAH 2 FH - AEBEIWEE LT
MEBEEAREMRSBOETREES -

REEABRABRZABTAREN
BEEZREREEHWT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT IT
At 1 January Mm1A1H 2,378 3,977
Net charge to the income statement RIBm RPN F5E
Current service cost BIVHA AR 75 A AN 165 257
Interest cost F B A 26 26
191 283
Net credit to other comprehensive REAMZEWA ARG AFEE
income
Remeasurements: EHFEE
Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from: BUTSBEEZBE
BB (kas) -
Liability experience KRR (180) (1,629)
Financial assumptions B RER (7) 68
Demographic assumptions AA DM ERR (318) (3)
o B0s) (1,564)
Other Eh
_Benefitspaid effem s (318)
At 31 December MW12H31H 1,380 2,378
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The principal actuarial assumptions used for accounting
purposes are as follows:

RETENRAZEIERERROT ¢

2017 2016
% %
Discount rate AhIR & 1.4 1.2
Long-term salary increase rate RHF SRR 4.0 4.0
Long term average expected return on  @HEEATB L EIEE Y
mandatory provident fund scheme REPFTEEAE 3R
assets 3.5 3.5

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the
significant principal assumptions are as follows.

RERNETHERTIEZBREDOHK
RREESIAT

Impact on defined benefit obligation

Change in

RERMNEEZZE
assumption Increase Decrease
BReE 2B 1250 A

Discount rate BEIR &
Long-term salary increase rate REFHeERX

BHMEAEEEEEL
RHFHELE R

Long-term average expected
return on mandatory
provident fund scheme assets

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity
of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined
benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit
method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 2.5 years as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 2.3 years).

0.25% Decrease by 0.6% Increase by 0.6%

4 0.6% 12 10.6%

0.25% Increase by 2.9% Decrease by 2.8%

#12.9% B 2.8%

0.25% Decrease by 2.3% Increase by 2.4%

B 2.3% 12 N2.4%

NESREDHTEENRE —EARRKK
HE MEMBRALAEED - BER
b BRARAREELEN  RRELEBRR
BB EREEMEN - BT EE
ZNRERREZFAERNE TN
RER - BT HERE(RE|EHRA
BB A ERSRERNEAME
HIRME)

R2017F12 AN B RERFE T M
HFHHR A2.5F (2016 4F : 2.34F) °



25 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using tax rates substantively enacted
as at the balance sheet date. The movement on the net
deferred tax liabilities account is as follows:

25
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R

EXEHBARARNEERTEERM IR E
RABEINERZRTEEE - BER
HAGREFRIEHMT

2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
At 1 January »1A1H8 6,278 7,141
Deferred taxation recognised in REFEBERRERZ
consolidated income statement IRAERHIE
(note 11) (Hf3E11) (6,071) (863)
At 31 December MW12H31H 207 6,278

The movement on the deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)
during the year is as follows:

EREHAEE R AR (KRR ADEE
B SHA SRR RAFRZEFNT ¢

Deferred tax liabilities Deferred tax assets
EEHBEE ELREEE
Accelerated Accounting
tax Intangible tax
depreciation assets Total  depreciation Total
NEHERE ENEE @i EHBERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BT BT
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 A 1H 518 6,714 7,232 91) 91)
Credited to consolidated ~ A& B R A
income statement (24) (852) (876) - -
Charged to consolidated Mz & B RINB
income statement - - - 13 13
At 31 December 2016 201612 A 31 H 494 5,862 6,356 (78) (78)
Credited to consolidated A& BRI
income statement (246) (5,862) (6,108) - -
Charged to consolidated ~ R4&RA B ERING
income statement - - - 37 37
At 31 December 2017 201712831 H 248 - 248 (41) (41)
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. The Group has
unrecognised tax losses of HK$88,944,000 (2016:
HK$96,452,000) to carry forward against future taxable income.
Tax losses amounting to HK$53,230,000 will expire at various
dates up to and including 2022 (2016 up to and including 2021:
HK$47,503,000). The remaining tax loss do not have expiry
dates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance

REENHEBEMERNEERIEE
EERREBAoMENRREIEER
RRERT MNEEOIG - ~AEEZ
RERHIEEE - BEB 88,944,000
TC (2016 4F : 5% 96,452,0007T) * A 4%
VR R R 2 FERBIUA - BEUBE
53,230,000t 7 B BEBNEE
N BLFE 2022 F (H 2 2016 F M B 2021
£ 347,503,000 ) K NE B Hi &
e B TABITEB BT EERAS -

EREEAEANITENATKENRAEE
HEMBEAEEE  METHELS R
F—BI R #RE - R REE TR IR A A
EXEFIRABEEREN A AEER
HiE - TR EREEEABRAT

sheet. B
2017 2016
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
BT T BEET I
Deferred tax assets BERTAEE (41) (78)
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEAE 248 6,356
207 6,278
26 BANK LOANS 26 SRITE
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BEET T
Due for repayment within one year 1FERFHER 126,402 204,000
Due for repayment after one year, 1FBEIHEE
which contains a clause of repayment B A4 2SRk (BB AR K
on demand
()  inthe second year () ZHo2F 24,000 =
(i) inthe third to fifth years, inclusive (i) S 3&EFHE5F
(BEEEMF) 12,000 =
162,402 204,000
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Notes:

(@) As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank loans of HK$162,402,000
(2016: HK$204,000,000) denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

(b) The bank loans of the Group carried weighted average interest rates of
3.0% (2016: 2.8%) per annum.

(c) The Group’s bank loan of HK$60,000,000 (2016: HK$84,000,000) is
subject to a floating charge over the assets of all the Company’s
subsidiaries.

(d) The Group’s bank loan of HK$150,000,000 (2016: Nil) is personally

guaranteed by a controlling shareholder.

(e) The carrying amounts of loans approximate their fair values.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 27

The future aggregate minimum lease rental expenses under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

BT -

©)

571 155 e 7= PHY 5E

R2017F12 318 - AKBHERITERE
162,402,000 7T.(2016 4F : 7K 204,000,000
TC) AV EEETE -

AEEZFTERZ METFHFENERI.0%
(20164 : 2.8%) °

A5 @ 2 $RITE 5K A7 60,000,0007T (2016
£F : 5 %84,000,0007T) © Ty AR R FR
EMB AR ZEEEZEBHHT -

& E 2 R 178 5 A 7 % 150,000,000 7T
(2016 4F = &) « HTARZERRTEAEL &
R o

EROREERERAEEE

RETHERIE

RIBTAT A EHEAR BRI
REHSERAEWT

Land and buildings Office equipment
T REF WAERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BMTR BT BMTR  B%TR
Within one year —%FR 11,027 11,205 395 396
In the second to fifth E_FEFERTF

years inclusive (REERMF) 7,825 12,075 918 1,063
18,852 23,280 1,313 1,459
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28 NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 28 IRERSXME
Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash (used in)/ REAESEESEEE(ER) ELE2
generated from operations: R HERE -
2017 2016
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
BaE BT T BEET T
Loss before taxation MR E R (53,751) (34,946)
Share option expenses BRI 339 539
Depreciation e 14 6,806 5,798
Amortisation of intangible assets mI A E 16 1,628 3,401
Impairment loss on goodwil EEREEE 16 55,000 -
Impairment of contracting EEh e TRRE 17
work-in-progress 2,723 9,448
Impairment of receivables eI BR FORE 18 3,160 82,304
Interest income B A (3,712) (150)
Interest expense FEMAX 5,291 5,959
Fair value gain on investment WEMEARERE 15
properties (2,000) (560)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BRNBEZ
plant and equipment g (184) (138)
Loss on write-off of intangible asset  #f #& & & & 2 fE518 16 33,907 1,755
Operating profit before working BIEE S EBE 2 LR
capital changes 49,207 73,410
Decrease/(increase) in contracting SR A X TIZR LD~
work-in-progress () 59,395 (121,702)
Increase in receivables JE Ui BR ZR A AN (95,791) (10,408)
Decrease in deposits and e RIEMFIER L
prepayments 3,953 7,083
Increase in amounts due to other  FE{ H fh H 4R & 224+
partner of joint operations FIEIE N - 9
Change in net balances with former B EJE A Al 4568 F 5852 B)
related companies - 70,984
Change in net balance with FEVERR T RE
non-controlling interests 66 315
(Decrease)/increase in payables and FEERFR - FE:T B AR EH
accruals and long service RS EECRD),
payment liabilities (49,732) 122,650

Cash (used in)/generated from B (ER) /EEXZR
operations & (32,902) 142,341




Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the
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PlEkH

571 155 e 7= PHY 5E

Bk

AR A 2B T RB 2

movements in net debt for the year. & o
Net debt 2017
RE® HK$°000
BT T
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEE 112,532
Time deposits with original maturities over REIFFE B E = E A T HFR
three months 3,666
Borrowings — due for repayment within one year B — R—FRNEE (126,402)
Borrowings — due for repayment after one year B — RN—FREER (36,000)
(46,204)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEE 112,532
Time deposits with original maturities over FEEAHBE=EA E8EFER
three months 3,666
Gross debt — variable interest rates WIERS — FEFEK (162,402)
(46,204)
Liabilities from financing
Other assets activities
HittEE MEXBELZEE
Time deposits | Borrowings  Borrowings
with original — due for — due for
Cash maturities | repayment repayment
and cash over within after
equivalents three months one year one year Total
REIH A
Bek EBB=EA R — B8R —
Be%E EHER R—FREER R-F&EE @t
Net debt as at R2017E1 818
1 January 2017 LREH 111,723 17,561 (204,000) = (74,716)
Cash flows BeRe (1,224) (13,895) 77,598 (36,000) 26,479
Foreign exchange adjustments ~ [E },59% 2,033 - - - 2,033
Net debt as at R2017F12A31R8
31 December 2017 ZRER 112,632 3,666 (126,402) (36,000) (46,204)
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 BAEALIRS
(a) Key management personnel compensation (a) TEZEIEASHEM
2017 2016
HK$’°000 HK$’'000
BETT BT IT
Salaries, allowances and benefits e RBREYMA =
in kind 40,263 34,626
Pension — defined contribution BRe — ATHEKETE
scheme 1,218 966
Share option expenses RS 266 88
41,747 35,680
(b) Significant related party transactions (b) EXMEEBEALTRZ
Summary of the significant related party transactions REARNEEETZERFEAL
carried out by the Group during the years are follows: RGBPEMT :
2017 2016
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Hitat BET T BT
Service charges paid to MR E N RBEE
— Company with a common  — ﬁ—F’EJ H% A% A% B
controlling shareholder 2R (i) (1,097) =
Services income from KB THARZARBEKA
— Company with a common — & — [ R R
controlling shareholder N (ii) 1,760 —
— Former ultimate holding — BISAER AR
company (ii) - 2,031
— Former fellow subsidiaries — Fi[E Z M B A 7] (ii) - 11,842
Service charges paid to BRG] iﬁ AR &
— Former ultimate holding — BRI A A
company (iii) - (7,836)
— Former fellow subsidiaries — RBi[R ZKTE A A] (iii) - (6,527)
Rental expenses paid to ERNIPNG] iﬁfﬂ% s
— Former ultimate holding — BIERARIERS
company (iv) - (858)
— Former fellow subsidiaries — B[R ZHTE A A] (iv) - (2,875)
Contracting work’s income from 3K 8 T3 ARl Z &%)
IREA
— Former ultimate holding — BISRER AR
company (v) - 7,500
— Former fellow subsidiaries — B[R ZK{B A 7 (v) - 98,176




Notes:

(i)

(iii)

()

SEERERAT — T HEER
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Service charges paid in respect of commission and documentation
fee for placing were mutually agreed by both parties.

Services income earned on services including property
management, asset management services, consultancy fee,
security, repair and maintenance, laundry, cleaning, etc. rendered
was mutually agreed by both parties.

Service charges paid in respect of administrative services provided
by former ultimate holding company and former fellow subsidiaries
to the Group which were reimbursed at cost based on time and
expenses allocated to the Group.

Rental expenses paid to former ultimate holding company and
former fellow subsidiaries were based on actual usage and market
rent.

Contracting work’s income earned from former ultimate holding
company and former fellow subsidiaries, was mutually agreed by
both parties.

571 155 e 7= PHY 5E

Wi

0 HEEFHZMERXMEXNZRBE -
Ty$R 8 75 1 TE M 4RER

(ii) MIRHIRTS (BEYMEERE  BEBTERS -
BEE RE  BERRE  AXKRBERE
AR5 ) BRER 2 AR 7S WA+ Th 3% & 75 1% & Uk
B o

(i) FEATRAIERD R KATRRHE A RMAS
ERETBRE N ZREE - HRIEDE
EREE B RFASIREAZN

(v)  MATRALIERARRATRRME AR Z
BEMX - DRBERRERTSHESHE

v) BRER B AT SRR D A R AT R R B AR 2
BRITIRUA » ToHREE 75 17552 UK ER »
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30 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017

30 AnoEEamkiiEREE)

MA2017%F12A31H

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEE - R NRE 63 -
Subsidiaries RPN 89,204 89,009
Total non-currentassets ¥ nBEE&® 000000 89,267 89,009
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H U GRIR 22,082 11,920
Deposits and prepayments & RIBRKRIE 307 299
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS BT B A B IA 170,927 209,766
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBESEE 24,178 521
Total current assets rEe&EES#®E 0000 217,494 . 222,506
Current liabilities REBEE
Payables and accruals FER R X BT & A 2,898 3,615
Bank loan RITER 60,000 84,000
Total current liabilites ~ #"E&sfs® 000 62,898 87,615
Netcurrentassets =~~~ #"BRE®FE 0000 154596 134,891
Total assets less current liabilites ~ REAFAABER 243,863 223,900
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEAE 10 -
e s BN s -
Netassets = =®E¥# 243853 ¢ 223,900
Equity attributable to equity ENTREFE AEGER
holders of the Company
Share capital R& R 50,486 43,055
Retained profits and other reserves R A N E b i1 193,367 180,845
Total equity EREE 243,853 223,900

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board
of Directors on 27 March 2018 and was signed on its behalf.

Kingston Chu Chun Ho k&%
Chairman &

ARAREERBREEZTEN201843
A2 Bi#tE  WAATATREEE -

Terence Leung Siu Cheong 2 Jk &
Director %
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 75 i 2= B9 5

#
7

Share losses)/
Share Share  Contributed Option retained
capital premium surplus reserve profit  Total equity
EE (ZHER)/
BA R EE BABH  BRERE REEA ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BET T BETT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1 518 43,095 114,143 82,601 255 (16,154) 223,900
Loss attributable to equity holders AR FIRERB AELER
of the Company - - - - (68,500) (58,500)
Placing of new shares REHRN 6,052 66,777 - - - 73,729
Share option scheme BREE - - = 195 = 195
Issue of shares upon exercise AfTEERENETRR
of share options 479 4,500 - (450) - 4,529
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12831R 50,486 185,420 82,601 - (74,654) 243,853
At1 January 2016 R2016%E1A1H 42,768 107,377 82,601 764 6,487 230,997
Loss attrioutable to equity holders 2K )i ATE(EEE
of the Company - - - - (5,530) (6,530)
2015 final dividend paid BR015FERERE - - - - (10,692) (10692)
2016 interim dividend paid (note 12) B 2016 Eh ik 5.
(z£12) - - - = (6,419 (6419
Adjustment HE - 3,558 - - - 3,558
Share option scheme BRETE - - - (509) - (509)
Issue of shares upon exercise of — RITEEREMETRA
share options 287 3,208 - - - 3,49
At 31 December 2016 R2016%512531A 43,055 114,143 82,601 255 (16,154) 223,900
Note: BI5E -

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the consolidated
shareholders’ funds of the subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition of these subsidiaries at the time of the Group’s
reorganisation in 2003. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as

amended), the Company may make distributions to its members out of the

contributed surplus.

BARRIEHB R BLGEIRIRE £ EARF 2003
FEBESERBEEBEZSHBRRMETZIAAR
B EERERER - RIBEAFE1981 FRADAE
BR]) » RAR A BHABRBAEBRRIEHAIK ©
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R 195 ¥k 2= Y 5E

31 HOLDING COMPANY 31 EBiRAT
The directors regarded Champ Key, a company incorporated in FEH Champ Key (R EBR XA ST
British Virgin Islands, as its ultimate holding company. MEZE AR BEELIZERAR o
32 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 32 FEMBELT
Place of incorporation Issued and paid up/ Effective percentage
Name and operation Principal activities registered capital of interest held
£5 IMRURSENY FEER BRARME ERRE FEERERAAL
2017 2016
Interest held directly:
ERRRER:
Synergis Holdings (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands’  Investment holding 100,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
LBRTES RAR of HK$0.1 each
100,000 R B REE
BE0 T ERAR
Driven Power Management Limited British Virgin Islands’ ~ Investment holding 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
ERRLES REHR US$1 each
100RERERE 1 ETL
LiEk
Interest held indirectly:
BEsaE:
Synergis Management Services Limited - Hong Kong Provision of property management 206,837 ordinary shares 100% 100%
AREBRREERAR Bk services and investment holding o HK$1 each
(A EERRBERAR)
RENFERRBRIFAER 206,837 RE A EEE
1T B
Synergis Faciity Management Limited ~ Hong Kong Provision of facility management 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
ARIRERERAR i services HK$1 each
(AT EREERBRAR)
RALREERRE 2BEREEAEI T
LRk
Service Pro Limited Hong Kong Provision of maintenance contracting 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
HARBEBRAA) BE REEREEY HK$1 each
2REREEERIT
LRk
SecurExpert Solutions Limited Hong Kong Provision of security and 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
MBRZREERAH i consultancy services HK$1 each
RAHRE KBRS 2BEREEREI T

LRk
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R 195 ¥k 2= Y 5F

Place of incorporation Issued and paid up/ Effective percentage
Name and operation Principal activities registered capital of interest held
£ IMRURSENY FEER BRORME /ERRE FEERERASL
2017 2016
Laundrimate Service Limited Hong Kong Provision of laundry services 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
ARERBERAA &R RAEAK R HK$1 each
2RERAEER1T
LRk
Master Clean Service Limited Hong Kong Provision of cleaning services 200,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
EERBERAT &R U BRI of HK$1 each
200,000 R BREE
ABITZERR
SynWave Services Limited Hong Kong Sales of products, provision of 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
SREARBBRAR B copying senvices and property HKS1
holding 1REESS 1T
HEEM  REFERHR Rk
BENZ
ISP Interiors Limited (formerly known as - Hong Kong Provision of fitting-out, renovation 5,000,000 ordinary share 100% 100%
Hsin Chong Interiors (Hong Kong) &8 and addition and atteration works ~ of HK$1 each
Limited) REZAXE  BFENER 5,000,000 REHREE
AREREHERAT] HRIE BB T ERR
(R EENEH (B8 BRAR)
ISP Construction (Engineering) Limited ~ Hong Kong Provision of demolition work, addition 22,000,000 ordinary 100% 100%
(formerly known as Hsin Chong Bk and alteration works and special share of HK$1 each
Construction (Engineering) Limited) construction projects 22,000,000 R ERREE
AREER(IR)BRAA REFETRENBRYBILR 1A LER
(AimnEEER (IR) ARAF) BHEERA
ISP Curtain Wall and Aluminum Hong Kong Provision of curtain walling, 100,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%
Products Limited (formerly known B cladding and related products of HK$1
as Hsin Chong abp Company Limited) REER  BRNEBER 100,000 B HRAEE
ARBRREEHnERAA BB ERR
(A EBRREEZnERAA)
ISP Sourcing Services Limited Hong Kong Provision of procurement and 2 ordinary shares of 100% 100%
(formerly known as Hsin Chong Bk supply chain services and HKS1
Sourcing Services Limited) trading business REREEEEI T
ARRERBER AR RUFERERERERESRE  CEBK
(FIBHERBREARAH)
P1 Design Limited Hong Kong Provision of interior design 1 ordinary share of 100% -
HERBRAA Bl consultancy and fitting-act HK$1
design project management 1REESS 1T
REUZRRTERR ERR

RERTRREE
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871 15 e % BT 5 E

Place of incorporation Issued and paid up/ Effective percentage
Name and operation Principal activities registered capital of interest held
£ FMRURSENSY FEER BRARMR HRRE FEERERAAL
2017 2016
Everich Construction (Macau) Limited ~ Macau Provision of renovation and MOP25,000 100% 100%
BREE(RM) BRAF i fitting-out works SR 25,000
REBFTREARHIR
Synergis Property Management PRC (wholly owned Provision of property management, ~ RMB31,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ? foreign enterprise) repair and maintenance of AR 31,000,000
ARMEER (M) ERAR PR (MVEBERE)  sophisticated equipment and indoor
(AT EmEER (R BRAR) cleaning services, and property
management consultancy services
RENEER  RERELE
RERENEZRE - R
NEEEERRE
Synergis Property Services (Beiing) PRC (wholly owned Provision of property and facility RMB32,000,000 100% 100%
Co. Ltd. 2 foreign enterprise) management services, property AR 32,000,000
SEMERE(LR)BRARL FENEBELE) agent and property consultancy
(FIEFENFRE (L R)ERAR) services
REDERRBERRE  FitE
S R EERR RS
HE(RE) B RERAR PRC (wholly owned Provision of direct metal work and ~ RMB9,000,000 60% 60%
foreign enterprise) curtain wall fabrication AK%9,000,0007C
PE(MEBELYE) RUEERNIEEMNIERNER

i This is an investment holding company with no specific place of operation.

2 These are not registered company names but merely for identification

purposes only.

# The company name has been changed from “3#f 2% &2 CRYI) AR

RAE 0 FENEEECRIDBER AR
2018.

with effect from 29 March

a The company name has been changed from “¥# E ¥ R#% (AL R) AR
naElto “FEYMERBK(JLR) R A A" with effect from 31 January

>

FZARR—EREZERAR  UEARLE
HoE o
ZEWIFEM AR B - AZHER

H2018F 3 A20R 1  HARZWBER [#
EMEERORI)ERAR ] EhA[FEE
MEEE ORI ABRAF -

B2018F1A31 A - HARBHEE A [F
EMERBGER)ERAF] BEXA[AE

2018. YIERS QLR BRDF] ©
33 JOINT OPERATIONS 33 HEKE
Name Place of operation Principal activities Participating shares
£ 4Rk i B FEXHK 2R
2017 2016
Hsin Chong-Wah Cheong Hong Kong Construction 50% 50%
Joint Venture (02) 5 e



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

REERARAT —T—LEFY

R

T =2

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BB BETT
Operating Results RexE
Revenue W25 2,083,300 2,433,471 2,447,379 1,906,253 1,680,076
(Loss)/profit before taxation BHAT (B1R) /5 A (53,751) (34,946) 67,524 56,098 45,804
Taxation BE (1,770) (4,766) (12,243) (10,756) (11,413)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(E8)/ 857l (55,521) (39,712) 55,281 45,342 34,391
Non-controling interests eI R 1,144 229 - - 1
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity  (E518),/ % F 5B BRAL A
holders of the Company RESEA (54,377) (39,483) 55,281 45,342 34,392
Assets and Liabilities BEREE
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment ME  HENRE 15,263 13,435 6,883 8,891 11,005
Investment properties HEE 5,600 3,600 3,040 2,800 3,170
Intangible assets B AE - 35,585 40,691 48,974 57,700
Goodwill kS 116,794 171,794 171,794 168,968 168,968
Deferred tax assets EIEHBEE 4 78 91 144 381
Prepayment B FE 2,080 1,840 = - -
Current assets REEE 981,119 971,280 1,007,076 720,337 666,034
Total assets BEW®E 1,120,897 1,197,562 1,229,575 950,114 907,258
Liabilities 8
Current liabilities AR 868,442 963,278 938,974 693,361 670,768
Long service payment liabilities RORBLEE 1,380 2,378 3,977 1,940 1,642
Deferred tax liabilities ELHBEERE 248 6,356 7,232 8,859 10,649
Totelliebiities  AfEE® 870070 2012 90183 704160 663,009
Non-controlinginterests ~  FEMmMmm (M1sey 049 L e 225
Equity attributable to equity holders AR\ BRI B A (L iEzS
of the Company 251,985 225,564 280,603 245,954 223,974
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MAJOR PROJECTS
T2 ITRIBE

MAJOR PROJECT IN-PROGRESS

RSETPZERTRIAE

Commencement Anticipated
Description Group’s Interest  Date Completion Date  Client/Ultimate Employer
s AEEfEER RIS % T A BF/BHEE
INTERIORS AND SPECIAL PROJECTS
EREBREHIER
Main Contract for Residential Development at 100%  January 2016 May 2018 Hong Kong Resort
Discovery Bay North Phase 16 Company Limited
wRELE1ICHETETERER 20161 A 201855 BREXARLA
Fitting-out works for M+ Museum Project at 100%  December 2015 February 2019 West Kowloon Cultural
West Kowloon Cultural District, Hong Kong District Authority
BFRBNLE 2 M+ BYEEETR 2015512 A 20194 2R EAXIEERR
Builder Works for Automation of Arrival Bags 100%  September 2017 June 2019 ATAL Engineering Limited
Delivery at Hong Kong International Airport
BAERKSARTERIEE BN 2017%9AR 201946 A ZETRARRDA
BETR
Reprovision of an Indoor All-Weather Swimming 100%  August 2017 April 2020 The Incorporated Management
Pool at Po Leung Kok Camoes Tan Siu Lin Committee of Po Leung Kok
Primary School at 6 Hoi Ting Road, Camoes Tan Siu Lin
Tau Ma Tei, Kowloon Primary School
BEENERMMEEB6RNRRSB 20174%8AR 202054 A REBEFCNEEERES
RN BRERERIEHA
Alteration and Addition Works at Commercial/ 100%  November 2017 June 2018 ACE Ample Hong Kong Limited
Carpark Block, Hing Man Shopping Centre
at No. 188 Tai Tam Road, Hong Kong
BEANEE 18 RARESEE/ 2017%11 A 201846 A HBEBBRAR
FESABNNERINELIR
Named DSC for Interior Decoration for Hotel 100%  December 2017 March 2019 Hip Hing Construction
Guestrooms, Corridors, lift Lobbies and Company Limited
Lift Car at Tung Chung Town Lot No. 2 & 11
PREBTHRE2R N RBERR - £/ 2017512 A 20194 3R HEEERR L

THREAERERENENRETR
BEARERERRNDER



PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT AS AT 31
DECEMBER 2017

FEERERAR —T—LFFMH

MAJOR PROPERTIES
E2Wx

N2017 F 12831 8EERE 2%

Percentage of

Description Use Status Lease Term Group’s Interest
EEB L
=3 A& AR5 HEFH BB
Car Park Nos. P250, P251, P252, P253, P254, Carpark Rental Medium 100%
P255, P256 and P257, Sun Hing Garden,
No.2 On Po Lane, Tai Po, New Territories.
24/64,299th shares of and in
Tai Po Town Lot No. 26
AR R R 25 HT BIEE P250 - P251 JREAL aatié} T H 100%

P252 -+ P253 + P254 + P255 » P256 [ P257 5
B AHMIHER 26578 64,2990 2 2417
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2KE
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Ronald Lau Man Tak*
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Eric Lee Hon Man*
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Kan Fook Yee*
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Eric Lee Hon Man
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Kan Fook Yee
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Kk

Ronald Lau Man Tak
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Edward Wong Yun Kuen

=

Edward Wong Yun Kuen (Chairman)

=R (LE)

Kingston Chu Chun Ho

KRIEHE

Ronald Lau Man Tak
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KRIEE
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AEME
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FTEEEM
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E-mail Address
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2018 FRRAFARE

Eric Chan Kwong Leung
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PricewaterhouseCoopers

OB E AR RIS

The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited

HELBESRITARAR

Chong Hing Bank Limited

BIBRITERAA

China Everbright Bank Company
Limited

B RIBITIRODBRAE]

O-Bank Co., Ltd.

TEAERITROABRAF

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton, HM 11

Bermuda

7/F.,Linkchart Centre

2 Tai Yip Street

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

BENEBE

REF25

BRI T8

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda)
Limited

The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HM08

Bermuda

Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

BBPRELZLBRAA

EBEF2FRER 1835

AR OATEAT712-171655 45

02340

4,000 shares
4,000 f%

www.synergis.com.hk

info@synergis.com.hk

201748 A30H
20183 A 27 H
20185 A 18 H



SYNERGIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
AEZRBRAF

7/F., Linkchart Centre, 2 Tai Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel :(852) 3471 2340

Fax : (852) 2751 8784

BB EAEH2FHMER LTS
E:E ¢ (852) 3471 2340
{85 : (852) 27518784

www.synergis.com.hk
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